City of San Diego

| CONTRACTOR'S NAME : TC Construction Company | Inc. |
|---|------------------------------|
| ADDRESS: 10540 Prospect Avenue Santee, CA 9207 | 1 |
| TELEPHONE NO. : 619-448-4560 ext 138 | FAX NO.: 619-448-3341 |
| CITY CONTACT: Angelica Gil, Contract Specialist, Email: | |
| Phone No. (619) 533-3622 | |
| M. Fakhoury / A. Rekani / cc | |

BIDDING DOCUMENTS







FOR

JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS ONLY

North of U.S Interstate Route 8 (18)

| BID NO.: | K-18-1543-JOC-3 | |
|----------------------|-----------------|--|
| SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC): | 11000322 | |
| CLIENT DEPARTMENT: | 2100 | |
| COUNCIL DISTRICT: | CITYWIDE | |
| PROJECT TYPE: | ID | |

THIS CONTRACT WILL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

- > THE CITY'S SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SLBE PROGRAM
- ➤ PREVAILING WAGE RATES: STATE ☐ FEDERAL ☐
- ➤ APPRENTICESHIP
- ADDITIONAL FUNDING SOURCE REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN EACH TASK FOR JOC CONTRACT

BID DUE DATE:

2:00 PM
MARCH 21, 2018
CITY OF SAN DIEGO
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS
525 B STREET, SUITE 750, MS 908A
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

DEPUTY CITY ENGINEER

The engineering Specifications and Special Provisions contained herein have been prepared by or under the direction of the following Registered Engineer:

For City Engineer

Date

Seal

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| SE | CTIC | ON | | PAGE | |
|----|-----------------------------|--------|------------|---|--|
| 1. | NC | TICE I | IN۷ | /ITING BIDS6 | |
| 2. | INS | STRUC | TIC | ONS TO BIDDERS11 | |
| 3. | PE | RFORM | MΑ | NCE AND PAYMENT BONDS21 | |
| 4. | АТ | TACHI | ME | NTS: | |
| | A. | SCOF | PΕ | OF WORK24 | |
| | В. | INTE | NT | IONALLY LEFT BLANK26 | |
| | C. | INTE | NT | IONALLY LEFT BLANK27 | |
| | D. | FUNI | DIN | NG AGENCY PROVISIONS:28 | |
| | | 1 | | Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure EEO (Executive Order 11246)29 | |
| | | 2 | <u>)</u> . | Nondiscrimination Provisions for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts and Projects (FHWA ONLY)30 | |
| | | 3 | 3. | Equal Opportunity Clauses | |
| | | 4 | l. | Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications (EXCLUDES FAA)32 | |
| | | 5 | | Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (FAA ONLY)34 | |
| | | 6 | 5. | Violation or Breach of Requirements | |
| | | 7 | 7. | Monthly Employment Utilization Reports | |
| | | 8 | 3. | Records of Payments to DBEs | |
| | | 9 |). | Federal Wage Requirements For Federally Funded Projects39 | |
| | 10. Prevailing Wage Rates39 | | | | |
| | | 1 | 1. | Wage Rates43 | |
| | | 1 | 2. | Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (CDBG HUD ONLY)77 | |
| | | 1 | 3. | Federal Labor Standards Provisions | |
| | | 1 | 4. | Agency Specific Provisions86 | |
| | | 1 | 5. | DBE Potential Resources Centers (EXCLUDES FHWA, FAA)108 | |
| | | 1 | 6. | Good Faith Effort Documentation Submittals110 | |
| | | 1 | 7. | Forms | |
| | | | | SDWSRF DBE Information Form (SDWSRF ONLY)113 | |
| | | | | Form AA61 List of Work Made Available114 | |
| | | | | Form AA62 Summary of Bids Received (EXCLUDES CWSRF, FHWA, FAA)115 | |
| | | | | Form AA63 DBE Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited (EXCLUDES CWSRF, FHWA, FAA) | |

| | CWSRF Form 1: Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicite (CWSRF ONLY)11 | |
|-----|--|----|
| | CWSRF Form 2: Good Faith Effort Bids Received List (CWSRF ONLY)11 | 8 |
| | CWSRF Form 3: DBE/Contractor Certification (CWSRF ONLY)11 | 9 |
| | CWSRF Form 4: DBE Prime Contractor/Recipient Selected (CWSRF ONLY)12 | 20 |
| | CWSRF Form 5: Summary of Bids Received from Subcontractors, Suppliers, an Brokers (CWSRF ONLY)12 | |
| | SDWSRF Verification of Qualification (SDWSRF ONLY)12 | 22 |
| | EPA Form 5700-52A MBE/WBE Utilization Forms (CWSRF, SDWSR EPA ONLY)12 | |
| | California State Revolving Funds (CASRF) Form UR-334 (CWSR SDWSRF ONLY)13 | |
| | Exhibit 12-B Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and NON-DBI (FHWA ONLY) | |
| | Exhibit 15-G Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment (Construction Contract: (FHWA ONLY)13 | - |
| | Exhibit 15-H DBE Information - Good Faith Efforts (FHWA ONLY)13 | 35 |
| | Exhibit 16-B Subcontracting Request (FHWA ONLY)13 | 8 |
| | Exhibit 16-Z Monthly DBE Trucking Verification (FHWA ONLY)14 | Ю |
| | Exhibit 17-F Final Report – Utilization of DBE and First Tier Subcontractors (FHW ONLY)14 | |
| | Exhibit 17-O DBE Certification Status Change (FHWA ONLY)14 | 4 |
| | FHWA PR-1391 (FHWA ONLY)14 | 16 |
| | DBE Commitment Form (FAA ONLY)14 | 19 |
| | Buy American Certification (FAA ONLY15 | 1 |
| 18. | Certificate of Insurance (Worker's Compensation) (FHWA ONLY)15 | 5 |
| 19. | Insurance Endorsement (Worker's Compensation) (FHWA ONLY)15 | 57 |
| 20. | Certificate of Insurance (Liability) (FHWA ONLY)15 | 8 |
| 21. | Insurance Endorsement (Liability) (FHWA ONLY)16 | 51 |
| 22. | Caltrans Standard Specifications (1-12) (FHWA ONLY)16 | 3 |
| 23. | Caltrans Standard Specifications (13-95) (FHWA ONLY)19 | 12 |
| 24. | Caltrans Standard Specifications – Materials (FHWA ONLY)19 | 12 |
| 25. | Caltrans Standard Specifications – Description of Bridge Work (FHWA ONLY)19 | 12 |
| 26. | Caltrans Standard Specifications – Construction Details (FHWA ONLY)19 | 12 |
| 27. | Caltrans Standard Specifications – Buildings (FHWA ONLY) | 12 |
| 28. | Caltrans Standard Specifications – Railroad Relations (FHWA ONLY)19 |)2 |

| | E. | SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS | 193 |
|---|----|---|-----|
| | | For JOC projects, appendices will be included with the Task Order Documents | |
| | F. | JOB ORDER CONTRACT | 233 |
| | G. | CONTRACT AGREEMENT | 241 |
| 5 | CF | RTIFICATIONS AND FORMS | 244 |

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

- 1. **SUMMARY OF WORK:** This is the City of San Diego's (City) solicitation process to acquire Construction services for **Job Order Contract (JOC) SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvements Projects Only.** For additional information refer to Attachment A.
- **2. FULL AND OPEN COMPETITION:** This contract is open to full competition and may be bid on by Contractors who are on the City's current Prequalified Contractors' List. For information regarding the Contractors Prequalified list visit the City's web site: http://www.sandiego.gov.
- **3. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST:** The City's estimated construction cost for each contract is **\$10,000,000**.
- **4. TWO SEPARATE CONTRACTS**: The City intends to award two (2) separate contracts for Street Paving for Capital Improvements Projects Only to two (2) different Contractors resulting from this solicitation. Each of the two contracts will cover distinct geographical locations as follows:
 - **4.1.** Contract 1 will be for JOC SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvement Projects Only South of U.S. Interstate Route 8 (I-8).
 - **4.2.** Contract 2 will be for JOC SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvement Projects Only North of U.S. Interstate Route 8 (I-8).
- 5. **EACH CONTRACTOR AS A BACK-UP:** This Job Order Contract (JOC) is an Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity agreement. All City projects, up to the Maximum Contract Amount, that fall within the scope of work described herein will be awarded pursuant to this contract. The Contractor agrees to perform all work assigned via task orders. The amount of work and number of Task Orders to be issued are not yet known. Upon direction from the City, each Contractor may act as a backup to the other in the event that a Contractor is unable to perform the quantity of work issued by the City pursuant the contract.
 - 5.1. Assignment of contract Work to a back-up contractor will be at the sole discretion of the City. This is not an opportunity for a Contractor to opt-out of a Task. However, in the event that the Contractor is unable to perform a Task, the Contractor shall notify the City and provide sufficient justification as to the reason(s) it cannot perform the Task. Justification shall be submitted to the City promptly after the task is issued to the contractor but no later than ten (10) days after issuance. The City will review the justification and make a final determination within ten (10) days. If the City does not agree to the justification, liquidated damages may be assessed as per the WHITEBOOK; or the contractor may be found in breach of contract and defaulted.
 - 5.2. The Contractor acting as the back-up shall then perform that Task Order using the quoted prices from its own contract. The back-up Contractor may decline to accept the Task Order by notifying the City and providing sufficient justification as to the reasons it cannot perform the Task. Justification shall be submitted to the City promptly after the task is issued to the contractor but no later than ten (10) days after issuance.

- 6. BID DUE DATE AND TIME ARE: MARCH 21, 2018 at 2:00 PM
- 7. PREVAILING WAGE RATES APPLY TO THIS CONTRACT: Refer to Attachment D.
- **8. LICENSE REQUIREMENT**: The City has determined that the following licensing classification is required for this contract: **A**
- **9. SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES**: Subcontracting participation percentages apply to this contract.
 - **9.1.** The City has incorporated a mandatory subcontractor participation percentage to enhance competition and maximize subcontracting opportunities.
 - **9.2.** The mandatory subcontracting percentage for the Contract is **10% SLBE-ELBE firms** unless specified otherwise by the Task Order.
 - **9.3.** Final Task Order costs will be included in the calculation.
 - **9.4.** The Contractor shall maintain a participation level at or above the mandatory percentage continuously throughout the term of the Contract.
 - **9.5.** The Contractor shall submit as requested, during the term of the contract, a Subcontractor participation report as required by the City detailing the participation levels for each certification and overall by task and overall Contract.

FOR FEDERAL FUNDED PROJECTS PROVIDED AS REFERENCE ONLY

SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES:

- **9.1.** The City affirms that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, DBE will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this invitation.
- **9.2.** This Federally assisted project includes subcontracting participation percentages for DBE participation. DBE goal commitments and Good Faith Efforts (GFE) shall be made prior to bidding. DBE commitments and GFE made after the Bid opening will not be considered for the Award of Contract.
- **9.3.** This project is subject to the federal equal opportunity regulations and the following requirements. The City reserves the right to audit the Contractor's compliance with the federal requirements set forth below.
- **9.4.** The following are federally subcontracting participation percentages. For the purpose of achieving the subcontractor participation percentage, Additive or Deductive Alternates and Type II Allowance Bid Items will not be included in the calculation.

FAA or FHWA- CERTIFIED DBE Bidder(s) shall meet the DBE goal or have a good faith effort. They receive no credit toward the goal for their own DBE status. The City has determined that the following goals shall apply to this project:

The Contractor shall meet the Project specific goals for DBE's as outlined in the Specifications or satisfy GFE documentation requirements.

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) - In accordance with EPA's Program for Utilization of Small, Minority Disadvantaged and Women Business Enterprises in procurement under Federal assistance programs, the Contractor agrees to the applicable "fair share" objectives negotiated with EPA as follows:

California State Water Resources Control Board - Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF):

| | | MBE* | WBE* |
|----|-------------------------------|------|------|
| 1. | Construction | 2% | 1% |
| 2. | Supplies | 1% | 1% |
| 3. | Services | 1% | 1% |
| 4. | Equipment (combined in above) | 1% | 1% |

Note: MBEs and WBEs shall be certified by EPA, SBA, DOT or by state, local, Tribal, or private entities whose certification criteria match EPAs in order to be counted toward MBE/WBE accomplishments. MBEs and WBEs are a part of the larger universe of DBEs.

California Department of Public Health Service - Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF):

| | | MBE* | WBE* |
|----|-------------------------------|------|------|
| 1. | Construction | 11% | 4% |
| 2. | Supplies | 2% | 2% |
| 3. | Services | 4% | 2% |
| 4. | Equipment (combined in above) | 2% | 1% |

Note: MBEs and WBEs must be certified by EPA, SBA, DOT or by state, local, Tribal, or private entities whose certification criteria match EPAs in order to be counted toward MBE/WBE accomplishments. MBEs and WBEs are a part of the larger universe of DBEs.

Federal Emergency Management Agency, DHS (FEMA), Department of Interior (DOI), Department of Energy (DOE), and Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

1. Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB):

5%

- 2. Women-Owned Small Business (WoSB): 5%
- 3. HUBZone Small Business (HubZone): 3%
- 4. Service Disabled Veteran-owned Small Business (SDVoSB): 3%
- **9.5.** Bid shall be **declared non-responsive** if the Bidder fails any of the following conditions:
 - **9.5.1.** Submission of GFE documentation, as specified in Attachment D.
 - **9.5.2.** Attending the Pre-Bid Meeting.
 - **9.5.3.** Bidder's submission of Good Faith Effort documentation, saved in searchable Portable Document Format (PDF) and stored on Compact Disc (CD) or Digital Video Disc (DVD), demonstrating the Bidder made a good faith effort to outreach to and include DBE Subcontractors shall be submitted within **4 Working Days** of the Bid opening.

10. PRE-BID MEETING:

10.1. Prospective Bidders are required to attend the Pre-Bid Meeting. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss the scope of the Project, submittal requirements, the prequalification process and any Equal Opportunity Contracting Program requirements and reporting procedures. To request a sign language or oral interpreter for this visit, call the Public Works Contracts Division at (619) 533-3450 at least 5 Working Days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. Failure to attend the Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting may result in the Design-Builder's Bid being deemed non-responsive. The Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled as follows:

Date: MARCH 1, 2018 Time 10:00 AM

Location: 525 B Street, Suite 750, San Diego, CA 92101

Attendance at the Pre-Submittal Meeting will be evidenced by the Bidder's representative's signature on the attendance roster. It is the responsibility of the Bidder's representative to complete and sign the attendance roster.

Bidders may not be admitted after the specified start time of the mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting.

11. AWARD PROCESS:

- **11.1.** This contract may be awarded to the two lowest responsive and responsible Bidders. There will be one award for the South of I8 area and one award for the North of I8 area of the City.
- **11.2.** Two separate contracts will be awarded one for I8 North and one for I8 South. No single Contractor may be awarded the contracts for Street Paving Services for both South of I8 and North of I8.

- **11.3.** The award for the South of I8 portion will be made to the apparent low bidder. The award for the North of I8 portion will be made to the second apparent low bidder.
- **11.4.** In the event of a tie on either the North of I8 or the South of I8 portions, the City will determine the selected contractor by a coin-toss or a similar random method.
- **11.5.** The award of these contracts is contingent upon the Contractors' compliance with all conditions of Award as stated within these documents and within the Notice of Intent to Award.
- **11.6.** Upon acceptance of bids and determination of the apparent low bidder the City will prepare the contract documents for execution within approximately 21 days of the date of the bid opening. The City will then award the contract upon receipt of properly signed Contract, bonds, and insurance documents.
- **11.7.** The contracts will be deemed executed and effective only upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or his designee and approval as to form by the City Attorney's Office.

12. SUBMISSION OF QUESTIONS:

12.1. The Director (or Designee) of Public Works Department is the officer responsible for opening, examining, and evaluating the competitive Bids submitted to the City for the acquisition, construction and completion of any public improvement except when otherwise set forth in these documents. Any questions related to this solicitation shall be submitted to:

Public Works Contracts 525 B Street, Suite 750 San Diego, California, 92101 Attention: Angelica Gil

OR:

AngelicaG@sandiego.gov

- **12.2.** Questions received less than 14 days prior to the date for opening of Bids may not be considered.
- **12.3.** Questions or clarifications deemed by the City to be material shall be answered via issuance of an addendum and posted to the City's online bidding service.
- **12.4.** Only questions answered by formal written addenda shall be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications shall be without legal effect. It is the Bidder's responsibility to be informed of any addenda that have been issued and to include all such information in its Bid.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. PREQUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS:

1.1. Contractors submitting a Bid must be pre-qualified with a Maximum Bidding Capacity of at least half of the Maximum Contract Amount prior to the bid submittal date. Bids from contractors who have not been pre-qualified as applicable may be deemed non-responsive and ineligible for award. Complete information and links to the on-line prequalification application are available at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/cip/bidopps/prequalification.shtml

- **1.2.** The completed application must be submitted online no later than 2 weeks prior to the bid opening.
- 1.3. Due to the City's responsibility to protect the confidentiality of the contractors' information, City staff will not be able to provide information regarding contractors' prequalification status over the telephone. Contractors may access real-time information about their prequalification status via their vendor profile on PlanetBids™.
- **1.4.** At no time can the aggregate dollar value of open Task Orders exceed the amount to which the Contractor has been pre-qualified.
- 1.5. If the Contractor is at its prequalification limit with open Task Orders, the Contractor may not be eligible for a new Task Order until they have completed prior Task Order(s), thus reducing the aggregate dollar value of open Tasks by the amount necessary to take on a new Task Order. The contractor may request that their prequalification limit be re-evaluated during the term of the contract.
- **2. ELECTRONIC FORMAT RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS:** Bids will be received in electronic format (eBids) EXCLUSIVELY at the City of San Diego's electronic bidding (eBidding) site, at: http://www.sandiego.gov/cip/bidopps/index.shtml and are due by the date, and time shown on the cover of this solicitation.
 - **2.1. BIDDERS MUST BE PRE-REGISTERED** with the City's bidding system and possess a system-assigned Digital ID in order to submit and electronic bid.
 - 2.2. The City's bidding system will automatically track information submitted to the site including IP addresses, browsers being used and the URLs from which information was submitted. In addition, the City's bidding system will keep a history of every login instance including the time of login, and other information about the user's computer configuration such as the operating system, browser type, version, and more. Because of these security features, Contractors who disable their browsers' cookies will not be able to log in and use the City's bidding system.

- 2.3. The City's electronic bidding system is responsible for bid tabulations. Upon the bidder's or proposer's entry of their bid, the system will ensure that all required fields are entered. The system will not accept a bid for which any required information is missing. This includes all necessary pricing, subcontractor listing(s) and any other essential documentation and supporting materials and forms requested or contained in these solicitation documents.
- **2.4. BIDS REMAIN SEALED UNTIL BID DEADLINE**. eBids are transmitted into the City's bidding system via hypertext transfer protocol secure (https) mechanism using SSL 128-256 bit security certificates issued from Verisign/Thawte which encrypts data being transferred from client to server. Bids submitted prior to the "Bid Due Date and Time" are not available for review by anyone other than the submitter which has until the "Bid Due Date and Time" to change, rescind or retrieve its proposal should it desire to do so.
- 2.5. BIDS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY BID DUE DATE AND TIME. Once the bid deadline is reached, no further submissions are accepted into the system. Once the Bid Due Date and Time has lapsed, bidders, proposers, the general public, and City staff are able to immediately see the results on line. City staff may then begin reviewing the submissions for responsiveness, EOCP compliance and other issues. The City may require any Bidder to furnish statement of experience, financial responsibility, technical ability, equipment, and references.
- **2.6. RECAPITULATION OF THE WORK.** Bids shall not contain any recapitulation of the Work. Conditional Bids will be rejected as being **non-responsive**. Alternative proposals will not be considered unless called for.
- **2.7. BIDS MAY BE WITHDRAWN** by the Bidder only up to the bid due date and time.
 - **2.7.1.** <u>Important Note:</u> Submission of the electronic bid into the system may not be instantaneous. Due to the speed and capabilities of the user's internet service provider (ISP), bandwidth, computer hardware and other variables, it may take time for the bidder's submission to upload and be received by the City's eBidding system. It is the bidder's sole responsibility to ensure their bids are received on time by the City's eBidding system. The City of San Diego is not responsible for bids that do not arrive by the required date and time.
- **2.8. ACCESSIBILITY AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE**: To request a copy of this solicitation in an alternative format, contact the Public Works Contract Specialist listed in the cover of this solicitation at least five (5) working days prior to the Bid/Proposal due date to ensure availability.

3. ELECTRONIC BID SUBMISSIONS CARRY FULL FORCE AND EFFECT

- **3.1.** The bidder, by submitting its electronic bid, acknowledges that doing so carries the same force and full legal effect as a paper submission with a longhand (wet) signature.
- **3.2.** By submitting an electronic bid, the bidder certifies that the bidder has thoroughly examined and understands the entire Contract Documents (which consist of the plans and specifications, drawings, forms, affidavits and the solicitation documents), and that by submitting the eBid as its bid proposal, the bidder acknowledges, agrees to and is bound by the entire Contract Documents, including any addenda issued thereto, and incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents.
- **3.3.** The Bidder, by submitting its electronic bid, agrees to and certifies under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the certification, forms and affidavits submitted as part of this bid are true and correct.
- 3.4. The Bidder agrees to the construction of the project as described in Attachment "A-Scope of Work" for the City of San Diego, in accordance with the requirements set forth herein for the electronically submitted prices. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days (90 days for federally funded contracts and contracts valued at \$500,000 or less) from the date of Bid opening. The duration of the Contract Price guarantee shall be extended by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all conditions precedent.
- 4. BIDS ARE PUBLIC RECORDS: Upon receipt by the City, Bids shall become public records subject to public disclosure. It is the responsibility of the respondent to clearly identify any confidential, proprietary, trade secret or otherwise legally privileged information contained within the Bid. General references to sections of the California Public Records Act (PRA) will not suffice. If the Contractor does not provide applicable case law that clearly establishes that the requested information is exempt from the disclosure requirements of the PRA, the City shall be free to release the information when required in accordance with the PRA, pursuant to any other applicable law, or by order of any court or government agency, and the Contractor will hold the City harmless for release of this information.

5. CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION AND ELECTRONIC REPORTING SYSTEM:

- **5.1. Prior** to the Award of the Contract or each Task Order, you and your Subcontractors and Suppliers must register with the City's web-based vendor registration and bid management system. For additional information go to: http://www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/bids-contracts/vendorreg.shtml.
- **5.2.** The City may not award the contract until registration of all subcontractors and suppliers is complete. In the event this requirement is not met within the time frame specified in the Notice of Intent to Award letter, the City reserves the right to

- rescind the Notice of Award / Intent to Award and to make the award to the next responsive and responsible bidder / proposer.
- **JOINT VENTURE CONTRACTORS:** Provide a copy of the Joint Venture agreement and the Joint Venture license to the City within 10 Working Days after receiving the Contract forms. See 2-1.1.2, "Joint Venture Contractors" in The WHITEBOOK for details.
- **7. PREVAILING WAGE RATES WILL APPLY:** Refer to Attachment D.
- **8. SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES**: Subcontracting participation percentages apply to this contract. Refer to Attachment E.

9. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

- **9.1.** All certificates of insurance and endorsements required by the contract are to be provided upon issuance of the City's Notice of Intent to Award letter.
- **9.2.** Refer to sections 7-3, "LIABILITY INSURANCE", and 7-4, "WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE" of the Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP) for the insurance requirements which must be met.
- **10. REFERENCE STANDARDS:** Except as otherwise noted or specified, the Work shall be completed in accordance with the following standards:

| Title | Edition | Document Number |
|--|---------|--------------------|
| Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction ("The GREENBOOK") http://www.greenbookspecs.org/ | 2015 | PWPI070116-01 |
| City of San Diego Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction ("The WHITEBOOK")* https://www.sandiego.gov/publicworks/edocref/greenbook | 2015 | PWPI070116-02 |
| City of San Diego Standard Drawings* https://www.sandiego.gov/publicworks/edocref/standarddraw | 2016 | PWPI070116-03 |
| Citywide Computer Aided Design and Drafting (CADD) Standards https://www.sandiego.gov/publicworks/edocref/drawings | 2016 | PWPI092816-04 |
| California Department of Transportation (CALTRANS) Standard Specifications – http://www.dot.ca.gov/des/oe/construction-contract-standards.html | 2015 | PWPI092816-05 |
| CALTRANS Standard Plans http://www.dot.ca.gov/des/oe/construction-contract-standards.html | 2015 | PWPI092816-06 |

| Title | | Edition | Document Number |
|--|---|---------|--------------------|
| California Ma 1 (CA MUTCI | anual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices Revision D Rev 1) - | 2014 | PWPIO92816-07 |
| http://www.d | dot.ca.gov/trafficops/camutcd/ | | |
| NOTE : *Available online under Engineering Documents and References at: http://www.sandiego.gov/publicworks/edocref/index.shtml | | | |

- 11. CITY'S RESPONSES AND ADDENDA: The City, at its option, may respond to any or all questions submitted in writing via the City's eBidding web site in the <u>form of an addendum</u>. No other responses to questions, oral or written shall be of any force or effect with respect to this solicitation. The changes to the Contract Documents through addendum are made effective as though originally issued with the Bid. The Bidders shall acknowledge the receipt of Addenda at the time of bid submission.
- 12. CITY'S RIGHTS RESERVED: The City reserves the right to cancel the Notice Inviting Bids at any time, and further reserves the right to reject submitted Bids, without giving any reason for such action, at its sole discretion and without liability. Costs incurred by the Bidder(s) as a result of preparing Bids under the Notice Inviting Bids shall be the sole responsibility of each bidder. The Notice Inviting Bids creates or imposes no obligation upon the City to enter a contract.
- **13. CONTRACT PRICING FORMAT:** This solicitation is for an Adjustment Factor type contract based on the Unit Price Book (UPB) and provisions as set forth herein.
 - **13.1.** The Bidder agrees to perform construction services for the City of San Diego in accordance with these contract documents at the pricing listed below. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days from the date of Bid opening. The duration of the Contract Price guarantee may be extended, by mutual consent of the parties, by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all contractual conditions.
 - **13.2.** Contractor shall perform all Work required, necessary, and proper for or incidental to completing the Work called for in each individual Task Order issued under this Job Order Contract using the Unit Price Book (UPB) with the quoted adjustment factors.
 - **13.3.** Adjustment factors are to be expressed to the fourth decimal place (for example: .1234). Failure to specify the adjustment factors to four (4) decimal places may result in the bid being deemed **non-responsive** and ineligible for further consideration.

- **13.4.** The Contractor shall perform all Work items called for in each Task Order's Scope of Work (SOW) and multiplied by the quoted adjustment factor for **Normal Working Hours** or **Other Than Normal Working Hours** as follows:
 - **13.4.1.** Pre-Priced items: In the quantities specified in the SOW and at the appropriate prices contained in the Unit Price Book.
 - **13.4.2.** Non-Pre-priced items: For the sum of the lowest prices obtained from the required number of competitive external quotes.

14. SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION:

- **LISTING OF SUBCONTRACTORS.** In accordance with the requirements provided in 14.1. the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act" of the California Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall provide the NAME and ADDRESS of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or who specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also state within the description, whether the subcontractor is a CONSTRUCTOR, CONSULTANT or SUPPLIER. The Bidder shall state the DIR REGISTRATION NUMBER for all subcontractors and shall further state within the description, the PORTION of the work which will be performed by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors for which Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary (or both) subcontracting participation goals.
- 14.2. LISTING OF SUPPLIERS. Any Bidder seeking the recognition of Suppliers of equipment, materials, or supplies obtained from third party Suppliers towards achieving any mandatory or voluntary (or both) subcontracting participation goals shall provide, at a minimum, the NAME, LOCATION (CITY), DIR REGISTRATION NUMBER and the DOLLAR VALUE of each supplier.. The Bidder will be credited up to 60% of the amount to be paid to the Suppliers for materials and supplies unless vendor manufactures or substantially alters materials and supplies, in which case, 100% will be credited. The Bidder is to indicate within the description whether the listed firm is a supplier or manufacturer. If no indication is provided, the listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed dollar value for purposes of calculating the Subcontractor Participation Percentage.

- **14.3. LISTING OF SUBCONTRACTORS OR SUPPLIERS FOR ALTERNATES.** For subcontractors or suppliers to be used on additive or deductive alternate items, in addition to the above requirements, bidder shall further note "ALTERNATE" and alternate item number within the description.
- **15. SUBMITTAL OF "OR EQUAL" ITEMS:** See Section 4-1.6, "Trade Names or Equals" in The WHITEBOOK and as amended in the SSP.

16. AWARD:

- **16.1.** The Award of this contract is contingent upon the Contractor's compliance with all conditions set forth herein and in the Notice of Intent to Award.
- **16.2.** Upon acceptance of a Bid, the City will prepare contract documents for execution within approximately 21 days of the date of the Bid opening and award the Contract approximately within 7 days of receipt of properly signed Contract, bonds, and insurance documents.
- **16.3.** This contract will be deemed executed and effective only upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or his designee and approval as to form the City Attorney's Office.
- 17. **SUBCONTRACT LIMITATIONS**: The Bidder's attention is directed to Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Section 2-3, "SUBCONTRACTS" in The GREENBOOK and as amended in the SSP which requires the Contractor to self-perform not less than the specified amount. Failure to comply with this requirement may render the bid **non-responsive** and ineligible for award.
- **18. AVAILABILITY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:** Contract Documents may be obtained by visiting the City's website: http://www.sandiego.gov/cip/. Plans and Specifications for this contract are also available for review in the office of the City Clerk or Public Works Contracts.
- 19. ONLY ONE BID PER CONTRACTOR SHALL BE ACCCEPTED: No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make, file, or be interested in more than one (1) Bid for the same work unless alternate Bids are called for. A person, firm or corporation who has submitted a subproposal to a Bidder, or who has quoted prices on materials to a Bidder, is not hereby disqualified from submitting a sub-proposal or quoting prices to other Bidders or from submitting a Bid in its own behalf. Any Bidder who submits more than one bid will result in the rejection of all bids submitted.
- 20. SAN DIEGO BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE: The Contractor and Subcontractors, not already having a City of San Diego Business Tax Certificate for the work contemplated shall secure the appropriate certificate from the City Treasurer, Civic Center Plaza, first floor and submit to the Contract Specialist upon request or as specified in the Contract Documents. Tax Identification numbers for both the Bidder and the listed Subcontractors must be submitted on the City provided forms within these documents.

21. AWARD OF CONTRACT OR REJECTION OF BIDS:

- **21.1.** This contract may be awarded to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder.
- **21.2.** Bidders shall complete the entire Bid schedule (also referred to as "schedule of prices" or Proposal form). Incomplete price schedules may be rejected as being nonresponsive.
- **21.3.** The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive any informality or technicality in Bids received, and to waive any requirements of these specifications as to bidding procedure.
- **21.4.** Bidders will not be released on account of their errors of judgment. Bidders may be released only upon receipt by the City within 3 Working Days of the bid opening, written notice from the Bidder which shows proof of honest, credible, clerical error of a material nature, free from fraud or fraudulent intent; and of evidence that reasonable care was observed in the preparation of the Bid.
- **21.5.** A bidder who is not selected for contract award may protest the award of a contract to another bidder by submitting a written protest in accordance with the San Diego Municipal Code.
- **21.6.** The City of San Diego will not discriminate in the award of contracts with regard to race, religion creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, marital status, sex or age.
- **21.7.** Each Bid package properly signed as required by these specifications shall constitute a firm offer, which may be accepted by the City within the time specified in the Proposal.
- **21.8.** The City reserves the right to evaluate all Bids and determine the lowest Bidder on the basis of any proposed alternates or options as detailed herein.

22. BID RESULTS:

- **22.1.** The availability of the bid results on the City's eBidding system shall constitute the public announcement of the apparent low bidder. In the event that the apparent low bidder is subsequently deemed non-responsive or non-responsible, a notation of such will be made on the eBidding system. The ranking and new apparent low bidder will be adjusted accordingly.
- **22.2.** To obtain Bid results, visit the City's eBidding site, request results via e-mail to the City Contact person listed in the cover page of this document; or by U.S. Postal Service by including a self-addressed, stamped envelope, referencing bid number. Bid results cannot be given over the telephone.

23. THE CONTRACT:

- **23.1.** The Bidder to whom award is made shall execute a written contract with the City of San Diego and furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 14 days after receipt by Bidder of a form of contract for execution unless an extension of time is granted to the Bidder in writing.
- 23.2. If the Bidder takes longer than 14 days to fulfill these requirements, then the additional time taken shall be added to the Bid guarantee. The Contract shall be made in the form adopted by the City, which includes the provision that no claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.
- **23.3.** If the Bidder to whom the award is made fails to enter into the contract as herein provided, the award may be annulled and the Bidder's Guarantee of Good Faith will be subject to forfeiture. An award may be made to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder who shall fulfill every stipulation embraced herein as if it were the party to whom the first award was made.
- 23.4. Pursuant to the San Diego City Charter section 94, the City may only award a public works contract to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder. The City will require the Apparent Low Bidder to (i) submit information to determine the Bidder's responsibility and reliability, (ii) execute the Contract in form provided by the City, and (iii) furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 14 Days, unless otherwise approved by the City, in writing after the Bidder receives notification from the City, designating the Bidder as the Apparent Low Bidder and formally requesting the above mentioned items.
- 23.5. The award of the Contract is contingent upon the satisfactory completion of the above mentioned items and becomes effective upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or designee and approval as to form the City Attorney's Office. If the Apparent Low Bidder does not execute the Contract or submit required documents and information, the City may award the Contract to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder who shall fulfill every condition precedent to award. A corporation designated as the Apparent Low Bidder shall furnish evidence of its corporate existence and evidence that the officer signing the Contract and bond for the corporation is duly authorized to do so.
- **24. EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE OF WORK:** The Bidder shall examine carefully the Project Site, the Plans and Specifications, the JOC Unit Price Books, other materials as described in the Special Provisions, Section 2-7, and the proposal forms (i.e., Bidding Documents). The submission of a Bid or JOC Task Order Proposal shall be conclusive evidence that the Bidder has investigated and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered, as to the character, quality, and scope of Work, the quantities of materials

to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the Bidding Documents Proposal, Plans, and Specifications.

- **25. CITY STANDARD PROVISIONS:** This contract is subject to the following standard provisions. See The WHITEBOOK for details.
 - **25.1.** The City of San Diego Resolution No. R-277952 adopted on May 20, 1991 for a DrugFree Workplace.
 - **25.2.** The City of San Diego Resolution No. R-282153 adopted on June 14, 1993 related to the Americans with Disabilities Act.
 - **25.3.** The City of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3004 for Pledge of Compliance.
 - **25.4.** The City of San Diego's Labor Compliance Program and the State of California Labor Code §§1771.5(b) and 1776.
 - **25.5.** Sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the State of California Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices by contractors and subcontractors performing public works contracts.
 - **25.6.** The City's Equal Benefits Ordinance (EBO), Chapter 2, Article 2, Division 43 of The San Diego Municipal Code (SDMC).
 - **25.7.** The City's Information Security Policy (ISP) as defined in the City's Administrative Regulation 90.63.

26. PRE-AWARD ACTIVITIES:

- **26.1.** The contractor selected by the City to execute a contract for this Work shall submit the required documentation as specified herein and in the Notice of Intent to Award. Failure to provide the information as specified may result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive**.
- **26.2.** The decision that bid is non-responsive for failure to provide the information required within the time specified shall be at the sole discretion of the City.

PERFORMANCE BOND, LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND:

| TC Construction Company, Inc. | а | corporation, | as | princip | al, | and |
|---|-------|------------------|--------------|----------|------|-------|
| Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, | а | corporation | aut | horized | to | do |
| business in the State of California, as Surety, hereby obligate the | mse | elves, their suc | cess | ors and | assi | gns, |
| jointly and severally, to The City of San Diego a mur | ıicip | al corporatio | n ir | n the s | sum | of |
| Five Million Dollars and Zero Cents (\$5,000,000,000) for the | fait | nful performa | nce | of the a | ınne | xed |
| contract, and in the sum of Five Million Dollars and Zero Ce | nts | (\$5,000,000.0 | 0) fc | r the be | enef | it of |
| laborers and materialmen designated below. | | | | | | |

Conditions:

If the Principal shall faithfully perform the annexed contract with the City of San Diego, California, then the obligation herein with respect to a faithful performance shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

If the Principal shall promptly pay all persons, firms and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the execution of this contract, and shall pay all amounts due under the California Unemployment Insurance Act then the obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

The obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall inure to the benefit of all persons, firms and corporations entitled to file claims under the provisions of Article 2. Claimants, (iii) public works of improvement commencing with Civil Code Section 9100 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

Changes in the terms of the annexed contract or specifications accompanying same or referred to therein shall not affect the Surety's obligation on this bond, and the Surety hereby waives notice of same.

PERFORMANCE BOND, LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND (continued)

| The Surety shall pay reasonable attorney's fees shall bond. | nould suit be brought to enforce the provisions of |
|---|---|
| Dated April 3, 2018 | |
| Approved as to Form | TC Construction Company, Inc. Principal By AUSTIN CAMERON, PRESIDENT |
| Mara W. Elliott, City Attorney | Printed Name of Person Signing for Principal |
| By Deputy City Attorney | Liberty Mutual Insurance Company |
| | By Tara Bacon, Attorney-in-fact |
| Approved: | 790 The City Drive, Suite 200 Local Address of Surety |
| By Stephen Samara Interim Deputy Director Public Works Department | Orange, CA 92868 Local Address (City, State) of Surety |
| | 714-634-3311 Local Telephone No. of Surety |
| | Premium \$ <u>22,440.</u> 00 |
| | Bond No024067720 |

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

CIVIL CODE § 1189

| A notary public or other officer completing this certificate document to which this certificate is attached, and not the | e verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. |
|--|---|
| State of California County of Scin Dillad On April 4, 2018 before me Source Date | dra Weeks, Notary Piebl, ic Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer |
| personally appeared AUSINN CON | Name(s) of Signer(s) |
| subscribed to the within instrument and acknowle | evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are edged to me that he/she/they executed the same in the person(s), edged, executed the instrument the person(s), ed, executed the instrument. |
| o | certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct. |
| SANDRA WEEKS V | VITNESS my hand and official seal. |
| Notary Public – California San Diego County Commission # 2205586 My Comm. Expires Aug 9, 2021 | Signature Sandra Weeks |
| | Signature of Notary Public |
| | |
| Place Notary Seal Above | IONAL |
| Though this section is optional, completing this is | nformation can deter alteration of the document or form to an unintended document. |
| Description of Attached Document | |
| Title or Type of Document Performance | Bond, Labor and material men's bo |
| Document Date: | Number of Pages: |
| Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:// Ab | - |
| Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) Signer's Name: Austin Cambridge Augustin | Signer's Name: |
| □ Partner — □ Limited □ General | ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General |
| ☐ Individual ☐ Attorney in Fact | ☐ Individual ☐ Attorney in Fact |
| ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator | ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator |
| ☐ Other: | ☐ Other: |
| Signer Is Representing: | Signer Is Representing: |
| TIC CONSTRUCTION CO INC | |
| | =~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~=~~~~~~ |

©2016 National Notary Association • www.NationalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

| | • | • |
|---|--|--|
| State of California County of San Diego | |) |
| On April 3, 2018 | before me, | Maria Hallmark, Notary Public |
| | | (insert name and title of the officer) |
| personally appearedTara B | Bacon | |
| who proved to me on the basis of subscribed to the within instrume his/her/their authorized capacity(| of satisfactory e ent and acknow (ies), and that b | evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are wledged to me that he/she/they executed the same by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the e person(s) acted, executed the instrument. |
| I certify under PENALTY OF PEI paragraph is true and correct. | RJURY under t | the laws of the State of California that the foregoing |
| WITNESS my hand and official s | seal. | Notary Public - California San Diego County Commission # 2161086 My Comm. Expires Aug 22, 2020 |
| Signature Haccellu | | (Seal) |

validity of this Power סי אינטיויכץ כייי. between 9:00 am and 4:30 pm EST on any business day.

confirm

ဂ္

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company West

West American Insurance Company

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, that Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana (herein collectively called the "Companies"), pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute and appoint, Bradley R. Orr; Dale G. Harshaw; Geoffrey Shelton; John R. Qualin; Kyle King; Minna Huovila; Tara Bacon

all of the city of <u>San Diego</u>, state of <u>CA</u> each individually if there be more than one named, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver, for and on its behalf as surety and as its act and deed, any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations, in pursuance of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Companies as if they have been duly signed by the president and attested by the secretary of the Companies in their own proper persons.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has been subscribed by an authorized officer or official of the Companies and the corporate seals of the Companies have been affixed thereto this 22nd day of November 2016.



STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

SS

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company Liberty Mutual Insurance Company West American Insurance Company

David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary

On this 22nd day of November , 2016, before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, The Ohio Casualty Company, and West American Insurance Company, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as a duly authorized officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my notarial seal at King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, on the day and year first above written.



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Notarial Seal Teresa Pastella, Notary Public Upper Merion Twp., Montgomery County My Commission Expires March 28, 2017

Member, Pennsylvania Association of Notaries

By: Leresa Pastella
Teresa Pastella, Notary Public

This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-laws and Authorizations of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company which resolutions are now in full force and effect reading as follows:

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS – Section 12. Power of Attorney. Any officer or other official of the Corporation authorized for that purpose in writing by the Chairman or the President, and subject to such limitation as the Chairman or the President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Corporation to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact, subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so executed, such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Secretary. Any power or authority granted to any representative or attorney-in-fact under the provisions of this article may be revoked at any time by the Board, the Chairman, the President or by the officer or officers granting such power or authority.

ARTICLE XIII – Execution of Contracts – SECTION 5. Surety Bonds and Undertakings. Any officer of the Company authorized for that purpose in writing by the chairman or the president, and subject to such limitations as the chairman or the president may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Company by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Company. When so executed such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the president and attested by the secretary.

Certificate of Designation – The President of the Company, acting pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, authorizes David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary to appoint such attorneys-in-fact as may be necessary to act on behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations.

Authorization – By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company consents that facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature of any assistant secretary of the Company, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company in connection with surety bonds, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

I, Renee C. Llewellyn, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company do hereby certify that the original power of attorney of which the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, is in full force and affect and has not been revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seals of said Companies this

___ day of

Jem / Sweln

Renee C. Llewellyn, Assistant Secretary

ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF WORK

SCOPE OF WORK

1. SCOPE OF WORK:

- 1.1 Work will include a variety of detailed repair and construction tasks and specifications that have pre-established unit prices listed in a Unit Price Book (UPB). The UPB pricing incorporates the use of experienced labor, high quality materials, local activity, climate, and geographic factors. All Work pursuant to this Contract will be performed for the City of San Diego. Work will involve for City related streets the placement of asphalt concrete, replacing traffic signal detection loops and stub outs, adjustment of city manhole and gate valve covers, cold milling, pavement base repair, installation of curb ramps to meet ADA requirements, street and sidewalk sweeping, tree trimming, replace traffic striping and markings/legends, storm drain inlet protection and the installation of inlet markers, sediment control in a JOC Task Order RFP.
- **1.2** The Contractor shall furnish all management, documentation, design and incidental drawings (as required), labor, materials, and equipment needed to perform the Work.
- **1.3** The Work shall be performed in accordance with the JOC Task Order RFP Scope of Work and other requirements.
- **ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST:** The City's estimated construction cost for each contract is **\$10,000,000**.
- 3. **LOCATION OF WORK:** To be determined based on each Task Order.
- **4. CONTRACT TERM**: The Contract Term is two (2) years for the issuance of Task Orders. All work pursuant to any task order issued shall be completed within the time frame specified on the Task Order Notice to Proceed. The total time for the issuance of Tasks and completion of the associated Work shall not exceed five (5) years.

ATTACHMENT B

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ATTACHMENT C

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ATTACHMENT D

JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC)

FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS REFERENCES

THE AS-NEEDED INFORMATION IN THIS ATTACHMENT IS PROVIDED AS A COURTESY TO BIDDERS

FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS

IN THE EVENT THAT THESE REQUIREMENTS CONFLICT WITH THE CITY'S GENERAL EOC REQUIREMENTS, THE FUNDING AGENCY'S REQUIREMENTS WILL CONTROL.

- 1. NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246).
 - **1.1.** Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.
 - **1.2.** The goal and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, as follows:

Goal

1. Goals for Minority Participation for Each Trade: 16.9%

2. Goals for Female Participation in Each Trade: 6.9%

- 1.3. These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs Work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the Work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both federally involved and non-federally involved Work.
- **1.4.** The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals.
- 1.5. The hours of minority and female employment and training shall be substantially uniform throughout the length of the Contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the Contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.
- 1.6. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) within 10 Working Days of award of any Subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for Work under the Contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of the Subcontractor; employer identification number of the Subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the Subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the Subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed. The "covered area" is the City of San Diego.

1.7. As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is San Diego, California

2. NONDISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS FOR FEDERALLY ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND PROJECTS (FHWA ONLY):

- **2.1.** During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, agrees as follows:
 - 1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
 - 2. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by, on behalf of, the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
 - 3. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of worker with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advertising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
 - 4. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
 - 5. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.
 - 6. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended, in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts or

federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

7. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding Paragraph 1 and the provisions of Paragraphs 1 through 7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each Subcontractor or Vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a Subcontractor or Vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

3. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSES:

- **3.1.** The following equal opportunity clauses are incorporated by reference herein:
 - 1. The equal opportunity clause located 41 CFR 60.1.4(a), which specifies the obligations imposed under Executive Order 11246.
 - 2. The equal opportunity clause located at 41 CFR 60-741.5, which contains the obligations imposed by Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
 - 3. The "Equal Opportunity Clause" (Resolution No. 765092) filed on December 4, 1978, in the Office of the City Clerk, San Diego, California and incorporated in the "Standard Federal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive Order 11246 Document No. 769023, filed September 11, 1984, in the Office of the City Clerk, San Diego, California) is applicable to all non-exempt City construction contracts and subcontracts of \$2,000 or more.
 - 4. Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub. L. 94-135.
 - 5. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Pub. L. 88-352.
 - 6. Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Acts Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. 92-5200 (the Clean Water Act).
 - 7. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. 93-112 (Executive Orders 11914 and 11250).
 - 8. Women's Minority Business Enterprises, Executive Orders 11625, 12138 and 12432.

9. Section 129 of the Small Business Administration Reauthorization and Amendment Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-590.

4. STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT SPECIFICATIONS (EXCLUDES FAA):

- **4.1.** The Contractor is required to comply with the 16 "Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications" located at 41 CFR 60-4.3 for federal and federally-assisted construction contracts in excess of \$10,000, set forth below.
- **4.2.** The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative actions steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - 1. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign 2 or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - 2. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
 - 3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female walk-in applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
 - 4. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
 - 5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities, participate in training programs for the area, or both which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or

- approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under item 2 of section 3.2 above.
- 6. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreements; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- 7. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignments, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as superintendents, foreman, etc., prior to the initiation of Work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and dispositions of the subject matter.
- 8. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- 9. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- 10. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- 11. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- 12. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- 13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually

- monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- 14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- 15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- 16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

5. STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS (FAA ONLY):

- **5.1.** As used in these specifications:
 - 1. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;
 - 2. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), U.S. Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;
 - 3. "Employer identification number" means the Federal social security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941;
 - 4. "Minority" includes:
 - a) Black (all) persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - b) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race);
 - c) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
 - d) American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- **5.2.** Whenever the contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- **5.3.** If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables)

shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors shall be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered contractor's or subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

- 5.4. The contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through 7p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction contractors performing construction work in a geographical area where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement contracting officers. The contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- **5.5.** Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union with whom the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246 or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- 5.6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees shall be employed by the contractor during the training period and the contractor shall have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees shall be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- **5.7.** The contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The contractor shall document these efforts fully and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - 1. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the contractor's employees are assigned to work. The contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - 2. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
 - 3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a

union, a recruitment source, or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore along with whatever additional actions the contractor may have taken.

- 4. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the contractor a minority person or female sent by the contractor, or when the contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- 5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.
- 6. Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- 7. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such a superintendents, general foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- 8. Disseminate the contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the contractor's EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors with whom the contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- 9. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students; and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the contractor shall send written notification to organizations, such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- 10. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation

- employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a contractor's workforce.
- 11. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- 12. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel, for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- 13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- 14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- 15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- 16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor's adherence to and performance under the contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 5.8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through 7p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor union, contractor community, or other similar groups of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through 7p of these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the contractor's noncompliance.
- **5.9.** A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, if the particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the contractor has achieved its goals for women generally,) the contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized.
- **5.10.** The contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- **5.11.** The contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

- **5.12.** The contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- **5.13.** The contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- **5.14.** The contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone number, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.
- **5.15.** Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

6. VIOLATION OR BREACH OF REQUIREMENTS:

6.1. If at any time during the course of the Contract there is a violation of the Affirmative Action or Equal Employment Opportunity requirements by the Contractor, or the Subcontractors, the City will notify the Contractor of the breach. The City may withhold any further progress payments to the Contractor until the City is satisfied that the Contractor and Subcontractors are in full compliance with these requirements.

7. MONTHLY EMPLOYMENT UTILIZATION REPORTS:

- **7.1.** Refer to GENERAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS, CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS in The WHITEBOOK and the following:
 - 1. Federal and Non-Federal Work in San Diego County. Submit an updated list only if work is complete or new contracts have been awarded during the span of this project.

8. RECORDS OF PAYMENTS TO DBEs:

8.1. The Contractor shall maintain records and documents of payments to DBEs for 5 years following the NOC. These records shall be made available for inspection upon request by any authorized representative of the City, funding agency, or both. The reporting requirement shall be extended to any certified DBE Subcontractor.

9. FEDERAL WAGE REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS:

- **9.1.** The successful Bidder's work shall be required to comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity,", as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60).
- **9.2.** This Executive Order pertains to Equal Employment Opportunity regulations and contains significant changes to the regulations including new goals and timetables for women in construction and revised goals and time-tables for minorities in construction.
- **9.3.** Minimum wage rates for this project have been predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and are set forth in the Decision of the Secretary and bound into the specifications book. Should there be any difference between the state or federal wage rates, including health and welfare funds for any given craft, mechanic, or similar classifications needed to execute the Work, it shall be mandatory upon the Contractor or subcontractor to pay the higher of the two rates.
- 9.4. The minimum wage rate to be paid by the Contractor and the Subcontractors shall be in accordance with the Federal Labor Standards Provisions (see below) and Federal Wage Rates (see Wage Rates below) and General Prevailing Wage Determination made by the State of California, Director of Industrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2, Sections 1770, 1773 and 1773.1, whichever is higher.
- **9.5.** A Contractor having 50 or more employees and its Subcontractors having 50 or more employees and who may be awarded a contract of \$50,000 or more will be required to maintain an affirmative action program, the standards for which are contained in the specifications.
- **9.6.** To be eligible for award, each Bidder shall comply with the affirmative action requirements which are contained in the specifications.
- **9.7.** Women will be afforded equal opportunity in all areas of employment. However, the employment of women shall not diminish the standards of requirements for the employment of minorities.
- **10. PREVAILING WAGE RATES:** Pursuant to San Diego Municipal Code section 22.3019, construction, alteration, demolition, repair and maintenance work performed under this Contract is subject to State prevailing wage laws. For construction work performed under this Contract cumulatively exceeding \$25,000 and for alteration, demolition, repair and maintenance work performed under this Contract cumulatively exceeding \$15,000, the

Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with State prevailing wage laws including, but not limited to, the requirements listed below.

- 10.1. Compliance with Prevailing Wage Requirements. Pursuant to sections 1720 through 1861 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall ensure that all workers who perform work under this Contract are paid not less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). This includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work.
 - 10.1.1.Copies of such prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the City and are available for inspection to any interested party on request. Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages also may be found at http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm. Contractor and its subcontractors shall post a copy of the prevailing rate of per diem wages determination at each job site and shall make them available to any interested party upon request.
 - 10.1.2. The wage rates determined by the DIR refer to expiration dates. If the published wage rate does not refer to a predetermined wage rate to be paid after the expiration date, then the published rate of wage shall be in effect for the life of this Contract. If the published wage rate refers to a predetermined wage rate to become effective upon expiration of the published wage rate and the predetermined wage rate is on file with the DIR, such predetermined wage rate shall become effective on the date following the expiration date and shall apply to this Contract in the same manner as if it had been published in said publication. If the predetermined wage rate refers to one or more additional expiration dates with additional predetermined wage rates, which expiration dates occur during the life of this Contract, each successive predetermined wage rate shall apply to this Contract on the date following the expiration date of the previous wage rate. If the last of such predetermined wage rates expires during the life of this Contract, such wage rate shall apply to the balance of the Contract.
- **10.2. Penalties for Violations.** Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with California Labor Code section 1775 in the event a worker is paid less than the prevailing wage rate for the work or craft in which the worker is employed.
- 10.3. Payroll Records. Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with California Labor Code section 1776, which generally requires keeping accurate payroll records, verifying and certifying payroll records, and making them available for inspection. Contractor shall require its subcontractors to also comply with section 1776. Contractor and its subcontractors shall submit weekly certified payroll records online via the City's web-based Labor Compliance Program. Contractor is responsible for ensuring its subcontractors submit certified payroll records to the City.

- **10.3.1.**For contracts entered into on or after April 1, 2015, Contractor and their subcontractors shall furnish records specified in Labor Code section 1776 directly to the Labor Commissioner in the manner required by Labor Code section 1771.4.
- **10.4. Apprentices.** Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with California Labor Code sections 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777.7 concerning the employment and wages of apprentices. Contractor is held responsible for the compliance of their subcontractors with sections 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777.7.
- 10.5. Working Hours. Contractor and their subcontractors shall comply with California Labor Code sections 1810 through 1815, including but not limited to: (i) restrict working hours on public works contracts to eight hours a day and forty hours a week, unless all hours worked in excess of 8 hours per day are compensated at not less than 1½ times the basic rate of pay; and (ii) specify penalties to be imposed on design professionals and subcontractors of \$25 per worker per day for each day the worker works more than 8 hours per day and 40 hours per week in violation of California Labor Code sections1810 through 1815.
- **10.6. Required Provisions for Subcontracts.** Contractor shall include at a minimum a copy of the following provisions in any contract they enter into with a subcontractor: California Labor Code sections 1771, 1771.1, 1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1810, 1813, 1815, 1860 and 1861.
- **10.7. Labor Code Section 1861 Certification.** Contractor in accordance with California Labor Code section 3700 is required to secure the payment of compensation of its employees and by signing this Contract, Contractor certifies that "I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Contract."
- **10.8. Labor Compliance Program**. The City has its own Labor Compliance Program authorized in August 2011 by the DIR. The City will withhold contract payments when payroll records are delinquent or deemed inadequate by the City or other governmental entity, or it has been established after an investigation by the City or other governmental entity that underpayment(s) have occurred. For questions or assistance, please contact the City of San Diego's Equal Opportunity Contracting Department at 619-236-6000.
- **10.9. Contractor and Subcontractor Registration Requirements.** This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. As of March 1, 2015, no contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid or proposal for a public works project unless registered with the DIR pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. As of April 1, 2015, a contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, or enter into any contract for public work, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 By submitting a bid or proposal to the City, Contractor is certifying that he or she has

verified that all subcontractors used on this public work project are registered with the DIR in compliance with Labor Code sections 1771.1 and 1725.5, and Contractor shall provide proof of registration to the City upon request.

10.9.1.A Contractor's inadvertent error in listing a subcontractor who is not registered pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 in response to a solicitation shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid non-responsive provided that any of the following apply: (1) the subcontractor is registered prior to bid opening; (2) within twenty-four hours after the bid opening, the subcontractor is registered and has paid the penalty registration fee specified in Labor Code section 1725.5; or (3) the subcontractor is replaced by another registered subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4107.

11. WAGE RATES: This contract shall be subject to the following Davis-Bacon Wage Decisions:

General Decision Number: CA180001 02/09/2018 CA1

Superseded General Decision Number: CA20170001

State: California

Construction Types: Building, Heavy (Heavy and Dredging), Highway and Residential

County: San Diego County in California.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; DREDGING PROJECTS (does not include hopper dredge work); HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include water well drilling); HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (consisting of single family homes and apartments up to and including 4 stories)

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.35 for calendar year 2018 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.35 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2018. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date

- 0 01/05/2018
- 1 01/12/2018
- 2 01/19/2018
- 3 02/09/2018

ASBE0005-002 07/03/2017

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Workers/Insulator (Includes the application of all insulating materials, protective coverings, coatings, and finishes to all types of mechanical systems).....\$ 39.72

20.81

Fire Stop Technician

(Application of Firestopping

Materials for wall openings

and penetrations in walls, floors, ceilings and curtain

walls).....\$ 26.96

17.81

-------ASBE0005-004 07/03/2017

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Removal
worker/hazardous material
handler (Includes
preparation, wetting,
stripping, removal,
scrapping, vacuuming, bagging
and disposing of all
insulation materials from
mechanical systems, whether
they contain asbestos or not)....\$ 19.26
11.27

BOIL0092-003 10/01/2012

Rates Fringes

BOILERMAKER.....\$ 41.17 28.27

BRCA0004-008 11/01/2017

Rates Fringes

BRICKLAYER; MARBLE SETTER......\$ 37.46 16.69

BRCA0018-004 07/01/2017

| | Rates | Fringes | |
|---|---|---|---|
| MARBLE FINISHER TILE FINISHER TILE LAYER | \$ 25 | 5.98 1 | 1.23 |
| * BRCA0018-010 0 | 9/01/2017 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| TERRAZZO FINISHI TERRAZZO WORKE | | | |
| CARP0409-002 07 | /01/2016 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| Diver (1) Wet (2) Standby (3) Tender (4) Assistant Ten | \$ 356 \$ 348. | .24 17 24 17 | 7.03 7.03 |
| Amounts in "Rates | s' column ar | e per day | |
| CARP0409-008 08 | /01/2010 | | |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| Modular Furniture | Installer | \$ 17.00 | 7.41 |
| CARP0547-001 07 | /01/2016 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| CARPENTER (1) Bridge (2) Commercial (3) Heavy & Hig (4) Residential (5) Residential Insulation Insta MILLWRIGHT PILEDRIVERMAN | l Building ghway\$ Carpenter ller\$ 18 \$ 4 | \$ 35.10 5 40.20 \$ 28.08 8.00 6.70 | 03 17.03 17.03 17.03 8.16 17.03 17.03 |

* CARP0547-002 07/01/2016

Rates Fringes

Drywall

(1) Work on wood framed construction of single family residences, apartments or condominiums under four stories

Drywall Installer/Lather...\$ 22.95 18.85 Drywall Stocker/Scrapper...\$ 12.50 12.27

(2) All other work

Drywall Installer/Lather...\$ 32.00 17.63 Drywall Stocker/Scrapper...\$ 12.50 12.27

ELEC0569-001 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

Electricians (Tunnel Work)

Cable Splicer...........\$ 49.41 3%+12.63 Electrician.......\$ 46.97 3%+12.63

Electricians: (All Other Work, Including 4 Stories

Residential)

Cable Splicer......\$ 44.00 3%+12.63 Electrician......\$ 43.25 3%+12.63

ELEC0569-004 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

ELECTRICIAN (Sound &

Communications Sound

Technician).....\$ 31.00 3%+11.53

SCOPE OF WORK Assembly, installation, operation, service and maintenance of components or systems as used in closed circuit television, amplified master television distribution, CATV on private property, intercommunication, burglar alarm, fire alarm, life support and all security alarms, private and public telephone and related telephone interconnect, public address, paging, audio, language, electronic, background music system less than line voltage or any system acceptable for class two wiring for private, commercial, or industrial use furnished by leased wire, freuency modulation or other recording devices, electrical apparatus by means of which

electricity is applied to the amplification, transmission, transference, recording or reproduction of voice, music, sound, impulses and video. Excluded from this Scope of Work - transmission, service and maintenance of background music. All of the above shall include the installation and transmission over fiber optics.

ELEC0569-005 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

Sound & Communications

Sound Technician.....\$ 31.00 3%+11.53 SCOPE OF WORK Assembly, installation, operation, service and maintenance of components or systems as used in closed circuit television, amplified master television distribution, CATV on private property, intercommunication, burglar alarm, fire alarm, life support and all security alarms, private and public telephone and related telephone interconnect, public address, paging, audio, language, electronic, background music system less than line voltage or any system acceptable for class two wiring for private, commercial, or industrial use furnished by leased wire, freuency modulation or other recording devices, electrical apparatus by means of which electricity is applied to the amplification, transmission, transference, recording or reproduction of voice, music, sound, impulses and video. Excluded from this Scope of Work transmission, service and maintenance of background music. All of the above shall include the installation and transmission over fiber optics.

SOUND TECHNICIAN: Terminating, operating and performing final check-out

ELEC0569-006 02/27/2017

Work on street lighting; traffic signals; and underground systems and/or established easements outside of buildings

Rates Fringes

Traffic signal, street light and underground work

Utility Technician #1......\$ 30.48 3%+7.70 Utility Technician #2......\$ 25.45 3%+7.70

STREET LIGHT & TRAFFIC SIGNAL WORK:

UTILITY TECHNICIAN #1: Installation of street lights and traffic signals, including electrical circuitry, programmable controller, pedestal-mounted electrical meter enclosures and laying of pre-assembled cable in ducts. The layout of electrical systems and communication installation including proper position of trench depths, and radius at duct banks, location for manholes, street lights and traffic signals.

UTILITY TECHNICIAN #2: Distribution of material at jobsite, installation of underground ducts for electrical, telephone, cable TV land communication systems. The setting, leveling, grounding and racking of precast manholes, handholes and transformer pads.

ELEC0569-008 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

ELECTRICIAN (Residential, 1-3

Stories).....\$ 32.81 3%+6.61

ELEC1245-001 06/01/2017

Rates Fringes

LINE CONSTRUCTION

(1) Lineman; Cable splicer..\$ 55.49 16.62

(2) Equipment specialist

(operates crawler

tractors, commercial motor

vehicles, backhoes,

trenchers, cranes (50 tons

and below), overhead &

underground distribution

line equipment).......\$ 44.32 3%+17.65
(3) Groundman.....\$ 33.89 3%+17.65
(4) Powderman....\$ 49.55 3%+17.65

HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, M.L. King Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day

ELEV0018-001 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

ELEVATOR MECHANIC...... \$ 53.85 32.645

FOOTNOTE:

PAID VACATION: Employer contributes 8% of regular hourly rate as vacation pay credit for employees with more than 5 years of service, and 6% for 6 months to 5 years of service. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.

ENGI0012-003 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

OPERATOR: Power Equipment

| (All | Other | W | ork) |) |
|------|-------|---|------|---|
|------|-------|---|------|---|

| WI Other | ,,, | | |
|----------|-----|----------|-------|
| GROUP | 1 | \$ 44.00 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 2 | \$ 44.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 3 | \$ 45.07 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 4 | \$ 46.56 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 5 | \$ 47.66 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 6 | \$ 46.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 8 | \$ 46.89 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 9 | \$ 47.99 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 10 | \$ 48.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 11 | \$ 48.11 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 12 | \$ 47.18 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 13 | \$ 47.28 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 14 | \$ 47.31 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 15 | \$ 47.39 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 16 | \$ 47.51 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 17 | \$ 47.68 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 18 | \$ 47.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 19 | \$ 47.89 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 20 | \$ 48.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 21 | \$ 48.18 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 22 | \$ 48.28 | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 23 | \$ 48.39 | 24.25 |
| | 24 | | 24.25 |
| GROUP | 25 | \$ 48.68 | 24.25 |
| | | | |

| OPERATOR: Power Equipment | |
|---------------------------|-------|
| (Cranes, Piledriving & | |
| Hoisting) GROUP 1\$ 45.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 2\$ 46.13 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 3\$ 46.42 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 4\$ 46.56 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 5\$ 46.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 6\$ 46.89 | 24.25 |
| | 24.25 |
| GROUP 7\$ 47.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 8\$ 47.18 | |
| GROUP 9\$ 47.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 10\$ 48.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 11\$ 49.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 12\$ 50.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 13\$ 51.35 | 24.25 |
| OPERATOR: Power Equipment | |
| (Tunnel Work) | |
| GROUP 1\$ 41.80 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 2\$ 42.58 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 3\$ 42.87 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 4\$ 43.01 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 5\$ 43.23 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 6\$ 43.34 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 7\$ 43.46 | 23.35 |
| | |

PREMIUM PAY:

\$3.75 per hour shall be paid on all Power Equipment Operator work on the followng Military Bases: China Lake Naval Reserve, Vandenberg AFB, Point Arguello, Seely Naval Base, Fort Irwin, Nebo Annex Marine Base, Marine Corp Logistics Base Yermo, Edwards AFB, 29 Palms Marine Base and Camp Pendleton

Workers required to suit up and work in a hazardous material environment: \$2.00 per hour additional. Combination mixer and compressor operator on gunite work shall be classified as a concrete mobile mixer operator.

SEE ZONE DEFINITIONS AFTER CLASSIFICATIONS

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Bargeman; Brakeman; Compressor operator; Ditch Witch, with seat or similar type equipment; Elevator operator-inside; Engineer Oiler; Forklift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types under 5 tons;

Generator operator; Generator, pump or compressor plant operator; Pump operator; Signalman; Switchman

GROUP 2: Asphalt-rubber plant operator (nurse tank operator); Concrete mixer operator-skip type; Conveyor operator; Fireman; Forklift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types over 5 tons; Hydrostatic pump operator; oiler crusher (asphalt or concrete plant); Petromat laydown machine; PJU side dum jack; Screening and conveyor machine operator (or similar types); Skiploader (wheel type up to 3/4 yd. without attachment); Tar pot fireman; Temporary heating plant operator; Trenching machine oiler

GROUP 3: Asphalt-rubber blend operator; Bobcat or similar type (Skid steer); Equipment greaser (rack); Ford Ferguson (with dragtype attachments); Helicopter radioman (ground); Stationary pipe wrapping and cleaning machine operator

GROUP 4: Asphalt plant fireman; Backhoe operator (mini-max or similar type); Boring machine operator; Boxman or mixerman (asphalt or concrete); Chip spreading machine operator; Concrete cleaning decontamination machine operator; Concrete Pump Operator (small portable); Drilling machine operator, small auger types (Texoma super economatic or similar types - Hughes 100 or 200 or similar types drilling depth of 30' maximum); Equipment greaser (grease truck); Guard rail post driver operator; Highline cableway signalman; Hydra-hammer-aero stomper; Micro Tunneling (above ground tunnel); Power concrete curing machine operator; Power concrete saw operator; Power-driven jumbo form setter operator; Power sweeper operator; Rock Wheel Saw/Trencher; Roller operator (compacting); Screed operator (asphalt or concrete); Trenching machine operator (up to 6 ft.); Vacuum or much truck

GROUP 5: Equipment Greaser (Grease Truck/Multi Shift).

GROUP 6: Articulating material hauler; Asphalt plant engineer; Batch plant operator; Bit sharpener; Concrete joint machine operator (canal and similar type); Concrete planer operator; Dandy digger; Deck engine operator; Derrickman (oilfield type); Drilling machine operator, bucket or auger types (Calweld 100 bucket or similar types - Watson 1000 auger or similar types - Texoma 330, 500 or 600 auger or similar types - drilling depth of 45' maximum); Drilling machine operator; Hydrographic seeder machine operator (straw, pulp or seed), Jackson track

maintainer, or similar type; Kalamazoo Switch tamper, or similar type; Machine tool operator; Maginnis internal full slab vibrator, Mechanical berm, curb or gutter(concrete or asphalt); Mechanical finisher operator (concrete, Clary-Johnson-Bidwell or similar); Micro tunnel system (below ground); Pavement breaker operator (truck mounted); Road oil mixing machine operator; Roller operator (asphalt or finish), rubber-tired earth moving equipment (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck); Self-propelled tar pipelining machine operator; Skiploader operator (crawler and wheel type, over 3/4 yd. and up to and including 1-1/2 yds.); Slip form pump operator (power driven hydraulic lifting device for concrete forms); Tractor operator-bulldozer, tamper-scraper (single engine, up to 100 h.p. flywheel and similar types, up to and including D-5 and similar types); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum); Ultra high pressure waterjet cutting tool system operator; Vacuum blasting machine operator

GROUP 8: Asphalt or concrete spreading operator (tamping or finishing); Asphalt paving machine operator (Barber Greene or similar type); Asphalt-rubber distribution operator; Backhoe operator (up to and including 3/4 yd.), small ford, Case or similar; Cast-in-place pipe laying machine operator; Combination mixer and compressor operator (gunite work); Compactor operator (self-propelled); Concrete mixer operator (paving); Crushing plant operator; Drill Doctor; Drilling machine operator, Bucket or auger types (Calweld 150 bucket or similar types - Watson 1500, 2000 2500 auger or similar types - Texoma 700, 800 auger or similar types drilling depth of 60' maximum); Elevating grader operator; Grade checker; Gradall operator; Grouting machine operator; Heavy-duty repairman; Heavy equipment robotics operator; Kalamazoo balliste regulator or similar type; Kolman belt loader and similar type; Le Tourneau blob compactor or similar type; Loader operator (Athey, Euclid, Sierra and similar types); Mobark Chipper or similar; Ozzie padder or similar types; P.C. slot saw; Pneumatic concrete placing machine operator (Hackley-Presswell or similar type); Pumpcrete gun operator; Rock Drill or similar types; Rotary drill operator (excluding caisson type); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. up to and including 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (multiple engine up to and including 25 yds. struck); Rubber-tired scraper operator (self-loading paddle wheel

type-John Deere, 1040 and similar single unit); Self-propelled curb and gutter machine operator; Shuttle buggy; Skiploader operator (crawler and wheel type over 1-1/2 yds. up to and including 6-1/2 yds.); Soil remediation plant operator; Surface heaters and planer operator; Tractor compressor drill combination operator; Tractor operator (any type larger than D-5 - 100 flywheel h.p. and over, or similar-bulldozer, tamper, scraper and push tractor single engine); Tractor operator (boom attachments), Traveling pipe wrapping, cleaning and bendng machine operator; Trenching machine operator (over 6 ft. depth capacity, manufacturer's rating); trenching Machine with Road Miner attachment (over 6 ft depth capacity): Ultra high pressure waterjet cutting tool system mechanic; Water pull (compaction) operator

GROUP 9: Heavy Duty Repairman

GROUP 10: Drilling machine operator, Bucket or auger types (Calweld 200 B bucket or similar types-Watson 3000 or 5000 auger or similar types-Texoma 900 auger or similar types-drilling depth of 105' maximum); Dual drum mixer, dynamic compactor LDC350 (or similar types); Monorail locomotive operator (diesel, gas or electric); Motor patrol-blade operator (single engine); Multiple engine tractor operator (Euclid and similar type-except Quad 9 cat.); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Pneumatic pipe ramming tool and similar types; Prestressed wrapping machine operator; Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber tired earth moving equipment operator (multiple engine, Euclid, caterpillar and similar over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck), Tower crane repairman; Tractor loader operator (crawler and wheel type over 6-1/2 yds.); Woods mixer operator (and similar Pugmill equipment)

GROUP 11: Heavy Duty Repairman - Welder Combination, Welder - Certified.

GROUP 12: Auto grader operator; Automatic slip form operator; Drilling machine operator, bucket or auger types (Calweld, auger 200 CA or similar types - Watson, auger 6000 or similar types - Hughes Super Duty, auger 200 or similar types - drilling depth of 175' maximum); Hoe ram or similar with compressor; Mass excavator operator less tha 750 cu. yards; Mechanical finishing machine operator; Mobile form

traveler operator; Motor patrol operator (multi-engine); Pipe mobile machine operator; Rubber-tired earth- moving equipment operator (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired self- loading scraper operator (paddle-wheel-auger type self-loading - two (2) or more units)

GROUP 13: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 14: Canal liner operator; Canal trimmer operator; Remote- control earth-moving equipment operator (operating a second piece of equipment: \$1.00 per hour additional); Wheel excavator operator (over 750 cu. yds.)

GROUP 15: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. and up to and including 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine-up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 16: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 17: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 50 cu. yds. struck); Tandem tractor operator (operating crawler type tractors in tandem - Quad 9 and similar type)

GROUP 18: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 19: Rotex concrete belt operator (or similar types); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds.and up to and including 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 20: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps, and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 21: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck)

GROUP 22: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 23: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. and up to and including 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 24: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 25: Concrete pump operator-truck mounted; Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck)

CRANES, PILEDRIVING AND HOISTING EQUIPMENT CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Engineer oiler; Fork lift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types)

GROUP 2: Truck crane oiler

GROUP 3: A-frame or winch truck operator; Ross carrier operator (jobsite)

GROUP 4: Bridge-type unloader and turntable operator; Helicopter hoist operator

GROUP 5: Hydraulic boom truck; Stinger crane (Austin-Western or similar type); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum)

GROUP 6: Bridge crane operator; Cretor crane operator; Hoist operator (Chicago boom and similar type); Lift mobile operator; Lift slab machine operator (Vagtborg and similar types); Material hoist and/or manlift operator; Polar gantry crane operator; Self Climbing scaffold (or similar type); Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 3/4 yd. and up to 5 cu. yds. mrc); Tugger hoist operator

GROUP 7: Pedestal crane operator; Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 5 cu. yds. mrc); Tower crane repair; Tugger hoist operator (3 drum)

GROUP 8: Crane operator (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Crawler transporter operator; Derrick barge operator (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 7 cu. yds., M.R.C.)

GROUP 9: Crane operator (over 25 tons and up to and including 50 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 25 tons up to and including 50 tons mrc); Highline cableway operator; Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 25 tons up to and including 50 tons mrc); K-crane operator; Polar crane operator; Self erecting tower crane operator maximum lifting capacity ten tons

GROUP 10: Crane operator (over 50 tons and up to and including 100 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 50 tons up to and including 100 tons mrc); Hoist operator,

stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 50 tons up to and including 100 tons mrc), Mobile tower crane operator (over 50 tons, up to and including 100 tons M.R.C.); Tower crane operator and tower gantry

GROUP 11: Crane operator (over 100 tons and up to and including 200 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc); Mobile tower crane operator (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc)

GROUP 12: Crane operator (over 200 tons up to and including 300 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 200 tons up to and including 300 tons mrc); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 200 tons, up to and including 300 tons mrc); Mobile tower crane operator (over 200 tons, up to and including 300 tons mrc)

GROUP 13: Crane operator (over 300 tons); Derrick barge operator (over 300 tons); Helicopter pilot; Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 300 tons); Mobile tower crane operator (over 300 tons)

TUNNEL CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Skiploader (wheel type up to 3/4 yd. without attachment)

GROUP 2: Power-driven jumbo form setter operator

GROUP 3: Dinkey locomotive or motorperson (up to and including 10 tons)

GROUP 4: Bit sharpener; Equipment greaser (grease truck); Slip form pump operator (power-driven hydraulic lifting device for concrete forms); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum); Tunnel locomotive operator (over 10 and up to and including 30 tons)

GROUP 5: Backhoe operator (up to and including 3/4 yd.); Small Ford, Case or similar; Drill doctor; Grouting machine operator; Heading shield operator; Heavy-duty repairperson; Loader operator (Athey, Euclid, Sierra and similar types); Mucking machine operator (1/4 yd., rubber-tired, rail or track type); Pneumatic concrete placing machine operator (Hackley-Presswell or similar type); Pneumatic heading shield (tunnel); Pumpcrete gun operator; Tractor compressor drill combination operator; Tugger hoist operator (2 drum); Tunnel locomotive operator (over 30 tons)

GROUP 6: Heavy Duty Repairman

GROUP 7: Tunnel mole boring machine operator

ENGINEERS ZONES

\$1.00 additional per hour for all of IMPERIAL County and the portions of KERN, RIVERSIDE & SAN BERNARDINO Counties as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin in San Bernardino County, approximately 3 miles NE of the intersection of I-15 and the California State line at that point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N,m R14E, San Bernardino Meridian. Continue W in a straight line to that point which is the SW corner of the northwest guarter of Section 6, T27S, R42E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue North to the intersection with the Inyo County Boundary at that point which is the NE corner of the western half of the northern quarter of Section 6, T25S, R42E, MDM. Continue W along the Invo and San Bernardino County boundary until the intersection with Kern County, as that point which is the SE corner of Section 34, T24S, R40E, MDM. Continue W along the Inyo and Kern County boundary until the intersection with Tulare County, at that point which is the SW corner of the SE quarter of Section 32, T24S, R37E, MDM. Continue W along the Kern and Tulare County boundary, until that point which is the NW corner of T25S, R32E, MDM. Continue S following R32E lines to the NW corner of T31S, R32E, MDM. Continue W to the NW corner of T31S, R31E, MDM. Continue S to the SW corner of T32S, R31E, MDM. Continue W to SW corner of SE quarter of Section 34, T32S, R30E, MDM. Continue S to SW corner of T11N, R17W, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T11N, SBM to SW corner of T11N, R7W, SBM. Continue S to SW corner of T9N, R7W, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T9N, SBM to SW corner of T9N, R1E, SBM. Continue S along west boundary of R1E, SMB to Riverside County line at the SW corner of T1S, R1E, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T1s, SBM (Riverside County Line) to SW corner of T1S, R10E, SBM. Continue S along west boundary of R10E, SBM to Imperial County line at the SW corner of T8S, R10E, SBM. Continue W along Imperial and Riverside county line to NW corner of T9S, R9E, SBM. Continue S along the boundary between Imperial and San Diego Counties, along the west edge of R9E,

SBM to the south boundary of Imperial County/California state line. Follow the California state line west to Arizona state line, then north to Nevada state line, then continuing NW back to start at the point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N, R14E, SBM

\$1.00 additional per hour for portions of SAN LUIS OBISPO, KERN, SANTA BARBARA & VENTURA as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin approximately 5 miles north of the community of Cholame, on the Monterey County and San Luis Obispo County boundary at the NW corner of T25S, R16E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue south along the west side of R16E to the SW corner of T30S, R16E, MDM. Continue E to SW corner of T30S, R17E, MDM. Continue S to SW corner of T31S, R17E, MDM. Continue E to SW corner of T31S, R18E, MDM. Continue S along West side of R18E, MDM as it crosses into San Bernardino Meridian numbering area and becomes R30W. Follow the west side of R30W, SBM to the SW corner of T9N, R30W, SBM. Continue E along the south edge of T9N, SBM to the Santa Barbara County and Ventura County boundary at that point whch is the SW corner of Section 34.T9N, R24W, SBM, continue S along the Ventura County line to that point which is the SW corner of the SE quarter of Section 32, T7N, R24W, SBM. Continue E along the south edge of T7N, SBM to the SE corner to T7N, R21W, SBM. Continue N along East side of R21W, SBM to Ventura County and Kern County boundary at the NE corner of T8N, R21W. Continue W along the Ventura County and Kern County boundary to the SE corner of T9N, R21W. Continue North along the East edge of R21W, SBM to the NE corner of T12N, R21W, SBM. Continue West along the north edge of T12N, SBM to the SE corner of T32S, R21E, MDM. [T12N SBM is a think strip between T11N SBM and T32S MDM]. Continue North along the East side of R21E, MDM to the Kings County and Kern County border at the NE corner of T25S, R21E, MDM, continue West along the Kings County and Kern County Boundary until the intersection of San Luis Obispo County. Continue west along the Kings County and San Luis Obispo County boundary until the intersection with Monterey County. Continue West along the Monterey County and San Luis Obispo County boundary to the beginning point at the NW corner of T25S, R16E, MDM.

\$2.00 additional per hour for INYO and MONO Counties and the Northern portion of SAN BERNARDINO County as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin at the intersection of the northern boundary of Mono County and the California state line at the point which is the center of Section 17, T10N, R22E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue S then SE along the entire western boundary of Mono County, until it reaches Inyo County at the point which is the NE corner of the Western half of the NW guarter of Section 2, T8S, R29E, MDM. Continue SSE along the entire western boundary of Inyo County, until the intersection with Kern County at the point which is the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 32, T24S, R37E, MDM. Continue E along the Inyo and Kern County boundary until the intersection with San Bernardino County at that point which is the SE corner of section 34, T24S, R40E, MDM. Continue E along the Inyo and San Bernardino County boundary until the point which is the NE corner of the Western half of the NW quarter of Section 6, T25S, R42E, MDM. Continue S to that point which is the SW corner of the NW quarter of Section 6, T27S, R42E, MDM. Continue E in a straight line to the California and Nevada state border at the point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N, R14E, San Bernardino Meridian. Then continue NW along the state line to the starting point, which is the center of Section 18, T10N, R22E, MDM.

REMAINING AREA NOT DEFINED ABOVE RECIEVES BASE RATE

ENGI0012-004 08/01/2015

Rates Fringes

OPERATOR: Power Equipment (DREDGING)

| (1) Leverman | \$ 49.50 | 23.60 |
|--------------------|----------|-------|
| (2) Dredge dozer | \$ 43.53 | 23.60 |
| (3) Deckmate | \$ 43.42 | 23.60 |
| (4) Winch operator | r (stern | |
| winch on dredge) | \$ 42.87 | 23.60 |
| (5) Fireman-Oiler, | | |
| Deckhand, Bargen | nan, | |
| Leveehand | \$ 42.33 | 23.60 |
| (6) Barge Mate | \$ 42.94 | 23.60 |
| | | |

IRON0377-002 01/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Ironworkers:

Fence Erector.....\$ 29.58 21.59

Ornamental, Reinforcing

and Structural.....\$ 36.00 30.15

PREMIUM PAY:

\$6.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

China Lake Naval Test Station, Chocolate Mountains Naval Reserve-Niland,

Edwards AFB, Fort Irwin Military Station, Fort Irwin Training Center-Goldstone, San Clemente Island, San Nicholas Island, Susanville Federal Prison, 29 Palms - Marine Corps, U.S. Marine Base - Barstow, U.S. Naval Air Facility - Sealey, Vandenberg AFB

\$4.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

Army Defense Language Institute - Monterey, Fallon Air Base, Naval Post Graduate School - Monterey, Yermo Marine Corps Logistics Center

\$2.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

Port Hueneme, Port Mugu, U.S. Coast Guard Station - Two Rock

LABO0089-001 07/18/2016

Rates Fringes

LABORER (BUILDING and all other Residential

Construction)

| Group 1 | \$ 29.42 | 19.78 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| Group 2 | \$ 30.10 | 19.78 |
| Group 3 | \$ 30.81 | 19.78 |
| Group 4 | \$ 31.61 | 19.78 |
| Group 5 | \$ 33.54 | 19.78 |

LABORER (RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION - See definition below)

(1) Laborer.....\$ 27.32 18.11

(2) Cleanup, Landscape,

Fencing (Chain Link & Wood).\$ 26.03 18.11

RESIDENTIAL DEFINITION: Wood or metal frame construction of single family residences, apartments and condominums - excluding (a) projects that exceed three stories over a garage level, (b) any utility work such as telephone, gas, water, sewer and other utilities and (c) any fine grading work, utility work or paving work in the future street and public right-of-way; but including all rough grading work at the job site behind the existing right of way

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Cleaning and handling of panel forms; Concrete Screeding for Rought Strike-off; Concrete, water curing; Demolition laborer; Flagman; Gas, oil and/or water pipeline laborer; General Laborer; General clean-up laborer; Landscape laborer; Jetting laborer; Temporary water and air lines laborer; Material hoseman (walls, slabs, floors and decks); Plugging, filling of Shee-bolt holes; Dry packing of concrete; Railroad maintenance, Repair Trackman and road beds, Streetcar and railroad construction trac laborers; Slip form raisers; Slurry seal crews (mixer operator, applicator operator, squeegee man, Shuttle man, top man), filling of cracks by any method on any surface; Tarman and mortar man; Tool crib or tool house laborer; Window cleaner; Wire Mesh puling-all concrete pouring operations

GROUP 2: Asphalt Shoveler; Cement Dumper (on 1 yard or larger mixer and handling bulk cement); Cesspool digger and installer; Chucktender; Chute man, pouring concrete, the handling of the cute from ready mix trucks, such as walls, slabs, decks, floors, foundations, footings, curbs, gutters and sidewalks; Concrete curer-impervious membrane and form oiler; Cutting torch operator (demoliton); Guinea chaser; Headboard man-asphlt; Laborer, packing rod steel and pans; membrane vapor barrier installer; Power broom sweepers (small); Riiprap, stonepaver, placing stone or wet sacked concrete; Roto scraper and tiller; Tank sealer and cleaner; Tree climber, faller, chain saw

operator, Pittsburgh Chipper and similar type brush shredders; Underground laborers, including caisson bellower

GROUP 3: Buggymobile; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete pile cutter; Driller, jackhammer, 2 1/2 feet drill steel or longer; Dri Pak-it machine; High sealer (including drilling of same); Hydro seeder and similar type; Impact wrench, mult-plate; Kettlemen, potmen and mean applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, line caustic and similar type materials (applying means applying, dipping, brushing or handling of such materials for pipe wrapping and waterproofing); Operators of pneumatic, gas, electric tools, vibratring machines, pavement breakers, air blasting, come-along, and similar mechanical tools not separately classified herein; Pipelayers back up man coating, grouting, making of joints, sealing, caulking, diapering and inclduing rubber gasket joints, pointing and any and all other services; Rotary Scarifier or multiple head concrete chipping scaarifier; Steel header board man and guideline setter; Tampers, Barko, Wacker and similar type; Trenching machine, handpropelled

GROUP 4: Asphalt raker, luterman, ironer, apshalt dumpman and asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Concrete core cutter (walls, floors or ceilings), Grinder or sander; Concrete saw man: cutting walls or flat work, scoring old or new concrete; Cribber, shorer, lagging, sheeting and trench bracing, hand-guided lagging hammer; Laser beam in connection with laborer's work; Oversize concrete vibrator operator 70 pounds and over; Pipelayer performing all services in the laying, installation and all forms of connection of pipe from the point of receiving pipe in the ditch until completion of oepration, including any and all forms of tubular material, whether pipe, metallic or non-metallic, conduit, and any other stationary type of tubular device used for the conveying of any substance or element, whether water, sewage, solid, gas, air or other product whatsoever and without regard to the nature of material from which the tubular material is fabricated: No joint pipe and stripping of same; Prefabricated manhole installer; Sandblaster (nozzleman), Porta shot-blast, water blasting

GROUP 5: Blasters Powderman-All work of loading holes, placing and blasting of all pwder and explosives of whatever type, regardless of method used for such loading and placing; Driller-all power drills, excluding

jackhammer, whether core, diamond, wagon, track, multiple unit, and any and all other types of mechanical drills without regard to the form of motive power.

.....

LABO0089-002 11/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Fringes

LABORER (MASON TENDER)......\$ 30.00 16.47

LABO0089-004 07/01/2017

HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

| | | J |
|-----------|----------|-------|
| Laborers: | | |
| Group 1 | \$ 31.63 | 18.58 |
| Group 2 | \$ 32.09 | 18.58 |
| Group 3 | \$ 32.50 | 18.58 |
| Group 4 | \$ 33.34 | 18.58 |
| Group 5 | \$ 37.46 | 18.58 |

Rates

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Laborer: General or Construction Laborer, Landscape Laborer. Asphalt Rubber Material Loader. Boring Machine Tender (outside), Carpenter Laborer (cleaning, handling, oiling & blowing of panel forms and lumber), Concrete Laborer, Concrete Screeding for rough strike-off, Concrete water curing. Concrete Curb & Gutter laborer, Certified Confined Space Laborer, Demolition laborer & Cleaning of Brick and lumber, Expansion Joint Caulking; Environmental Remediation, Monitoring Well, Toxic waste and Geotechnical Drill tender, Fine Grader, Fire Watcher, Limbers, Brush Loader, Pilers and Debris Handlers. flagman. Gas Oil and Water Pipeline Laborer. Material Hoseman (slabs, walls, floors, decks); Plugging, filling of shee bolt holes; Dry packing of concrete and patching; Post Holer Digger (manual); Railroad maintenance, repair trackman, road beds; Rigging & signaling; Scaler, Slip-Form Raisers, Filling cracks on any surface, tool Crib or Tool House Laborer, Traffic control (signs, barriers, barricades, delineator, cones etc.), Window Cleaner

GROUP 2: Asphalt abatement; Buggymobile; Cement dumper (on 1 yd. or larger mixers and handling bulk cement); Concrete curer, impervious membrane and form oiler; Chute man, pouring concrete; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete pile cutter; driller/Jackhammer, with drill steel 2 1/'2 feet or longer; Dry pak-it machine; Fence erector; Pipeline wrapper, gas, oil, water, pot tender & form man; Grout man; Installation of all asphalt overlay fabric and materials used for reinforcing asphalt; Irrigation laborer; Kettleman-Potman hot mop, includes applying asphalt, lay-klold, creosote, lime caustic and similar tyhpes of materials (dipping, brushing, handling) and waterproofing; Membrane vapor barrier installer; Pipelayer backup man (coating, grouting, making of joints, sealing caulkiing, diapering including rubber basket joints, pointing); Rotary scarifier, multiple head concrete chipper; Rock slinger; Roto scraper & tiller; Sandblaster pot tender; Septic tank digger/installer; Tamper/wacker operator; Tank scaler & cleaner; Tar man & mortar man; Tree climber/faller, chainb saw operator, Pittsburgh chipper & similar type brush shredders.

GROUP 3: Asphalt, installation of all frabrics; Buggy Mobile Man, Bushing hammer; Compactor (all types), Concrete Curer - Impervious membrane, Form Oiler, Concrete Cutting Torch, Concrete Pile Cutter, Driller/Jackhammer with drill steel 2 1/2 ft or longer, Dry Pak-it machine, Fence erector including manual post hole digging, Gas oil or water Pipeline Wrapper - 6 ft pipe and over, Guradrail erector, Hydro seeder, Impact Wrench man (multi plate), kettleman-Potman Hot Mop includes applying Asphalt, Lay-Kold, Creosote, lime caustic and similar types of materials (dipping, brushing or handling) and waterproofing. Laser Beam in connection with Laborer work. High Scaler, Operators of Pneumatic Gas or Electric Tools, Vibrating Machines, Pavement Breakers, Air Blasting, Come-Alongs and similar mechanical tools, Remote-Controlled Robotic Tools in connection with Laborers work. Pipelayer Backup Man (Coating, grouting, m makeing of joints, sealing, caulking, diapering including rubber gasket joints, pointing and other services). Power Post Hole Digger, Rotary Scarifier (multiple head concrete chipper scarifier), Rock Slinger, Shot Blast equipment (8 to 48 inches), Steel Headerboard Man and Guideline Setter, Tamper/Wacker operator and similar types, Trenching Machine hand propelled.

GROUP 4: Any worker exposed to raw sewage. Asphalt Raker, Luteman, Asphalt Dumpman, Asphalt Spreader Boxes, Concrete Core Cutter, Concrete Saw Man, Cribber, Shorer, Head Rock Slinger. Installation of subsurface instrumentation, monitoring wells or points, remediation system installer; Laborer, asphalt-rubber distributor bootman; Oversize concrete vibrator operators, 70 pounds or over. Pipelayer, Prfefabricated Manhole Installer, Sandblast Nozzleman (Water Balsting-Porta Shot Blast), Traffic Lane Closure.

GROUP 5: Blasters Powderman-All work of loading holes, placing and blasting of all powder and explosives of whatever type, regardless of method used for such loading and placing; Horizontal directional driller, Boring system, Electronic traking, Driller: all power drills excluding jackhammer, whether core, diamond, wagon, track, multiple unit, and all other types of mechanical drills without regard to form of motive power. Environmental remediation, Monitoring well, Toxic waste and Geotechnical driller, Toxic waste removal. Welding in connection with Laborer's work.

LABO0300-005 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Removal Laborer......\$ 33.19 17.78

SCOPE OF WORK: Includes site mobilization, initial site cleanup, site preparation, removal of asbestos-containing material and toxic waste, encapsulation, enclosure and disposal of asbestos- containing materials and toxic waste by hand or with equipment or machinery; scaffolding, fabrication of temporary wooden barriers and assembly of decontamination stations.

.....

LABO1184-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Laborers: (HORIZONTAL DIRECTIONAL DRILLING)

(1) Drilling Crew Laborer...\$ 34.65(2) Vehicle Operator/Hauler.\$ 34.8213.20

(3) Horizontal Directional

| Drill Operator | \$ 36.67 | 13.20 |
|----------------------|----------|-------|
| (4) Electronic Trac | king | |
| Locator | \$ 38.67 | 13.20 |
| Laborers: (STRIPING/ | SLURRY | |
| SEAL) | | |
| GROUP 1 | \$ 35.86 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 2 | \$ 37.16 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 39.17 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 4 | \$ 40.91 | 16.21 |

LABORERS - STRIPING CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Protective coating, pavement sealing, including repair and filling of cracks by any method on any surface in parking lots, game courts and playgrounds; carstops; operation of all related machinery and equipment; equipment repair technician

GROUP 2: Traffic surface abrasive blaster; pot tender - removal of all traffic lines and markings by any method (sandblasting, waterblasting, grinding, etc.) and preparation of surface for coatings. Traffic control person: controlling and directing traffic through both conventional and moving lane closures; operation of all related machinery and equipment

GROUP 3: Traffic delineating device applicator: Layout and application of pavement markers, delineating signs, rumble and traffic bars, adhesives, guide markers, other traffic delineating devices including traffic control. This category includes all traffic related surface preparation (sandblasting, waterblasting, grinding) as part of the application process. Traffic protective delineating system installer: removes, relocates, installs, permanently affixed roadside and parking delineation barricades, fencing, cable anchor, guard rail, reference signs, monument markers; operation of all related machinery and equipment; power broom sweeper

GROUP 4: Striper: layout and application of traffic stripes and markings; hot thermo plastic; tape traffic stripes and markings, including traffic control; operation of all related machinery and equipment

LABO1414-003 08/02/2017

Rates Fringes

LABORER

PLASTER CLEAN-UP LABORER....\$ 35.50 18.29 PLASTER TENDER.....\$ 38.05 18.29

Work on a swing stage scaffold: \$1.00 per hour additional.

Work at Military Bases - \$3.00 additional per hour:
Coronado Naval Amphibious Base, Fort Irwin, Marine Corps Air
Station-29 Palms, Imperial Beach Naval Air Station, Marine
Corps Logistics Supply Base, Marine Corps Pickle Meadows,
Mountain Warfare Training Center, Naval Air
Facility-Seeley, North Island Naval Air Station, Vandenberg
AFB.

PAIN0036-001 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

Painters: (Including Lead

Abatement)

(1) Repaint (excludes San

Diego County)......\$ 27.59 14.14 (2) All Other Work......\$ 31.12 14.14

REPAINT of any previously painted structure. Exceptions: work involving the aerospace industry, breweries, commercial recreational facilities, hotels which operate commercial establishments as part of hotel service, and sports facilities.

.....

PAIN0036-010 10/01/2017

Rates Fringes

DRYWALL FINISHER/TAPER

(1) Building & Heavy

Construction......\$ 30.24 16.95

(2) Residential

Construction (Wood frame apartments, single family homes and multi-duplexes

up to and including four stories).....\$ 23.50 15.96 PAIN0036-012 10/01/2017

Rates Fringes

GLAZIER.....\$ 42.55 11.64

PAIN0036-019 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

SOFT FLOOR LAYER......\$ 30.02 13.68

PLAS0200-005 08/02/2017

Rates Fringes

PLASTERER.....\$ 41.26 14.46

NORTH ISLAND NAVAL AIR STATION, COLORADO NAVAL AMPHIBIOUS BASE, IMPERIAL BEACH NAVAL AIR STATION: \$3.00 additional per hour.

.-----

PLAS0500-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER

| GROUP 1 | \$ 26.34 | 19.77 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 2 | \$ 27.99 | 19.77 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 29.57 | 19.77 |

CEMENT MASONS - work inside the building line, meeting the following criteria:

GROUP 1: Residential wood frame project of any size; work classified as Type III, IV or Type V construction; interior tenant improvement work regardless the size of the project; any wood frame project of four stories or less.

GROUP 2: Work classified as type I and II construction

GROUP 3: All other work

PLUM0016-006 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER, PIPEFITTER, **STEAMFITTER**

> Camp Pendleton.....\$ 53.78 21.61

Plumber and Pipefitter All other work except work on new additions and remodeling of bars, restaurant, stores and commercial buildings not to exceed 5,000 sq. ft. of floor space and work

on strip malls, light

commercial, tenant improvement and remodel

work.....\$ 49.28 21.61

Work ONLY on new additions

and remodeling of

commercial buildings,

bars, restaurants, and

stores not to exceed 5,000

sq. ft. of floor space.....\$ 47.76 20.63

Work ONLY on strip malls, light commercial, tenant improvement and remodel

work.....\$ 36.91

18.96

PLUM0016-011 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER

Residential.....\$ 39.91 17.53

PLUM0078-001 07/01/2016

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER

Landscape/Irrigation Fitter.\$ 44.16 25.19 Sewer & Storm Drain Work....\$ 44.16 25.19

ROOF0045-001 07/01/2017

| es |
|----|
| |

ROOFER......\$ 30.73 8.43

SFCA0669-001 04/01/2017

Rates Fringes

SPRINKLER FITTER.....\$ 39.17 15.84

SHEE0206-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

SHEET METAL WORKER

 Camp Pendleton......\$ 38.88
 26.52

 Except Camp Pendleton......\$ 36.88
 26.52

 Sheet Metal Technician.....\$ 27.70
 8.43

SHEET METAL TECHNICIAN - SCOPE:

a. Existing residential buildings, both single and multi-family, where each unit is heated and/or cooled by a separate system b. New single family residential buildings including tracts. c. New multi-family residential buildings, not exceeding five stories of living space in height, provided each unit is heated or cooled by a separate system. Hotels and motels are excluded. d. LIGHT COMMERCIAL WORK: Any sheet metal, heating and air conditioning work performed on a project where the total construction cost, excluding land, is under \$1,000,000 e. TENANT IMPROVEMENT WORK: Any work necessary to finish interior spaces to conform to the occupants of commercial buildings, after completion of the building shell

TEAM0166-001 07/03/2017

| Rates | Fringes |
|-------|---------|
| | |

Truck drivers:

| GROUP 1 | \$ 15.90 | 32.69 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 2 | \$ 23.49 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 23.69 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 4 | \$ 23.89 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 5 | \$ 24.09 | 32 69 |

| GROUP 6 | \$ 24.59 | 32.69 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 7 | \$ 26.09 | 32.69 |

FOOTNOTE: HAZMAT PAY: Work on a hazmat job, where hazmat certification is required, shall be paid, in addition to the classification working in, as follows: Levels A, B and C - +\$1.00 per hour. Workers shall be paid hazmat pay in increments of four (4) and eight (8) hours.

TRUCK DRIVER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Fuel Man, Swamper

GROUP 2: 2-axle Dump Truck, 2-axle Flat Bed, Concrete Pumping Truck, Industrial Lift Truck, Motorized Traffic Control, Pickup Truck on Jobsite

GROUP 3: 2-axle Water Truck, 3-axle Dump Truck, 3-axle Flat Bed, Erosion Control Nozzleman, Dump Crete Truck under 6.5 yd, Forklift 15,000 lbs and over, Prell Truck, Pipeline Work Truck Driver, Road Oil Spreader, Cement Distributor or Slurry Driver, Bootman, Ross Carrier

GROUP 4: Off-road Dump Truck under 35 tons 4-axles but less than 7-axles, Low-Bed Truck & Trailer, Transit Mix Trucks under 8 yd, 3-axle Water Truck, Erosion Control Driver, Grout Mixer Truck, Dump Crete 6.5yd and over, Dumpster Trucks, DW 10, DW 20 and over, Fuel Truck and Dynamite, Truck Greaser, Truck Mounted Mobile Sweeper 2-axle Winch Truck

GROUP 5: Off-road Dump Truck 35 tons and over, 7-axles or more, Transit Mix Trucks 8 yd and over, A-Frame Truck, Swedish Cranes

GROUP 6: Off-Road Special Equipment (including but not limited to Water Pull Tankers, Athey Wagons, DJB, B70 Wuclids or like Equipment)

| GROUP 7: | Repairman | |
|----------|-----------|--|
| | | |

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198

indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material,

etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

12. SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968 (CDBG HUD ONLY):

- 12.1. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.
- **12.2.** The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
- **12.3.** The Contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.
- 12.4. The Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the Subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135. The Contractor will not subcontract with any Subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the Subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations.
- 12.5. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its Contractors and Subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135

13. FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS:

APPLICABILITY: The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions

(Office of the Secretary of Labor 29 CFR 5) are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance.

SECTION A.

1. Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project) will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section I(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The Federal Agency or its designee shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination

- **(b)** If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- **(c)** In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding.

The Federal Agency or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of

1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal Agency or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

- Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the (i) course of the work preserved for a period of 3 years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Federal Agency or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Agency or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired.

Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at https://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347.pdf or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.

Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the Federal

Agency or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Agency, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, sponsor, or, owner).

- **(b)** Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- **(c)** The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b)of this section.
- **(d)** The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Agency or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, Federal agency or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.

Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ',to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in

accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) **Equal Employment Opportunity.** The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance With Copeland Act Requirements.

The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.59(a)(1) through (10 and such other clauses as the Federal Agency may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

7. Contract Termination; Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the

procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

- (i) Certification of Eligibility. By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1)...
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.
- **SECTION B.** The provisions of this section B are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

1. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

- (i) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.
- (ii) Violation; Liability For Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (B)(1)(i) of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (B)(1)(i) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (B)(1)(i) of this section.
- (iii) Withholding For Unpaid Wages And Liquidated Damages. The Federal Agency or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative

of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (B)(1)(ii) of this section.

- **Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (B)(1)(i) through (B)(1)(iv) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (B)(1)(i) through (B)(1)(iv) of this section.
- 2. In addition to the clauses contained in Section B, in any contract subject only to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes cited in 29 CFR 5.1, the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert a clause requiring that the contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. Further, the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert in any such contract a clause providing that the records to be maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the (write the name of agency) and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.

SECTION C.

1. Compliance Verification.

- (i) The Recipient shall periodically interview a sufficient number of employees entitled to DB prevailing wages (covered employees) to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the appropriate wage rates. As provided in 29 CFR 5.6(a)(6), all interviews must be conducted in confidence. Use Standard Form 1445 (SF 1445) or equivalent documentation to memorialize the interviews. Copies of the SF 1445 are available from the funding agency upon request.
- (ii) The Recipient shall establish and follow an interview schedule based on its assessment of the risks of noncompliance with DB posed by contractors or subcontractors and the duration of the contract or subcontract. At a minimum, the Recipient should conduct interviews with a representative group of covered employees within two weeks of each contractor or subcontractor's submission of its initial weekly payroll data and two weeks prior to the estimated completion date for the contract or subcontract. The Recipient must conduct more frequent interviews if the initial interviews or other

information indicates that there is a risk that the contractor or subcontractor is not complying with DB. The Recipient shall immediately conduct necessary interviews in response to an alleged violation of the prevailing wage requirements. All interviews shall be conducted in confidence.

- (iii) The Recipient shall periodically conduct spot checks of a representative sample of weekly payroll data to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the appropriate wage rates. The Recipient shall establish and follow a spot check schedule based on its assessment of the risks of noncompliance with DB posed by contractors or subcontractors and the duration of the contract or subcontract. At a minimum, if practicable the Recipient shall spot check payroll data within two weeks of each contractor or subcontractor's submission of its initial payroll data and two weeks prior to the completion date the contract or subcontract. The Recipient must conduct more frequent spot checks if the initial spot check or other information indicates that there is a risk that the contractor or subcontractor is not complying with DB. In addition, during the examinations the Recipient shall verify evidence of fringe benefit plans and payments thereunder by contractors and subcontractors who claim credit for fringe benefit contributions.
- (iv) The Recipient shall periodically review contractors and subcontractors use of apprentices and trainees to verify registration and certification with respect to apprenticeship and training programs approved by either the U.S Department of Labor or a state, as appropriate, and that contractors and subcontractors are not using disproportionate numbers of, laborers, trainees and apprentices. These reviews shall be conducted in accordance with the schedules for spot checks and interviews described in subsection (ii) and (iii) above.
- (v) The Recipient must immediately report potential violations of the DB prevailing wage requirements to the funding agency DB contact listed above and to the appropriate DOL Wage and Hour District Office listed at http://www.dol.gov/whd/america2.htm.

14. AGENCY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

Note: Failure to comply with these specifications e.g., taking the specified steps prior to Bid opening and submitting the forms with the Bid, will lead to the Bid being declared **non-responsive** and, therefore, shall be rejected.

14.1. CDBG HUD Requirements:

- **14.1.1.** Affirmative Good Faith Effort Steps shall include the steps listed at 24 CFR 85.36(e)(2), set forth below:
 - 1. Placing qualified DBE business enterprises on solicitation lists;
 - 2. Assuring that DBE business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

- 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBE business enterprises;
- 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by DBE business enterprises;
- 5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
- 6. Requiring the Subcontractors to take the affirmative steps listed in this section.
- 7. See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in these specifications. Include a completed copy of the form AA61, "List of Work Made Available" with the GFE documentation.

14.2. **DOE Requirements:**

- **14.2.1.** The Contractor shall take all necessary affirmative steps listed in 10 CFR 600.236(e)(2)(i) through (vi) to assure that minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.
- **14.2.2.** Affirmative GFE steps shall include:
 - 1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
 - 2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
 - 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises;
 - 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises;
 - 5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
 - 6. Requiring the Subcontractors, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in this section.
 - 7. The City will only accept certifications for the mandatory goals determined by the Department of Energy from the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) and the U.S. Department of Commerce Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA). Failure to solicit subcontractors from these agencies and to advertise for the required

- certifications will result in a bid deemed non compliant with the affirmative steps and therefore will be deemed **non-responsive**.
- 8. See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in these specifications. Include a completed copy of the form AA61, "List of Work Made Available" with the GFF documentation.

14.3. **DOI Requirements:**

14.3.1. The Contractor shall take all necessary affirmative GFE steps listed in 43 CFR12.76(e)(2)(i) through (vi) to assure that minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.

14.3.2. Affirmative GFE steps shall include:

- 1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- 2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
- 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises;
- 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises;
- 5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
- 6. Requiring the Subcontractors, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in this section.
- 7. See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in these specifications. Include a completed copy of the form AA61, "List of Work Made Available" with the GFE documentation.

14.4. **EPA Requirements:**

- 1. Federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) regulations apply to this project. (Reference 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 33 Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Programs).
- 2. The responsive Bid shall conform to GFE to increase DBE awareness of procurement opportunities through race and gender neutral efforts. Race and gender neutral efforts are ones which increase awareness of contracting opportunities in general, including outreach, recruitment and technical assistance.

- 3. Bidder agrees that it will cooperate with and assist the City in fulfilling the DBE Good Faith Effort Requirement achieving "fair share objectives" and will exercise GFE to achieve such minimum participation of small, minority and women owned businesses. In particular, in submitting a bid, the Bidder shall, in the selection of Subcontractors, and Suppliers for the procurement of equipment, supplies, construction, and services related to the project, at a minimum, undertake the affirmative GFE steps.
- 4. In accordance with EPA's Program for Utilization of Small, Minority Disadvantaged and Women Business Enterprises in procurement under Federal assistance programs, the Contractor agrees to the applicable "fair share objectives" as specified in the Notice Inviting Bids.
- 5. The provisions in the Contract Documents have been incorporated to prevent unfair practices that adversely affect DBEs.
- 6. If a DBE Subcontractor fails to complete the Work under the subcontract for any reason, the Contractor shall employ the 6 GFE if soliciting a replacement Subcontractor. The Contractor shall employ the 6 GFE described below even if the Contractor has achieved its fair share objectives.

7. Good Faith Efforts:

- a) The Contractor shall demonstrate that efforts were made to attract DBEs on this contract. The "Good Faith" effort requires the Contractor and any Subcontractors to take the steps listed in these specifications to assure that DBEs are used whenever possible as sources of supplies, construction, equipment, or services even if the Contractor has achieved its fair share objectives.
- b) If the Contractor awards subcontracts, it shall require the Subcontractors to take the steps in these specifications.
- c) For the EPA defined GFE, see the steps below:
 - Ensure DBEs are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities. For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing DBEs on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.
 - 2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by DBEs in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 15 Working Days before the bid or proposal closing date.
 - 3. Consider in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with DBEs. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this will include

dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBEs in the competitive process. Include with the GFE documentation a completed copy of the form AA61, "List of Work Made Available".

- 4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
- 5. Use the services and assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) and the Minority Business Development Agency (MDBA) of the Department of Commerce (DOC). See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in a later part these specifications.
- 6. If the Contractor awards Subcontracts, the Contractor shall take the steps in paragraphs (1) through (5) above.

14.4.1. Annual DBE Utilization Reporting:

The Contractor shall report to the City on an annual basis, their utilization of Minority Business Enterprise and Women's Business Enterprise Subcontractors and Suppliers using EPA Form 5700-52A.

14.5. <u>Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Requirements:</u>

- **14.5.1.** For contracts subject to CWSRF, refer to "EPA Requirements" above and the following:
- **14.5.2.** The Bidder shall take affirmative steps prior to Bid opening to assure that MBE's and WBE's are used whenever possible as sources of supplies, construction and services.
- **14.5.3.** The affirmative steps are defined for contracts funded by the California State Water Resources Control Board as follows:
 - Utilization of US Small Business Administration and Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA) resources is required at no cost. These agencies offer several services, including Internet access to databases of DBEs.
 - 2. For additional assistance, the Contractor can telephone the local offices of both agencies in their area (SBA Minority Enterprise Development Offices and DOC MBDA Regional Centers). The Internet web sites also include names, addresses, and phone or fax numbers of local SBA and MBDA centers. There are contact phone numbers listed in Step 3 that will assist you in reaching the 2 offices if the Internet is unavailable. Do not write to these sources.

- 3. The Contractor shall provide documentation that the local SBA/MBDA offices or web sites were notified of the contracting bid opportunity at least 15 Working Days prior to Bid opening and solicitation to DBE Subcontractors at least 10 Working Days prior to Bid opening. Documentation shall not only include the efforts to contact the information sources and list the Contract opportunity, but also the solicitation and response to the bid request.
- 4. Include qualified DBEs on solicitation lists (CWSRF Form 1) and record the information. Solicitation shall be as broad as possible.
- 5. If DBE sources are not located, explain why and describe the efforts made.
- 6. The Contractor shall send invitations to at least 3 (or all, if less than 3) DBE vendors for each item of the Work referred by sources contacted. The invitations shall adequately specify the items for which bids are requested. The record of GFE shall indicate a real desire for a positive response, such as a certified mail receipt or a documented telephone conversation.
- 7. A regular letter or an unanswered telephone call is not an adequate "good faith" effort. A list of all Subcontractors, including the bidders not selected and non DBE Subcontractors, and bid amount for each item of the Work shall be submitted on Form 5. If a low bid was not accepted, an explanation shall be provided.
- **14.5.4.** See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in a later part these specifications.

14.5.5. Annual DBE Utilization Reporting:

The Contractor shall report to the City on an annual basis, their utilization of Minority Business Enterprise and Women's Business Enterprise Subcontractors and Suppliers using California State Revolving Funds (CASRF) Form UR-334

14.6. Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) Requirements:

- **14.6.1.** For contracts subject to SDWSRF, refer to "EPA Requirements" above and the following:
- **14.6.2.** Each Bid shall include submission of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form, identifying each proposed Subcontractor and Supplier for the Project.
- **14.6.3.** Using the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form, the Bidder shall provide the following information for each proposed Subcontractor and Supplier:
 - 1. firm's name;

- 2. contact person;
- 3. entity's mailing address,
- 4. telephone nrwbustamumber;
- 5. e-mail address;
- 6. the procurement on which the proposed Subcontractor and Supplier quoted, and when; and
- 7. proposed Subcontractor and Supplier status as a DBE or non-DBE.
- **14.6.4.** The Apparent Low Bidder shall submit documentation showing that, prior to Bid opening, the required GFE was made. The documentation shall be received by the City within **4 Working Day** following Bid opening, except the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form, which is to be submitted with the Bid. Failure to submit Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form with the Bid will cause the Bid to be rejected as **nonresponsive.**
 - 1. If the Apparent Low Bidder is rejected or considered as non-responsible or has any non-responsive low DBE Subcontractor, a complete explanation must be provided to the City.
 - 2. Using the Verification of Qualification form below, Apparent Low Bidder shall provide evidence of certification by a federal, state, or local government entity for each DBE firm to be utilized. Such certification documentation shall be submitted within 4 Working Days following bid opening.
 - 3. If additional procurement becomes necessary after the Award of the Contract, the GFE shall be applied, and, if DBE Subcontracts are awarded, Verification of Qualification shall be provided to the City by the Contractor within 10 Working Days following the award of each new Subcontract.
 - 4. Any deviation from the information contained in Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form shall not result in a reduction of DBE participation without prior approval of the City.
 - 5. Failure of the Apparent Low Bidder to perform the 6 affirmative GFE steps prior to Bid opening, to submit Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Form with its bid, or both will lead to Bid being declared non-responsive. The City may then award the contract to the next low responsive, responsible Bidder meeting the requirements of these contract provisions.
- **14.6.5.** See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in a later part these specifications.

14.6.6. Annual DBE Utilization Reporting:

The Contractor shall report to the City on an annual basis, their utilization of Minority Business Enterprise and Women's Business Enterprise Subcontractors and Suppliers using California State Revolving Funds (CASRF) Form UR-334.

14.7. FHWA Requirements (Contracts via Caltrans):

- **14.7.1.** The Bidders' attention is directed to the provisions in Section 2, "Bidding", of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of and the submission of the bid.
- **14.7.2.** Bidders shall be fully informed with respect to the requirements of the DBE Regulations and take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) have opportunity to participate in the contract.
- **14.7.3.** The Contractors are encouraged to take positive steps to diversify and expand their subcontractor solicitation base and to offer contracting opportunities to all eligible DBE certified Subcontractors. To support its Equal Opportunity Contracting commitment, the City has implemented a project specific goal methodology required for all Caltrans funded projects.
- **14.7.4.** See the Notice Inviting Bids for the Subcontracting Participation requirements.
- **14.7.5.** The Bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 5, "Control of Work," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of and the submission of the bid.

14.8. FAA Requirements:

- **14.8.1.** All projects funded by the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration [FAA] are subject to the equal opportunity requirements set forth at 49 CFR Part 26, as well as the following Federal Requirements.
- **14.8.2.** The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. The provision shall be included in any agreements between Contractor and any Subcontractor.
- **14.8.3.** To ensure there is equal participation of the DBE groups specified in 49 CFR 26.5, the City specifies a goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs).
- **14.8.4.** The Bidder shall make Work available to DBEs and select Work parts consistent with available DBE Subcontractors and Suppliers.

- **14.8.5.** The Bidder Proposer shall meet the DBE goal shown in the Notice Inviting Bids or demonstrate that it made adequate GFE to meet this goal. Include a completed copy of the Form AA61, "List of Work Made Available" with the GFE documentation.
- **14.8.6.** It is the Bidder's responsibility to verify that the DBE is certified as DBE at date of Bid opening or Proposal due date. For a list of DBEs certified by the California Unified Certification Program, go to: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find_certified.htm.
- **14.8.7.** Only DBE participation will count towards the DBE goal. DBE participation will count towards the City's Annual Anticipated DBE Participation Level (AADPL) and the California statewide goal.
- **14.8.8.** Credit for materials or supplies Contractor purchases from DBEs counts towards the goal in the following manner:
 - 1. 100% counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer.
 - 2. 60% counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE regular dealer.
 - 3. Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the procurement and delivery of materials or supplies count if obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular dealer.
 - 49 CFR 26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer."
- **14.8.9.** The Contractor or Subcontractor will receive credit towards the goal if the Contractor or Subcontractor employs a DBE trucking company that performs a commercially useful function as defined in 49 CFR 26.55.
- **14.8.10.** Subcontracting Participation Goals:
 - 1. The Bidders are encouraged to take positive steps to diversify and expand their subcontractor solicitation base and to offer contracting opportunities to all eligible DBE certified Subcontractors. To support its Equal Opportunity Contracting commitment, the City has implemented a race-conscious and race neutral project specific goal methodology required for all FAA funded projects.
 - 2. The Bidder is required to meet the Project specific percentages for DBE's as outlined in the Notice Inviting Bids or satisfy good faith documentation requirements.
 - 3. The Bidder shall make good faith efforts, as defined in these specifications to meet the contract goal for DBE participation in the performance of this contract.
- 14.8.11. The Bidder shall include the City's DBE Policy Statement in all its

Subcontracts.

14.9. FAA Required Contract Provisions for Airport Improvement Program:

14.9.1. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

The contractor must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The contractor agrees to provide the City, the Federal Aviation Administration, and the Comptroller General of the United State or any of their duly authorized representatives, access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three (3) years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

14.9.2. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the contractor or its subcontractors may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement. The City will provide the contractor written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective actions the contractor must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract. City reserves the right to withhold payments to contractor until such time the contractor corrects the breach or the City elects to terminate the contract. The City's notice will identify a specific date by which the contractor must correct the breach. City may proceed with termination of the contract if the contractor fails to correct the breach by deadline indicated in the City's notice.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.

14.9.3. BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 USC § 50101, which provides that Federal funds may not be obligated unless all steel and manufactured goods used in AIP funded projects are produced in the United States, unless the FAA has issued a waiver for the product; the product is listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation subpart 25.108; or is included in the FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued list.

A bidder or offeror must complete and submit the Buy America Certification included herein with their bid or offer. The City will reject as nonresponsive any bid or offer that does not include a completed Certificate of Buy American Compliance.

14.9.4. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

The Contractor agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.

The provision binds the contractor and subtier contractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion of the Contract. This provision is in addition to that required of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

14.9.5. COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows:

- Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.
- 2. Non-Discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.
- 3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- 4. Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the City or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the

City or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

- 5. **Sanctions for Noncompliance:** In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the City will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
 - a) Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or
 - b) Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.
- 6. **Incorporation of Provisions:** The contractor will include the provisions of section one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the City or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the City. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

14.9.6. TITLE VI LIST OF PERTINENT NONDISCRIMINATION ACTS AND AUTHORITIES

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

- 1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d *et seq.*, 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);
- 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);
- 3. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- 4. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 *et seq.*), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

- 5. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 *et seq.*), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- 6. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- 7. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;
- 9. The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- 10. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- 11. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- 12. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

14.9.7. COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT

Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3. Contractor and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed on the project to give up any part of the compensation to

which the employee is entitled. The contractor and each subcontractor must submit to the City, a weekly statement on the wages paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. The City must report any violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration.

14.9.8. CERTIFICATION OF OFFEROR/BIDDER REGARDING DEBARMENT

By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred or suspended by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction.

14.9.9. CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACOTRS REGARDING DEBARMENT

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds \$25,000 as a "covered transaction", must verify each lower tier participant of a "covered transaction" under the project is not presently debarred or otherwise disqualified from participation in this federally assisted project. The successful bidder will accomplish this by:

- 1. Checking the System for Award Management at website: http://www.sam.gov
- 2. Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certificate Regarding Debarment and Suspension (Bidder or Offeror), above.
- 3. Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract

If the FAA later determines that a lower tier participant failed to disclose to a higher tier participant that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered the covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any available remedies, including suspension and debarment of the non-compliant participant.

14.9.10. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Contract Assurance (§ 26.13) - The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate.

Prompt Payment (§26.29) - The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than [specify number] Calendar Days from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from {Name of Recipient}. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within {specify the same number as above} Calendar Days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the {Name of Recipient}. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

14.9.11. TEXTING WHEN DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving" (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10 "Text Messaging While Driving" (12/30/2009), the FAA encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing work related to a grant or sub-grant.

In support of this initiative, the City encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the project. The Contractor shall include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding \$3,500 and involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

14.9.12. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

Contractor and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6201et seq).

14.9.13. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

 The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- 2. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 3. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 4. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- 5. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- 6. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as

- provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 7. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

14.9.14. FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE)

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the provisions of 29 CFR part 201, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same force and effect as if given in full text. The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part time workers.

The contractor has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or regulation. The contractor must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Wage and Hour Division

14.9.15. CERTIFCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The bidder or offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,

- continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

14.9.16. PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES

- The Contractor agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in this contract.
- 2. "Segregated facilities," as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees, that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written or oral policies or employee custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms or necessary

dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

The Contractor shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject to the Equal Opportunity clause of this contract.

14.9.17. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text. Contractor must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. The Contractor retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor's compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910). Contractor must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

14.9.18. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

Contractor and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247. In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the Contractor and subcontractors are to use of products containing the highest percentage of recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 CFR Part 247 whenever:

- 1. The contract requires procurement of \$10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; or,
- 2. The contractor has procured \$10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during the previous fiscal year.

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/epawaste/conserve/tools/cpg/products/

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if the contractor can demonstrate the item is:

- 1. Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
- 2. Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or
- 3. Is only available at an unreasonable price.

14.9.19. SEISMIC SAFETY

The contractor agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract, including work performed by subcontractors, conforms to a building code standard that provides a level of seismic safety substantially equivalent to standards established by the National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP). Local building codes that model their code after the current version of the International Building Code (IBC) meet the NEHRP equivalency level for seismic safety.

14.9.20. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The City may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the Contractor. Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the City, the Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:

- 1. Contractor must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.
- 2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice.
- 2. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.
- Deliver to the owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially completed work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work and as directed in the written notice.
- 4. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice.
- 5. Take action as directed by the owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this contract that Owner will take possession.

City agrees to pay Contractor for:

- 1. completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the effective date of termination;
- documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with uncompleted work;

- 3. reasonable and substantiated claims, costs and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and
- 4. reasonable and substantiated expenses to the contractor directly attributable to Owner's termination action.

City will not pay Contractor for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from the Owner's termination action.

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract.

14.9.21. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

Section 80-09 of FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-10 establishes conditions, rights and remedies associated with Owner termination of this contract due default of the Contractor.

14.9.22. TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION

By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant contract, the Offeror -

- is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States Trade Representative (U.S.T.R.);
- 2. has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person that is a citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the U.S.T.R; and
- 3. has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal on the project that is produced in a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor learns that its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Contractor must require

subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:

- 1. who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R. or
- 2. whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on such U.S.T.R. list or
- 3. who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such U.S.T.R. list;

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification without modification in in all lower tier subcontracts. The contractor may rely on the certification of a prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by U.S.T.R, unless the Offeror has knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an award. If it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the City cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the City or the FAA.

14.9.23. VETERAN'S PREFERENCE

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the contractor and all sub-tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled

veterans, and small business concerns (as defined by 15 U.S.C. 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans. This preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

15. DBE POTENTIAL RESOURCES CENTERS:

- **15.1.** Utilization of US Small Business Administration and Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA) resources is required at no cost. These agencies offer several services, including Internet access to databases of DBEs.
- **15.2.** For additional assistance, the recipient or contractor can telephone the local offices of both agencies in their area (SBA Minority Enterprise Development Offices and DOC MBDA Regional Centers). The Internet web sites also include names, addresses, and phone or fax numbers of local SBA and MBDA centers. Do not write to these sources
- **15.3.** The Contractor shall provide documentation that the local SBA/MBDA offices or web sites were notified of the contracting bid opportunity at least 15 Working Days prior to Bid opening and solicitation to DBE subcontractors at least 10 Working Days prior to Bid opening. Documentation shall not only include the efforts to contact the information sources and list the Contract opportunity, but also the solicitation and response to the bid request.
- **15.4.** Include qualified DBEs on solicitation lists and record the information on Form AA63. Solicitation shall be as broad as possible.
- **15.5.** If DBE sources are not located, explain why and describe the efforts made.
- **15.6.** The Contractor shall send invitations to at least 3 (or all, if less than 3) DBE vendors for each item of work referred by sources contacted. The invitations shall adequately specify the items for which bids are requested. The record of "good faith" efforts shall indicate a real desire for a positive response, such as a certified mail receipt or a documented telephone conversation.
- **15.7.** A regular letter or an unanswered telephone call is not an adequate "good faith" effort. A list of all sub-bidders, including the bidders not selected and non DBE Subcontractors, and bid amount for each item of the Work shall be submitted on Form AA62. If a low bid was not accepted, an explanation shall be provided.
- **15.8.** Federal Agencies (must be contacted and solicitations posted on their websites):

| Name and Address | Telephone and Web Site | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| U.S. Small Business Administration | (415) 744-6820 Extension 0 | | | | |
| 455 Market Street, Suite 600 | Dynamic Small Business Search: | | | | |

| | http://dsbs.sba.gov/dsbs/search/dsp_dsbs.cfm¹ |
|--|--|
| San Francisco, CA 94105 | Bid Notification: https://eweb1.sba.gov/subnet/co mmon/dsp_login.cfm |
| RE: Minority Enterprise Development Offices | |
| U.S. Department of Commerce | (415) 744-7415 |
| Minority Business Development Agency | Bid Notification: |
| 555 Montgomery Street | http://www.mbda.gov/workspace³ |
| San Francisco, CA 94111 | RE: Business Development Centers |

15.9. State Agencies (must be contacted):

| Name and Address | Telephone and Web Site |
|--|--|
| California Department of Transportation | Mailing Address: PO Box 942874 |
| (CALTRANS) Business Enterprise Program ⁴ | Sacramento, CA 94274-0015 |
| 1820 Alhambra Blvd. | (916) 227-9599 |
| Sacramento, CA 95816 | DBE Database: www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find_certified.htm |
| CA Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) ⁵ | |
| 505 Van Ness Avenue | Directory: |
| San Francisco, CA 94102-3298 | https://sch.thesupplierclearinghouse.com/FrontEn d/SearchCertifiedDirectory.asp |

Notes:

- The Contractor shall use the SBA's Dynamic Business Search database to search for potential subcontractors, suppliers, and/or manufacturers. Provide a copy of search records with GFE documentation.
- 2. The Contractor shall use SUB-Net to post subcontracting opportunities. The Contractor shall post Subcontractor opportunities at least 15 Working Days prior to bid opening. Small businesses can review this web site to identify opportunities in their areas of expertise. The web site is designed primarily as a place for large businesses to post solicitations and notices. Provide copy of the Display Solicitation Record with the GFE documentation.
- 3. The Contractors shall use MBDA web portal to post subcontracting opportunities. The Contractor shall post subcontractor opportunities at least 15 Working Days prior to Bid opening. Small businesses can review this web site to identify opportunities in their areas of expertise. The web site is designed primarily as a place for large businesses to post solicitations and notices. Provide copy of the Offer Overview with the GFE documentation.
- 4. Based on the federal DBE program, CALTRANS maintains a database and provides directories of minority and woman-owned firms. Provide copy of search records with GFE documentation.
- CPUC maintains a database of DBE-owned business enterprises and serves to inform the public. Provide copy of search records with GFE documentation.

16. GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTALS:

- **16.1.** The affirmative GFE steps documentation shall be submitted **within 4 Working Days of the Bid Opening by 4:00 PM**. If this documentation is not submitted when due, the City will declare the Bid **non-responsive** and reject it.
- **16.2.** The required documentation shall be submitted and logged in at the following address:

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS
525 B STREET, SUITE 750, MS 908A
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101
SUBJECT: AFFIRMATIVE GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTATION
BID NO._____

16.3. The Contractor shall maintain the records documenting compliance with requirements including documentation of its GFE and data relied upon in formulating its fair share objectives.

17. **FORMS**:

- **17.1.** The Contractor shall demonstrate that efforts were made to attract DBEs on this contract. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall take the steps listed in these specifications to assure that DBEs are used whenever possible as sources of supplies, construction, equipment, or services. In addition to the specified GFE documentation, the Bidder shall submit the following forms.
 - **17.1.1.** The following forms shall be submitted **with the Bid submittal** in accordance with Section 13.6 "Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) Requirements". Failure to include any of the forms shall cause the Bid to be deemed **non-responsive**.
 - 1. SDWSRF DBE Information Form (SDWSRF ONLY)
 - **17.1.2.** The following forms shall be completed and submitted **within 4 Working Days of the Bid opening by 4:00 PM**. Failure to include any of the forms shall cause the Bid to be deemed **non-responsive**.
 - 1. Form AA61 List of Work Made Available
 - 2. Form AA62 Summary of Bids Received (EXCLUDES CWSRF, FHWA)
 - 3. Form AA63 Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited (EXCLUDES CWSRF, FHWA)
 - 4. CWSRF Form 1: Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited (CWSRF ONLY)
 - 5. CWSRF Form 2: Good Faith Effort Bids Received List (CWSRF ONLY)
 - 6. CWSRF Form 3: DBE/Contractor Certification (CWSRF ONLY)

- CWSRF Form 4: DBE Prime Contractor/Recipient Selected (CWSRF ONLY)
- 8. CWSRF Form 5: Summary of Bids Received from Subcontractors, Suppliers and Brokers (CWSRF ONLY)
- 9. SDWSRF Verification of Qualification (SDWSRF ONLY)
- 10. Exhibit 12-B Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and NON-DBE) (FHWA ONLY)
- 11. Exhibit 15-G Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment (Construction Contracts) (FHWA ONLY)
- 12. Exhibit 15-H DBE Information-Good Faith Efforts (FHWA ONLY)
- 13. DBE Commitment Form (FAA ONLY)
- **17.1.3.** The following additional forms shall be submitted annually in accordance with Section 13 "AGENCY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS".
 - a) EPA Form 5700-52A MBE/WBE Utilization Forms (CWSRF, SDWSRF, EPA ONLY)
 - b) California State Revolving Funds (CASRF) Form UR-334 (CWSRF, SDWSRF, EPA ONLY)
- **17.1.4.** The following additional forms shall be submitted in accordance with the Caltrans Standard Specifications as indicated within Section 13 "AGENCY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS" (FHWA ONLY).
 - 1. Exhibit 16-B Subcontracting Request
 - 2. Exhibit 16-Z Monthly DBE Trucking Verification
 - 3. Exhibit 17-F Final Report Utilization of DBE, First Tier Subcontractors
 - 4. Exhibit 17-O DBE Certification Status Change
 - 5. FHWA PR-1391
- **17.1.5.** The following additional appendices shall be submitted with the Bid Proposal in accordance with Section 13 "AGENCY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS" (FAA ONLY).
 - 1. Buy American Certification

FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS

FORMS

Attachment 9

| DISADVANTAGED | BUSINESS E | NTERPE | RISE INFOR | MATION FOR | M | |
|--|--|---|--------------|------------------|---|--|
| WATER SYSTEM NAME: | | WATER SY | STEM NUMBER- | PROJECT NUMBER:. | | |
| PROJECT DESCRIPTION: | | PROJECT | LOCATION: | | | |
| P | RIME CONTRA | CTOR INF | ORMATION | | N S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S | |
| NAME/ADDRESS: Name of firm Contact person Address, City, Zip Phone Email DBE MBE WBE OTHER TYPE OF CONTRACT ARCHITECT/ENGINEER(A/E) CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIER/SERVICE (S/S) AMOUNT OF CONTRACT/BID: \$ | | | | | BID TO BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE | |
| | SUBCONTRAC | TOR INFO | RMATION | | EJEC | |
| DBE MBE SUPPLIER SUBCONTRACTOR SUPPLIER JOINT VENTURE BROKER TYPE OF CONTRACT CONTRACT AMOUNT \$ | OTHER SERVICE | NAME /ADDRESS: Name of firm Contact person Address, City, Zip Phone Email | | | | |
| ☐ DBE ☐ MBE ☐ WBE ☐ | OTHER | NAME /ADI | DRESS: | | | |
| ☐ SUBCONTRACTOR ☐ SUPPLIER/☐ JOINT VENTURE ☐ BROKER TYPE OF CONTRACT | SUBCONTRACTOR SUPPLIER/SERVICE Contact person Address, City, Zip | | | | | |
| CONTRACT AMOUNT \$ | 1 OTHER | Email | DDESS: | | ──── | |
| | Address, City, Zip Phone | | | | FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND SUBMIT THIS FORM WITH BID -WILL CAUSE THE | |
| GO | OALS FOR MBE & | & WBE PA | RTICIPATION | | SUB | |
| | | % MBE | % WBE | | ■ GNA | |
| | Construction | 11% | 4% | | | |
| | Supplies | 2% | 1% | | I dw | |
| | Services Equipment | 4% | 2% | | | |
| | 2% | 2% | | | | |
| FORM COMPLETED BY: | | T_ | | T- | | |
| NAME | | TITLE | | PHONE | A | |
| SIGNATURE | | DATE | | EMAIL | | |

DBE Contractor Information Form (10/11 rev) Page 1 of 1

Additional pages attached

LIST OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE

List items of the Work the Bidder made available to DBE firms. Identify those items of the Work the Bidder might otherwise perform with its own forces and those items that have been broken down into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. For each item listed, show the dollar amount and percentage of the Base Bid. The Bidder must demonstrate that enough work to meet the goal was made available to DBE firms.

| ITEM OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE | NAICS CODE | BIDDER NORMALLY PERFORMS ITEM (Y/N) | ITEM BROKEN DOWN TO FACILITATE PARTICIPATION (Y/N) | AMOUNT | PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID |
|-----------------------------|---------------|--|--|--------|---------------------------|
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVED

| Type of Job | NAICS CODES | Company Name | Selected (Y/N) | Bid Amount | DBE | Non-DBE | Explanation for not Selecting |
|-------------|----------------|--------------|-------------------|------------|-----|---------|-------------------------------|
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) GOOD FAITH EFFORT LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS SOLICITED

| Contractor Name | Contractor Address | How Located | Date of Contact | Contact Method | Task Description | Response (Yes/No) |
|-----------------|--------------------|-------------|--------------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------------|
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program DBE Instructions

FORM 1

DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) "GOOD FAITH" EFFORT LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS SOLICITED

Form with information required to be submitted with the AOA package.

| Contractor Name | Contractor Address | How Located | Date of Contact | Contact Method | Task Description | Response (Yes/No) |
|-----------------|--------------------|-------------|--------------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------------|
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program DBE Instructions FORM 2

DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) "GOOD FAITH" EFFORT BIDS RECEIVED LIST

| Contractor Name | Category (DBE) | Task Description | Bid Amount | Selected (Check) | Explanation for Not Selecting |
|-----------------|-------------------|---------------------|---------------|---------------------|-------------------------------|
| | | _ | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | 1 | |
| | | | | | |

Form with information required to be submitted with the AOA package. January 2009

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program DBE Instructions

FORM 3 DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

| Firm Name: | | | | Phone: | |
|-----------------|----------------|-----------------|---------------|----------|----------|
| Address: | | | | | |
| Principal Servi | ce or Product: | | Bid | d Amount | \$ |
| PLEASE INDICA | ATE PERCENTAGE | OF OWNERSHIP | | | |
| □ DBE9 | 6 Ownership | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| ☐ Prime Contr | actor | | ☐ Supplier of | Material | /Service |
| ☐ Subcontract | or | | ☐ Broker | | |
| | | | | | |
| ☐ Sole Owners | ship | | ☐ Corporation | n | |
| ☐ Partnership | | | ☐ Joint Ventu | re | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Certified by: | | | | Title: | |
| DBE Sub (| ORIGINAL SIGNA | TURE AND DATE F | REQUIRED) | | |
| Name: | | | | Date: | |

IMPORTANT: CONTRACTORS CAN NO LONGER SELF-CERTIFY. THEY MUST BE CERTIFIED BY EPA, SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (SBA), DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT) OR BY STATE, LOCAL, TRIBAL OR PRIVATE ENTITIES WHOSE CERTIFICATION CRITERIA MATCH EPA'S. PROOF OF CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROVIDED. A COPY OF THE CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH THIS FORM.

THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS AFTER THE BID OPENING DATE.

January 2009

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program DBE Instructions

FORM 4

SELECTED DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PRIME CONTRACTOR/RECIPIENT SELECTED

| CONTRACT RECIPIENTS NAME: | | CONTRACT NO. OR SPECIFICATION NO.: |
|---------------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| PROJECT DESCRIPTION: | | PROJECT LOCATION: |
| | PRIME CONTRACTOR | RINFORMATION |
| NAME AND ADDRESS (Include Zip C | ode, Federal Employer Tax ID # | ÷): |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | AMOUNT OF CONTRACT & |
| PHONE: | | AMOUNT OF CONTRACT \$ |
| | DBE INFORM | MATION |
| NONE* | | |
| | | NAME AND ADDRESS (INCLUDE ZIP CODE) |
| DBE | | |
| | | |
| SUBCONTRACTOR | SUPPLIER/SERVICE | |
| JOINT VENTURE | BROKER | BUONE |
| AMOUNT OF CONTRACT \$ | | PHONE: |
| WORK TO BE PERFORMED | | |
| DBE | | NAME AND ADDRESS (INCLUDE ZIP CODE) |
| | | |
| | | |
| SUBCONTRACTOR JOINT VENTURE | SUPPLIER/SERVICE BROKER | |
| AMOUNT OF CONTRACT \$ | BROKER | PHONE: |
| WORK TO BE PERFORMED | | |
| DBE | | NAME AND ADDRESS (INCLUDE ZIP CODE) |
| | | |
| SUBCONTRACTOR | SUPPLIER/SERVICE | |
| JOINT VENTURE | BROKER | |
| AMOUNT OF CONTRACT \$ | | |
| WORK TO BE PERFORMED | | 1 =11=11= |
| TOTAL DBE AMOUNT: \$ | | |
| SIGNATURE OF PERSON COMPLETING | | UE. DATE. |
| TITLE: | PHON | NE: DATE: |

^{*}Negative reports are required. ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DATE REQUIRED. Failure to complete and submit this form within 4 Working Days of bid opening will cause bid to be rejected as non-responsive. January 2009

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program DBE Instructions FORM 5

SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVED FROM SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND BROKERS (DBE & NON-DBE)

THIS SUMMARY IS PREPARED BY THE PRIME CONTRACTOR

| Type of Job | Company Name | Selected | Bid Amount | DBE | NON-DBE | Explanation for Not Selecting |
|-------------|--------------|----------|------------|-----|---------|-------------------------------|
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

January 2009

MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE/WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE)¹

VERIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

| Firm Name: | Phone: | | |
|--|-------------------------|--------------------------------------|-----|
| Address: | | | |
| Principal Service or Product: | | | |
| □- MBE □- WBE | | | |
| □- Prime Contractor □- Supplier of Material/Service □- | Subcontractor | □- Broker | |
| □- Sole Ownership □- Corporation □- Partnership | □- Joint Venture | 1 | |
| Names of Owners | Percent Ownership | MBE- Ethnic Identity ¹ | WBE |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| Agency Certifying MBE /WBE Qualification | | | |
| Certifying Agency Address | Certifying Agency Phone | е | |
| Certification number | Date Certified | | |
| Submitted by: | Date: | | |

CDPH MBEWBE Verification; rev 5/09;

¹ Refer to definitions on the next page.

MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE/WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) [USEPA DEFINITIONS-

A MBE is a business that is, (1) at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more minority individuals, or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more minority individuals; and (2) whose daily business operations are managed and directed by one or more of the minority owners.

A WBE is a business that is, (1) at least 51 percent owned by one or more women, or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more women; and, (2) whose daily business operations are managed and directed by one or more of the women owners.

MINORITY INDIVIDUALS INCLUDE:

(a) American Indians

Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America. To qualify in this group, a person must be a citizen of the United States and meet one or more qualifying criteria including:

- (1) Be at least one-fourth Indian descent (as evidenced by registration with the Bureau of Indian Affairs);
- (2) Characteristic Indian name;
- (3) Recognition in the community as an Indian;
- (4) Membership in a tribe, band or group of American Indians (recognized by the Federal Government), as evidenced by a tribal enrollment number or similar indication; and
- (5) Characteristic Indian appearance and features.
- (b) Black Americans

U.S. citizens, other than Hispanic, having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa.

(c) Asian Americans

U.S. citizens having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southern Asia, the Indian subcontinent or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands and Samoa. The Indian subcontinent takes in the countries of India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Nepal, Sikkim, and Bhutan.

(d) Hispanic Americans

U.S. citizens of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race. Only those persons from Central and South American countries who are of Spanish origin, descent, or culture should be included in this category. Persons from Brazil, Guyana, Surinam or Trinidad, for example, would be classified according to their race and would not necessarily be included in the Hispanic category. In addition, the category does not include persons from Portugal, who should be classified according to race.

(e) American Eskimos and American Aleuts

CDPH MBEWBE Verification; rev 5/09;



OMB CONTROL NO. 2030-0020 APPROVED: 06/30/2014

APPROVAL EXPIRES: 06/30/2017

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY MBE/WBE UTILIZATION UNDER FEDERAL GRANTS AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS

| FOR COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS OR OTHER FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE WI EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION OF PART 1: PLEASE REVIEW INSTRU | R SERVICES EXCEED \$150,000. |
|---|---|
| 1A. FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR (Oct 1- Sep 30) | 1B. REPORT TYPE |
| | |
| 20 | ☐Annual ☐ Last Report (Project completed) |
| 1C: REVISION OF A PRIOR YEAR REPORT? NO Yes, Year | |
| IF YES, BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE REVISIONS YOU ARE MAKING: | |
| 2A. EPA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OFFICE ADDRESS (ATTN: DBE COORDINATOR) | 3A. RECIPIENT NAME AND ADDRESS |
| 2B. EPA DBE COORDINATOR | 3B. RECIPIENT REPORTING CONTACT |
| Name: | Name: |
| Email: | Address: |
| Phone: | Phone: |
| Fax: | Email: |
| 4A. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT ID NUMBER (SRF State Recipients, refer to Instructions for Completion of blocks 4A, 5A and 5C) | 4B. FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM TITLE OR CFDA NUMBER: |
| 5A. TOTAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT AMOUNT | 5B. If NO procurements and NO accomplishments were made this reporting |
| EPA Share: \$ | period (by the recipients, sub-recipients, loan recipients, and prime contractors), CHECK and SKIP to Block No. 7 . (Procurements are all expenditures through |
| Recipient Share: \$ | contract, order, purchase, lease or barter of supplies, equipment, construction, |
| □ N/A (SRF Recipient) | or services needed to complete Federal assistance programs. Accomplishments, in this context, are procurements made with MBEs and/or WBEs.) |
| 5C. Total Procurements This Reporting Period (Only include | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Total Procurement Amount \$_ | |
| (Include total dollar values awarded by recipient, sub-recipient | s and SRF loan recipients, including MBE/WBE expenditures.) |
| 5D. Were sub-awards issued under this assistance agreement? Yes No | |
| Were contracts issued under this assistance agreement? Yes No | |
| 5E. MBE/WBE Accomplishments | This Reporting Period |
| , | arded by recipient, sub-recipients, SRF loan recipients and Prime Contractors.) |
| Construction Equipment | Services Supplies Total |
| \$MBE: | |
| \$WBE: | |
| 6. COMMENTS: (If no MBE/WBE procurements, please summarize how certified MBEs entered in Block 5C and why certified MBEs /WBEs were not awarded any procurements) | · |
| 7. NAME OF RECIPIENT'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE | TITLE |
| 8. SIGNATURE OF RECIPIENT'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE | DATE |

APPROVED: 06/30/2014 APPROVAL EXPIRES: 06/30/2017

PART II.

MBE/WBE PROCUREMENTS MADE DURING REPORTING PERIOD

EPA Financial Assistance Agreement Number:

| 1. Procure | 1. Procurement Made By 2. Business Enterprise 3. \$ Value of 4. Date of 5. Type of Product 6. Name/Address/Phone Number of MBE/WBE Contractor or Vendor | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------|--|-------|----------|-------|-------------|-------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| Recipient | Sub-Recipient and/or | Prime | Minority | Women | Procurement | Procurement | or Service | 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3 | | |
| co.p.c | SRF Loan Recipient | | | | | MM/DD/YY | (Enter Code) | | | |
| | | | | | | | , | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | l | l . | l | | |

Type of Product or Service Codes:

1 = Construction

2 = Supplies

3 = Services

4 = Equipment

Note: Recipients are required to submit MBE/WBE reports to EPA beginning with the Federal fiscal year the recipients receive the award, continuing until the project is completed.

Instructions:

A. General Instructions:

MBE/WBE utilization is based on 40 CFR Part 33. The reporting requirement reflects the class deviation issued on November 8, 2013, clarified on January 9, 2014 and modified on December 2, 2014. EPA Form 5700-52A must be completed annually by recipients of financial assistance agreements where the combined total of funds budgeted for procuring supplies, equipment, construction or services exceeds \$150,000. This reporting requirement applies to all new and existing awards and voids all previous reporting requirements.

In determining whether the \$150,000 threshold is exceeded for a particular assistance agreement, the analysis must focus on funds budgeted for procurement under the supplies, equipment, construction, services or "other" categories, and include funds budgeted for procurement under sub-awards or loans

Reporting will also be required in cases where the details of the budgets of sub-awards/loans are not clear at the time of the grant awards and the combined total of the procurement and sub-awards and/or loans exceeds the \$150,000 threshold.

When reporting is required, all procurement actions are reportable, not just the portion which exceeds \$150,000.

If at the time of award the budgeted funds exceed \$150,000 but actual expenditures fall below, a report is still required.

If at the time of award, the combined total of funds budgeted for procurements in any category is less than or equal to \$150,000 and is maintained below the threshold, no DBE report is required to be submitted.

Recipients are required to report 30 days after the end of each federal year, per the terms and conditions of the financial assistance agreement.

Last reports are due October 30th or 90 days after the end of the project period, whichever comes first.

MBE/WBE program requirements, including reporting, are material terms and conditions of the financial assistance agreement.

B. Definitions:

<u>Procurement</u> is the acquisition through contract, order, purchase, lease or barter of supplies, equipment, construction or services needed to accomplish Federal assistance programs.

A <u>contract</u> is a written agreement between an EPA recipient and another party (also considered "prime contracts") and any lower tier agreement (also considered "subcontracts") for equipment, services, supplies, or construction necessary to complete the project. This definition excludes written agreements with another public agency. This definition includes personal and professional services, agreements with consultants, and purchase orders.

A <u>minority business enterprise</u> (MBE) is a business concern that is (1) at least 51 percent owned by one or more minority individuals, or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more minority

individuals; and (2) whose daily business operations are managed and directed by one or more of the minority owners. In order to qualify and participate as an MBE prime or subcontractor for EPA recipients under EPA's DBE Program, an entity must be properly certified as required by 40 CFR Part 33, Subpart B.

U.S. citizenship is required. Recipients shall presume that minority individuals include Black Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, or other groups whose members are found to be disadvantaged by the Small Business Act or by the Secretary of Commerce under section 5 of Executive order 11625. The reporting contact at EPA can provide additional information.

A <u>woman business enterprise</u> (WBE) is a business concern that is, (1) at least 51 percent owned by one or more women, or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more women and (2) whose daily business operations are managed and directed by one or more of the women owners. In order to qualify and participate as a WBE prime or subcontractor for EPA recipients under EPA's DBE Program, an entity must be properly certified as required by 40 CFR Part 33, Subpart B.

Business firms which are 51 percent owned by minorities or women, but are in fact not managed and operated by minorities or females do not qualify for meeting MBE/WBE procurement goals. U.S. Citizenship is required.

Good Faith Efforts

A recipient is required to make the following good faith efforts whenever procuring construction, equipment, services, and supplies under an EPA financial assistance agreement. These good faith efforts for utilizing MBEs and WBEs must be documented. Such documentation is subject to EPA review upon request:

- Ensure DBEs are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities.
 For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing DBEs on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.
- 2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by DBEs in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 30 calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date.
- 3. Consider in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with DBEs. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBEs in the competitive process.
- 4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
- Use the services and assistance of the SBA and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
- 6. If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, require the prime contractor to take the steps in paragraphs (a) through (e) of this section.

C. Instructions for Part I:

- 1A. Specify Federal fiscal year this report covers. The Federal fiscal year runs from October 1st through September 30th (e.g. November 29, 2014 falls within Federal fiscal year 2015)
- 1B. Specify report type. Check the annual reporting box. Also indicate if the project is completed.
- 1C. Indicate if this is a revision to a previous year and provide a brief description of the revision you are making.
- 2A-B. Please refer to your financial assistance agreement for the mailing address of the EPA financial assistance office for your agreement.

The "EPA DBE Reporting Contact" is the DBE Coordinator for the EPA Region from which your financial assistance agreement was originated. For a list of DBE Coordinators please refer to the EPA OSBP website at http://epa.gov/osbp/dbe_cord.

- 3A-B. Identify the agency, state authority, university or other organization which is the recipient of the Federal financial assistance and the person to contact concerning this report.
- 4A. Provide the Assistance Agreement number assigned by EPA. A separate report must be submitted for each Assistance Agreement.
- *For SRF recipients: In box 4a list numbers for ALL OPEN Assistance Agreements being reported on this form.
- 4B. Refer back to Assistance Agreement document for this information.

- 5A. Provide the total amount of the Assistance Agreement which includes Federal funds plus recipient matching funds and funds from other sources.
- *For SRF recipients only: SRF recipients will not enter an amount in 5a. SRF recipients should check the "N/A" box.
- 5B. Self-explanatory.
- 5C. Provide the total dollar amount of **ALL** procurements awarded this reporting period by the recipient, sub-recipients, and SRF loan recipients, **including** MBE/WBE expenditures, not just the portion which exceeds \$150,000. For example: Actual dollars for procurement from the procuring office; actual contracts let from the contracts office; actual goods, services, supplies, etc., from other sources including the central purchasing/procurement centers).
- *NOTE: To prevent double counting on line 5C, if any amount on 5E is for a subcontract and the prime contract has already been included on Line 5C in a prior reporting period, then report the amount going to MBE or WBE subcontractor on line 5E, but exclude the amount from Line 5C. To include the amount on 5C again would result in double counting because the prime contract, which includes the subcontract, would have already been reported.
- *For SRF recipients only: In 5c please enter the total annual procurement amount under all of your SRF Assistance Agreements. The figure reported in this section is **not** directly tied to an individual Assistance Agreement identification number. (SRF state recipients report state procurements in this section)

- 5D. State whether or not sub-awards and/or subcontracts have been issued under the financial assistance agreements by indicating "yes" or "no".
- 5E. Where requested, also provide the total dollar amount of all MBE/WBE procurement awarded during this reporting period by the recipient, sub-recipients, SRF loan recipients, and prime contractors in the categories of construction, equipment, services and supplies. These amounts include Federal funds plus recipient matching funds and funds from other sources.
- 6. If there were no MBE/WBE accomplishments this reporting period, please briefly how certified MBEs/WBEs were notified of the opportunities to compete for the procurement dollars entered in Block 5C and why certified MBEs /WBEs were not awarded any procurements during this reporting period.
- 7. Name and title of official administrator or designated reporting official.
- 8. Signature, month, day, and year report submitted.

D. Instructions for Part II:

For each MBE/WBE procurement made under this financial assistance agreements during the reporting period, provide the following information:

1. Check whether this procurement was made by the recipient, sub-recipient/SRF loan recipient, or the prime contractor.

- 2. Check either the MBE or WBE column. If a firm is both an MBE and WBE, the recipient may choose to count the entire procurement towards EITHER its MBE or WBE accomplishments. The recipient may also divide the total amount of the procurement (using any ratio it so chooses) and count those divided amounts toward its MBE and WBE accomplishments. If the recipient chooses to divide the procurement amount and count portions toward its MBE and WBE accomplishments, please state the appropriate amounts under the MBE and WBE columns on the form. The combined MBE and WBE amounts for that MBE/WBE contractor must not exceed the "Value of the Procurement" reported in column #3
- 3. Dollar value of procurement.
- 4. Date of procurement, shown as month, day, year. Date of procurement is defined as the date the contract or procurement was awarded, **not** the date the contractor received payment under the awarded contract or procurement, unless payment occurred on the date of award. (Where direct purchasing is the procurement method, the date of procurement is the date the purchase was made)
- 5. Using codes at the bottom of the form, identify type of product or service acquired through this procurement (e.g., enter 1 if construction, 2 if supplies, etc.).
- 6. Name, address, and telephone number of MBE/WBE firm.

**This data is requested to comply with provisions mandated by: statute or regulations (40 CFR Parts 30, 31, and 33 and/or 2 CFR Parts 200 and 1500); OMB Circulars; or added by EPA to ensure sound and effective assistance management. Accurate, complete data are required to obtain funding, while no pledge of confidentiality is provided.

The public reporting and recording burden for this collection of information is estimated to average I hour per response annually. Burden means the total time, effort, or financial resources expended by persons to generate, maintain, retain, or disclosure or provide information to or for a Federal agency. This includes the time needed to review instructions; develop, acquire, install, and utilize technology and systems for the purposes of collecting, validating, and verifying information, processing and maintaining information, and disclosing and providing information; adjust the existing ways to comply with any previously applicable instructions and requirements; train personnel to be able to respond to a collection of information; search data sources; complete and review the collection of information; and transmit or otherwise disclose the information. An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden estimates, and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated collection techniques to the Director, OPPE Regulatory Information Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2136), 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB Control number in any correspondence. Do not send the completed form to this address.



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD – DIVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) UTILIZATION CALIFORNIA STATE REVOLVING FUNDS (CASRF) FORM UR-334

| 1. Grant/Finance Agreement Number: | | | 2. Annual Reporting Period | | | 3. Purchase Period of Financing Agreement: | | |
|------------------------------------|--|-----------------|----------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------|--|--|--|
| | | |)/1/ through | n 09/30/_ | | | | |
| 4. Total Paymer | nts Paid to Prime Co | ntractor or Su | b-Contra | actors During (| Current Reporting | Period: \$ | | |
| 5. Recipient's N | lame and Address: | | | (| 6. <u>Recipient's (</u> | Contact Person and Phone Number: | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 7. List All DBE Payment or | Payments Paid by Ro Amount Paid to An | V DRE Contrac | me Con | Date of | Procurement | Name and Address of DBE Contractor of | | |
| Purchase Paid by | Sub-Contractor Fo | r Service Provi | ded to | Payment | Type Code** | Sub-Contractor or Vendor | | |
| Recipient or Prime Contractor | MBE Rec | ipient WBE | | (MM/DD/YY) | (see below) | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 8. Initial here if | no DBE contractors | or sub-contra | ctors na | id durina curre | ent reporting perio | d: | | |
| | all procurements for | | _ | _ | sps g poi to | | | |
| 10. Comments: | an procurements for | uns contract | are com | ipieteu. | | | | |
| .o. comments. | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 11. Signature an | d Title of Recipient's | Authorized R | epresen | tative | 12. Date | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |

Email Form UR-334 to:

<u>DrinkingWaterSRF@waterboards.ca.gov</u> OR <u>CleanWaterSRF@waterboards.ca.gov</u>

Questions may be directed to:

Barbara August, SWRCB

Barbara.August@waterboards.ca.gov

Phone: (916) 341-6952 Fax: (916) 327-7469

Revised 12/2016

**Procurement Type:

- 1. Construction
- 2. Supplies
- Services (includes business services; professional services; repair services and personnel services)
- 4. Equipment

Exhibit 12-B

Exhibit 12-B Bidder's List of subcontractor (DBE and Non-DBE) Part 1

As of March 1, 2015 Contractors (and sub-contractors) wishing to bid on public works contracts shall be registered with the State Division of Industrial Relations and certified to bid on Public Works contracts. Please register at: https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm

In accordance with Title 49, Section 26.11 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, as amended, the following information is required for each sub-contractor who will perform work amounting to more than one half of one percent (0.5%) of the Total Base Bid or \$10,000 (whichever is greater). **Photocopy this form for additional firms.**

| Subcontractor Name and Location | Line Item & Description | Subcontract Amount | Percentage of Bid Item Sub- contracted | Contractor License Number DIR Reg Number | DBE (Y/N) | DBE Cert Number | Annual Gross Receipts |
|------------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|--|--|--------------|--------------------|----------------------------|
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million |
| 6 | _ | | | | | | <\$5 million |
| City, State: | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | <\$15 million |
| | | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million |
| City Chata | _ | | | | | | <\$5 million |
| City, State: | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | <\$15 million |
| · | | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million |
| City, State: | - | | | | | | <\$5 million <\$10 million |
| city, State. | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million |
| City Chata | _ | | | | | | <\$5 million |
| City, State: | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | <\$15 million |
| | + | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million |
| City, State: | _ | | | | | | <\$5 million |
| city, state. | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | <\$15 million |
| Nama | | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |
| Name: | | | | | | | <\$1 million <\$5 million |
| City, State: | - | | | | | | <\$5 million <\$10 million |
| City, State. | | | | | | | <\$10 million |
| | | | | | | | Age of Firm: yrs. |

Distribution: 1) Original-Local Agency File 2) Copy-DLAE w/ Award Package

EXHIBIT 15-G CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DBE COMMITMENT

| 1. Local Ag | ency: | | 2. Contract DBE Goal: | |
|---------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--|--|
| 3. Project D | Description: | | | |
| | ocation: | | | |
| 5. Bidder's | | | Certified DBE: 7. Bid Amount: | |
| 8. Total Dol | lar Amount for ALL Subcontractors: | | 9. Total Number of <u>ALL</u> Subcontractors: | |
| 10. Bid Item Number | 11. Description of Work, Service, or Materials Supplied | 12. DBE Certification Number | 13. DBE Contact Information (Must be certified on the date bids are opened) | 14. DBE Dollar Amount |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | Local Agency to Complete this Section | 1 | | |
| 21. Local A | gency Contract Number: | | 45 TOTAL OLAIMED DDE BARTICIDATION | \$ |
| 22. Federal | -Aid Project Number: | | 15. TOTAL CLAIMED DBE PARTICIPATION | 0, |
| 23. Bid Ope | ening Date: | | | % |
| Local Agen | cy certifies that all DBE certifications are valid and in complete and accurate. | | IMPORTANT: Identify all DBE firms being claimed for regardless of tier. Names of the First Tier DBE Subortheir respective item(s) of work listed above must be where applicable with the names and items of the w "Subcontractor List" submitted with your bid. Written each listed DBE is required. | contractors and consistent, ork in the |
| 25. Local | Agency Representative's Signature 26. Date | | 16. Preparer's Signature 17. Da | te |
| 27. Local | Agency Representative's Name 28. Phon | e | 18. Preparer's Name 19. Pho | one |
| 29. Local | Agency Representative's Title | | 20. Preparer's Title | |

DISTRIBUTION: 1. Original – Local Agency

2. Copy – Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer (DLAE). Failure to submit to DLAE within 30 days of contract execution may result in de-obligation of federal funds on contract. Include additional copy with award package.

ADA Notice: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information call (916) 654-6410 or TDD (916) 654-3880 or write Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DBE COMMITMENT

CONTRACTOR SECTION

- **1. Local Agency** Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- 2. Contract DBE Goal Enter the contract DBE goal percentage as it appears on the project advertisement.
- **3. Project Location** Enter the project location as it appears on the project advertisement.
- **4. Project Description** Enter the project description as it appears on the project advertisement (Bridge Rehab, Seismic Rehab, Overlay, Widening, etc).
- **5. Bidder's Name** Enter the contractor's firm name.
- **6. Prime Certified DBE** Check box if prime contractor is a certified DBE.
- **7. Bid Amount** Enter the total contract bid dollar amount for the prime contractor.
- $\textbf{8. Total Dollar Amount for } \underline{\textbf{ALL}} \ \textbf{Subcontractors} \textbf{Enter the total dollar amount for all subcontracted contractors}.$
- SUM = (DBEs + all Non-DBEs). Do not include the prime contractor information in this count.
- **9. Total number of** \underline{ALL} **subcontractors** Enter the total number of all subcontracted contractors. $\underline{SUM} = (\underline{DBEs} + \underline{all} \underline{Non-DBEs})$. Do not include the prime contractor information in this count.
- 10. Bid Item Number Enter bid item number for work, services, or materials supplied to be provided.
- **11. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied** Enter description of work, services, or materials to be provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime contractor's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- **12. DBE Certification Number** Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. All DBEs must be certified on the date bids are opened.
- **13. DBE Contact Information** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted contractors. Also, enter the prime contractor's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- **14. DBE Dollar Amount** Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work to be performed or service to be provided. Include the prime contractor if the prime is a DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 for how to count full/partial participation.
- **15. Total Claimed DBE Participation** \$: Enter the total dollar amounts entered in the "DBE Dollar Amount" column. %: Enter the total DBE participation claimed ("Total Claimed DBE Participation Dollars" divided by item "Bid Amount"). If the total % claimed is less than item "Contract DBE Goal," an adequately documented Good Faith Effort (GFE) is required (see Exhibit 15-H DBE Information Good Faith Efforts of the LAPM).
- **16. Preparer's Signature** The person completing the DBE commitment form on behalf of the contractor's firm must sign their name.
- 17. Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- **18. Preparer's Name** Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- **19. Phone** Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- **20. Preparer's Title** Enter the position/title of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.

LOCAL AGENCY SECTION

- 21. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **22.** Federal-Aid Project Number Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- 23. Bid Opening Date Enter the date contract bids were opened.
- **24.** Contract Award Date Enter the date the contract was executed.
- **25.** Local Agency Representative's Signature The person completing this section of the form for the Local Agency must sign their name to certify that the information in this and the Contractor Section of this form is complete and accurate.
- **26.** Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.
- **27. Local Agency Representative's Name** Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative certifying the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- **28. Phone** Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- **29.** Local Agency Representative Title Enter the position/title of the Local Agency Representative certifying the contractor's DBE commitment form.

EXHIBIT 15-H DBE INFORMATION —GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

DBE INFORMATION - GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

| Federal-aid Pro | ject No | Bid | Opening Date | |
|--|---|--|---|----------------|
| The% for this | es s project. The information p | stablished a Disadvanta provided herein shows t | ged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal of hat a good faith effort was made. | f |
| good faith effor Commitment" f award of the co | rts. Bidders should submit the form indicates that the biddentract if the administering a | ne following information or has met the DBE goangency determines that t | ollowing information to document adec n even if the "Local Agency Bidder D l. This will protect the bidder's eligibil the bidder failed to meet the goal for va- idder made a mathematical error. | BE lity for |
| | ly the "Local Agency Bidde that adequate good faith eff | | form may not provide sufficient docum | entation |
| The following i Provisions: | items are listed in the Section | on entitled "Submission | of DBE Commitment" of the Special | |
| | | | equest for DBE participation for this ertisements or proofs of publication | |
| | Publications | | Dates of Advertisement | |
| | | | | |
| the dat whethe | es and methods used for f | following up initial so | ed DBEs soliciting bids for this proj licitations to determine with certain es of solicitations, telephone record | ıty |
| Nam | nes of DBEs Solicited | Date of Initial Solicitation | Follow Up Methods and Dates | _ |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

| C. | The items of work which the any breaking down of the conbidder with its own forces) in the bidder's responsibility to a made available to DBE firms. | ntract work items (inclute economically feasily demonstrate that suffice | uding those items ble units to facilita | normally per ate DBE parti | formed by the cipation. It is |
|----|--|--|--|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| _ | Items of Work | Bidder Normally Performs Item (Y/N) | Breakdown of Items | Amount (\$) | Percentage Of Contract |
| - | | | | | |
| D. | The names, addresses and phorejection of the DBEs, the firm firms involved), and the price | ms selected for that we | ork (please attach | copies of quo | otes from the |
| | Names, addresses and phone of the DBEs: | numbers of rejected D | BEs and the reason | ons for the bio | lder's rejection |
| | Names, addresses and phone | numbers of firms sele | cted for the work | above: | |
| E. | Efforts made to assist interest technical assistance or inform work which was provided to | nation related to the pla | | | |

Page 15-2 June 29, 2012 OB 12-04

| | purchases or leases from the prime of | 0 11 1 1 | DBE subcontractor |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|----------------------------|
| G. | The names of agencies, organization recruiting and using DBE firms (ple received, i.e., lists, Internet page do | ease attach copies of requests to ag | <u> </u> |
| - | Name of Agency/Organization | Method/Date of Contact | Results |
| Н. | Any additional data to support a conecessary): | demonstration of good faith effor | rts (use additional sheets |

NOTE: USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS OF PAPER IF NECESSARY.

Exhibit 16-B SUBCONTRACTING REQUEST

| CONTRACTOR NAME | | | | | | COUNTY | | ROUTE |
|---|------------------------|--|----------|--------------------------------------|--------------|---|--------------|---------------------------------------|
| BUSINESS ADDRESS | | | | | | CONTRACT NUME | BER | I |
| CITY AND STATE | | | ZIPC | CODE | | FEDERAL-AID PRO | јест | ₹ |
| SUBCONTRACTOR (NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, PHONE) | BID ITEM NUMBER (S) | PERCENTAGE OF BID ITEM SUBCONTRACTOR | | CHECK IF (SEE CATEGORY BELOW) 1 2 3 | | DESCRIBE WOR WHEN LESS THA 100% OF WORK SUBCONTRACTE | AN IS | LAR AMOUNT BASED ON THE BID AMOUNT |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Categories 1. Spe | -1-16 | 2. List | 111. | . F.:. F | | A | 3 Certific | - 1 DDF |
| I certify that: The Standard Provisions for the Standard | For labor set fo | rth in the contract Special Provisions | t apply | y to the | subconserted | ntracted work in the subcontra | icts and sho | ould be |
| Contractor Signature | | | | | | | Date | |
| This section is to be completed bTotal of bid itemsSpecialty items previously a | • | | he instr | uctions) | | \$ | | <u>\$</u> |
| 3. Specialty items this request | | | | , | | \$ | | <u> </u> |
| 4. Total (lines 2 + 3) | | | | 37 | | \$ | | <u> </u> |
| 5. Contractor must perform w6. Bid item previously subcon | | ines 1 minus 4) | | _ X | | \$ | | ** |
| 7. Bid item subcontractor (this | s request) | | | | | \$ | | — |
| 8. Total (lines 6 + 7) | | | | | | \$ | | _ _ |
| 9. Balance of work contractor | to perform (line | s 1 minus 8) | | | | | | \$ |
| December 1970 | | I | Approv | red | | | D | |
| RESIDENT ENGINEER'S SIGNATURE | 3 | | | | | | Date | |

 $Copy \ Distribution: \ Original-Contractor \qquad Copy-\ Resident \ Engineer \ Copy-\ OBEO- \\ \underline{smallbusinessadvocate@dot.ca.gov} \ or \ fax \ to \ (916) \ 324-1949$

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING SUBCONTRACTING REQUEST FORM

All First-tier subcontractors must be included on a subcontracting request.

Submit in accordance with Section 8-1.01 of the Standard Specifications. Type or print requested information. Information copy is to be retained by the contractor. Submit other copies to project's Resident Engineer. After approval, the original will be returned to the contractor.

When an entire item is subcontracted, the value to be shown is the contractor's bid price.

When a portion of an item is subcontracted, describe the portion, and show the % of bid item and value.

THIS FORM IS NOT TO BE USED FOR SUBSTITUTIONS

Prior to submittal of a DC-CEM-1201 involving a replacement subcontractor, submit a separate written request for approval to substitute a listed subcontractor. Section 4107 of the Government Code covers the conditions for substitution.

Submit a separate written request for approval of any DBE/MBE/WBE/DVBE substitution. Include appropriate backup information and state what efforts were made to accomplish the same dollar value of work by other certified DBE/MBE/WBE/DVBEs.

NOTE: For contractors who will be performing work on railroad property, it is necessary for the contractor to complete and submit the Certificate of Insurance (State Form DH-OS-A10A) naming the subcontractor as insured. *No work shall be allowed which involves encroachment on railroad property until the specified insurance has been approved.*

MONTHLY DBE TRUCKING VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

MONTHLY DBE TRUCKING VERIFICATION

CP-CEM-2404(F) (NEW 12/99)

| VIRACT NO. | | | MONTH | | | | YEAR |
|----------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------|---|
| Truck Owner | DBE Cert. No. | Company Name and Address | Truck No. | California Hwy. Patrol CA No. | Commission Or Amount Paid* | Date Paid | Lease Arrangement (√ if applicable) |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| - | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | - | *** | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | | | \$ | | Lease Agreement with Non-DBE with DBE |
| | | | TOTAL | . AMOUNT PAID | \$ | | |
| ME CONTRACTOR | W. 111.00 4 No. | | BUSINESS ADDR | ESS | | 1 | BUSINESS PHONE NO. |
| lpon request all Le | ase Agreements st | nall be made available, in acc | cordance with the S | Special Provisions. | | *** | |
| NITO A CTOD DEDDESCE | IT A TIV (FIG CICALATI IDE | I CERTIFY THAT THE | ABOVE INFORMATION | N IS COMPLETE AND | CORRECT | | DATE |
| NIKACIOR REPRESE | NTATIVE'S SIGNATURE | | IIILE | | | | 5, |

Form CP-CEM 2404 (F)(NEW 12/99) MONTHLY DBE TRUCKING VERIFFICATION

The top of Form CEM-2404(F) contains boxes to put in the Contract Number, the Month of the reporting period and the Year of the reporting period.

The Form CEM-2404(F) has a column to enter the name of the Truck Owner, the DBE Cert. No. (if DBE certified) and the Name and Address of the trucking company. The Form CEM-2404(F) also requires the Truck No. and the California Highway Patrol CA No.

Form CEM-2404(F) is to be submitted prior to the 15th of each month and must show the dollar amount paid to the DBE trucking company(s) for trucking work performed by DBE certified trucks and for any fees or commissions of nonDBE trucks utilized each month on the project. The amount paid to each trucking company is to be entered in the column called "Commission or Amount Paid," in accordance with the Special Provisions Section 5-1.X.

Payment information is derived using the following:

- 1.) 100% for the trucking services provided by the DBE using trucks it owns, operates and insures.
- 2.) 100% for the trucking services provided by the trucks leased from other DBE firms.
- 3.) The fee or commission paid to nonDBEs for the lease of trucks. The Prime does not receive 100% credit for these services because they are not provided by a DBE company.

The total dollar figure of this column is to be placed in the box labeled "Total Amount Paid." The column "Date Paid" requires a date that each trucking company is paid for services rendered. The next column contains information that must be completed if a lease arrangement is applicable. Located at the bottom of the form is a space to put the name of the "Prime Contractor," their "Business Address" and their "Business Phone No."

At the bottom of the form there is a space for the Contractor or designee "Contractor Representative's Signature, Title and Date" certifying that the information provided on the form is complete and correct.

EXHIBIT 17-F FINAL REPORT-UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

| 1. Local Age | ncy Contract Number | 2. Federal- | Aid Project Number | 3. Local Agency | , | | | 4. Contract Co | mpletion Date |
|---------------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|---|---|---|----------------------|-------------------|--------------------|------------------|
| 5. Contractor | /Consultant | | 6. Business Address | | | | 7. Final Cont | ract Amount | |
| 8. Contract | 9. Description of Work, Ser | vice, or | 10 Company Name and | | 11. DBE | 12. Contrac | Payments | 13. Date | 14. Date of |
| Item Number | Materials Supplied | , | Business Address | | Certification Number | Non-DBE | DBE | Work Completed | Final Payment |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 15. ORIGINA | AL DBE COMMITMENT AMOUNT | \$ | | | 16. TOTAL | | | | |
| List all first-tier award, provide | subcontractors/subconsultants and DI comments on an additional page. List | BEs regardless of actual amount pa | tier whether or not the firms were originally aid to each entity. If no subcontractors/subc | y listed for goal credi consultants were use | it. If actual DBE utilizated on the contract, inc | ation (or item of wo | rk) was different | than that approved | at the time of |
| | I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT | | | | | | | | |
| 17. Contracto | or/Consultant Representative's Signature | gnature | 18. Contractor/Consultant Representa | ative's Name | | 19. Phone | | 20. Date | |
| | | RTIFY THAT THE | CONTRACTING RECORDS AND ON-SI | TE PERFORMANCI | E OF THE DBE(S) H | AS BEEN MONITO | DRED | | |
| 21. Local Ag | ency Representative's Signature | | 22. Local Agency Representative's Na | ame | | 23. Phone | | 24. Date | |

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Local Agency, Copy - Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

ADA NOTICE: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information, call (916) 445-1233, Local Assistance Procedures Manual TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS – FINAL REPORT-UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

- 1. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **2. Federal-Aid Project Number** Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- **3. Local Agency** Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- **4. Contract Completion Date** Enter the date the contract was completed.
- **5.** Contractor/Consultant Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- **6. Business Address -** Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- **7. Final Contract Amount** Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- **8.** Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not applicable for consultant contracts.
- **9. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied** Enter description of work, services, or materials provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime contractor/consultant's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- **10. Company Name and Business Address** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all subcontracted contractors/consultants. Also, enter the prime contractor/consultant's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- **11. DBE Certification Number** Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. Leave blank if subcontractor is not a DBE.
- **12. Contract Payments** Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work performed or service provided. Include the prime contractor/consultant if the prime is a DBE. The Non-DBE column is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms that are not certified DBE or for work after a DBE becomes decertified.
- **13. Date Work Completed** Enter the date the subcontractor/subconsultant's item work was completed.
- **14. Date of Final Payment** Enter the date when the prime contractor/consultant made the final payment to the subcontractor/subconsultant for the portion of work listed as being completed.
- **15. Original DBE Commitment Amount** Enter the "Total Claimed DBE Participation Dollars" from Exhibits 15-G or 10-O2 for the contract.
- **16. Total** Enter the sum of the "Contract Payments" Non-DBE and DBE columns.
- 17. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- **18.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form.
- **19. Phone** Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **20. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- **21.** Local Agency Representative's Signature A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.
- **22.** Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form.
- 23. Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **24. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.

1. Local Agency Contract Number

4. Contract Completion Date

EXHIBIT 17-O DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

3. Local Agency

| 5. Contractor/Consultant | | | siness Address | | | 7. Final | Contract Amount | | |
|--|---|----------|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|-----------|-----------------|--|--|
| 8. Contract Item Number | 9. DBE Contact Info | rmation | 10. DBE Certification Number | 11. Amount Paid While Certified | 12. Certification/ Decertification Date (Letter Attached) | L | 13. Comments | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| If there were no changes in the DBE certification of subcontractors/subconsultants, indicate on the form. | | | | | | | | | |
| | | I CERTIF | Y THAT THE ABOVE INFO | RMATION IS COMPLET | E AND CORRECT | | | | |
| 14. Contracto | or/Consultant Representative's Signa | ature | 15. Contractor/Consu | Itant Representative's | Name | 16. Phone | 17. Date | | |
| | I CERTIFY THAT THE CONTRACTING RECORDS AND ON-SITE PERFORMANCE OF THE DBE(S) HAS BEEN MONITORED | | | | | | | | |
| 18. Local Age | ency Representative's Signature | | 19. Local Agency Rep | | | 20. Phone | 21. Date | | |
| DISTRIBUTION, Original Legal Assert Conv. Coltron District Legal Assistance Facinese Include with Final Depart of Funcacitives | | | | | | | | | |

DISTRIBUTION: Original – Local Agency, Copy – Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

2. Federal-Aid Project Number

ADA NOTICE: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information, call (916) 445-1233, Local Assistance Procedures Manual TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS –DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

- 1. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **2. Federal-Aid Project Number** Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- **3. Local Agency** Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- **4.** Contract Completion Date Enter the date the contract was completed.
- **5. Contractor/Consultant -** Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- **6. Business Address -** Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- **7. Final Contract Amount** Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- **8.** Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not applicable for consultant contracts.
- **9. DBE Contact Information** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted contractors/consultants.
- **10. DBE Certification Number** Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number.
- **11. Amount Paid While Certified** Enter the actual dollar value of the work performed by those subcontractors/subconsultants during the time period they are certified as a DBE.
- **12.** Certification/Decertification Date (Letter Attached) Enter either the date of the Decertification Letter sent out by the Office of Business and Economic Opportunity (OBEO) or the date of the Certification Certificate mailed out by OBEO.
- **13. Comments** If needed, provide any additional information in this section regarding any of the above certification status changes.
- **14.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- **15.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form.
- **16. Phone** Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **17. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- **18.** Local Agency Representative's Signature A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify

that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.

- **19. Local Agency Representative's Name** Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form.
- **20. Phone** Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **21. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.

| | FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTORS ANNUAL EEO REPORT | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|----------|---------------|---------------------|-----|-------------------------|--|-----------------|-----------------------------|-----------|---------|---------|---------------------------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------|----|-------------------|---|--------|------------------------|---|
| 1. MARK APPROPRIATE BOX | 2. COMP | PANY NAI | ME, CITY, STA | TE | | | 3. PROJECT NUMBER: 4. DOLLAR AMOUNT OF CONTRACT 5. PROJECT LOCATION (Contract) | | | | | | | unty and | tate) | | | | | | | |
| ☐ Contractor | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ☐ Subcontractor | ubcontractor | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| This collection of information is required by law and regulation 23 U.S.C. 140a and 23 CFR Part 230. The OMB control number for this collection is 2125-0019 expiring in March, 2016 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6. WORKFORCE ON FEDERAL-AID AND CONSTRUCTION SITE(S) DURING LAST FULL PAY PERIOD ENDING IN JULY 20 (INSERT YEAR) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| TABLE A TABLE B | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| JOB CATEGORIES | TOT. EMPLO | | | RACIAL/ MINORITY | AFR | CK OR IICAN RICAN | II. | ANIC OR TINO | AMER IND OR AL NAT | IAN | ASI | AN | NATHAWA OR O PAC ISLAI | THER IFIC | TWC MC RA | RE | WH | WHITE APPRENTICES | | NTICES | ON THE JOB TRAINEES | |
| | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F |
| OFFICIALS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| SUPERVISORS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| FOREMEN/WOMEN | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| CLERICAL | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| EQUIPMENT OPERATORS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| MECHANICS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| TRUCK DRIVERS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| IRONWORKERS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| CARPENTERS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| CEMENT MASONS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ELECTRICIANS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PIPEFITTER/PLUMBERS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PAINTERS | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| LABORERS-SEMI SKILLED | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| LABORERS-UNSKILLED | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| TOTAL | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | ABLE C | Table B d | ata by ra | cial stat | us) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| APPRENTICES | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| OJT TRAINEES | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8. PREPARED BY: (Signature and Title of Contractor | s Represer | ntative) | | | | • | | 9. DATE | | 10. REVI | EWED BY | (Signat | ure and Tit | le of State | Highway | Official) | | | | | 11. DATE | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Form FHWA-1391 (Rev. 09-13)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE

LOCAL AGENCY NOTIFICATION TO CONTRACTOR INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINSITRATION (FHWA) PR-1391 FORM

The FHWA PR-1391 form shall be used to report the number of minority and non-minority employees by gender employed in each work classification on a Federal-aid contract. The "Job Categories" column is used to identify work classification. When identifying work classifications, use only the categories listed on the form. Miscellaneous job categories are to be incorporated in the most appropriate category listed on the form.

WHO MUST REPORT:

Each prime contractor and subcontractor regardless of tier who has a Federal-aid contract exceeding \$10,000 must report.

REPORT DATA:

Each contractor is to collect data of the number of project personnel who worked all or any part of the last full week of July. Contractors who do not perform any work during the last full week of July must write "Not Applicable" across the form, sign, date and return.

DUE DATE:

Due on or before the 12th of August to the Local Agency Resident Engineer. The Local Agency Resident Engineer must submit the report to the District Local Assistance Engineer by August 26th.

DEFINITION OF TERMS:

OFFICIALS (Managers): Officers, project engineers, superintendents, etc., who have management-level responsibility and authority.

SUPERVISORS: All levels for project supervision, if any, between management and foremen levels.

FOREMEN/WOMEN: Men and women in direct charge of crafts workers and laborers performing work on the project.

MECHANICS: Equipment service and maintenance personnel.

LABORERS, SEMI-SKILLED: All laborers classified by specialized type of work.

LABORERS, UNSKILLED: All non-classified laborers.

OTHERS: Miscellaneous job classifications are to be incorporated in the most appropriate category listed on the form. All employees on the project should be accounted for.

BLOCK ENTRIES

- CHECK APPROPRIATE BLOCK Check <u>only</u> one box.
- COMPANY NAME, CITY, STATE Enter the firm's name, city or town, and state. Do <u>not</u> abbreviate.
- (3) PROJECT NUMBER Enter all Federal-aid project number(s) associated with the contract number. (If you are a subcontractor and do not know the Federal-aid project number, contact the prime contractor).
- (4) DOLLAR AMOUNT OF CONTRACT Enter dollar amount of contract, including amended amounts.
- **I.** PROJECT LOCATION Enter <u>all</u> county(ies) and state(s) associated with the contract number. (If you are a subcontractor and do not know the county(ies) and state(s), contact the prime contractor).
- II. WORKFORCE ON FEDERAL-AID AND CONSTRUCTION SITE(S) DURING LAST FULL PAY PERIOD ENDING IN JULY 20_ (INSERT YEAR) Enter the last two digits of the calendar year you are reporting data for.
 - **TABLE A** Enter number of employee(s) based on race, gender and job category during the reporting period.
 - **TABLE B** Enter number of apprentice(s) and on-the-job trainee(s) based on gender and job category during the reporting period.
 - **TABLE C** enter number of apprentice(s) and on-the-job trainee(s) based on race and gender during the reporting period.
 - 1. PREPARED BY Signature and Title of Contractor's Representative certifying the reported data to be true.
 - 2. DATE Enter the date the Contractor's Representative signed this form.
 - 3. REVIEWED BY Signature and Title of Local Agency Official reviewing data.
 - 4. DATE Enter the date the Local Agency Official signed this form.

ATTACHMENT 6

Demonstration of Good Faith Efforts - Forms 1 & 2

[Forms 1 and 2 should be provided as part of the solicitation documents.]

FORM 1: DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) UTILIZATION

| The undersigned bidder/offeror has satisfied the requirements of the bid specification in the following manner (please check the appropriate space): |
|--|
| The bidder/offeror is committed to a minimum of % DBE utilization on this contract. |
| The bidder/offeror (if unable to meet the DBE goal of%) is committed to a minimum of% DBE utilization on this contract and should submit documentation demonstrating good faith efforts. |
| Name of bidder/offeror's firm: |
| State Registration No |
| Ву |
| (Signature) Title |

FORM 2: LETTER OF INTENT

| Name of bidder/offeror's firm: | | |
|--------------------------------|---|--------------------|
| Address: | | |
| City: | State: Zip: | |
| Name of DBE firm: | | |
| Address: | | |
| City: | State: Zip: | |
| Telephone: | | |
| Description of work to be perf | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | ed to utilizing the above-named DBE firm for value of this work is \$ | the work described |
| Affirmation | | |
| | affirms that it will perform the portion of the ored above and that the firm is DBE certified t | |
| Ву | Date: | |
| (Signature) | _ | |
| (Title) | | |

If the bidder/offeror does not receive award of the prime contract, any and all representations in this Letter of Intent and Affirmation shall be null and void.

Submit this page for each DBE subcontractor.

A4.3.2 Certificate of Buy American Compliance – Total Facility

CERTIFICATE OF BUY AMERICAN COMPLIANCE FOR TOTAL FACILITY

As a matter of bid responsiveness, the bidder or offeror must complete, sign, date, and submit this certification statement with their proposal. The bidder or offeror must indicate how they intend to comply with 49 USC \S 50101 by selecting one of the following certification statements. These statements are mutually exclusive. Bidder must select one or the other (i.e. not both) by inserting a checkmark (\checkmark) or the letter "X".

| ☐ Bidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comply with 49 USC. 50 |
|--|
|--|

- a) Only installing steel and manufactured products produced in the United States; or
- b) Installing manufactured products for which the FAA has issued a waiver as indicated by inclusion on the current FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing; or
- c) Installing products listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108.

By selecting this certification statement, the bidder or offeror agrees:

- 1. To provide to the Owner evidence that documents the source and origin of the steel and manufactured product.
- 2. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic products.
- 3. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.
- ☐ The bidder or offeror hereby certifies it cannot comply with the 100% Buy American Preferences of 49 USC § 50101(a) but may qualify for either a Type 3 or Type 4 waiver under 49 USC § 50101(b). By selecting this certification statement, the apparent bidder or offeror with the apparent low bid agrees:
 - 1. To the submit to the Owner within 15 calendar days of the bid opening, a formal waiver request and required documentation that support the type of waiver being requested.
 - 2. That failure to submit the required documentation within the specified timeframe is cause for a non-responsive determination that may result in rejection of the proposal.
 - 3. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic products at or above the approved US domestic content percentage as approved by the FAA.
 - 4. To furnish US domestic product for any waiver request that the FAA rejects.
 - 5. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

Required Documentation

Type 3 Waiver - The cost of components and subcomponents produced in the United States is more that 60% of the cost of all components and subcomponents of the "facility". The required documentation for a type 3 waiver is:

a) Listing of all manufactured products that are not comprised of 100% US domestic content (Excludes products listed on the FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing and

- products excluded by Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108; products of unknown origin must be considered as non-domestic products in their entirety)
- b) Cost of non-domestic components and subcomponents, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly and installation at project location.
- c) Percentage of non-domestic component and subcomponent cost as compared to total "facility" component and subcomponent costs, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly and installation at project location.

Type 4 Waiver – Total cost of project using US domestic source product exceeds the total project cost using non-domestic product by 25%. The required documentation for a type 4 of waiver is:

- a) Detailed cost information for total project using US domestic product
- b) Detailed cost information for total project using non-domestic product

False Statements: Per 49 USC § 47126, this certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of the Federal Aviation Administration and the making of a false, fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code.

| Date | Signature | |
|--------------|-----------|--|
| | | |
| Company Name | Title | |

A4.3.3 Certificate of Buy American Compliance – Manufactured Product

Certificate of Buy American Compliance for Manufactured Products

As a matter of bid responsiveness, the bidder or offeror must complete, sign, date, and submit this certification statement with their proposal. The bidder or offeror must indicate how they intend to comply with 49 USC \S 50101 by selecting one on the following certification statements. These statements are mutually exclusive. Bidder must select one or the other (not both) by inserting a checkmark (\checkmark) or the letter "X".

| ☐ Bidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comp | ly with 49 USC § 50101 by: |
|--|----------------------------|
|--|----------------------------|

- a) Only installing steel and manufactured products produced in the United States, or;
- b) Installing manufactured products for which the FAA has issued a waiver as indicated by inclusion on the current FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing, or;
- c) Installing products listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108.

By selecting this certification statement, the bidder or offeror agrees:

- 1. To provide to the Owner evidence that documents the source and origin of the steel and manufactured product.
- 2. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic product
- 3. To furnish US domestic product for any waiver request that the FAA rejects
- 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.
- ☐ The bidder or offeror hereby certifies it cannot comply with the 100% Buy American Preferences of 49 USC § 50101(a) but may qualify for either a Type 3 or Type 4 waiver under 49 USC § 50101(b). By selecting this certification statement, the apparent bidder or offeror with the apparent low bid agrees:
 - 1. To the submit to the Owner within 15 calendar days of the bid opening, a formal waiver request and required documentation that support the type of waiver being requested.
 - 2. That failure to submit the required documentation within the specified timeframe is cause for a non-responsive determination may result in rejection of the proposal.
 - 3. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic products at or above the approved US domestic content percentage as approved by the FAA.
 - 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

Required Documentation

Type 3 Waiver - The cost of the item components and subcomponents produced in the United States is more that 60% of the cost of all components and subcomponents of the "item". The required documentation for a type 3 waiver is:

a) Listing of all product components and subcomponents that are not comprised of 100% US domestic content (Excludes products listed on the FAA Nationwide Buy American

- Waivers Issued listing and products excluded by Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108; products of unknown origin must be considered as non-domestic products in their entirety).
- b) Cost of non-domestic components and subcomponents, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly at place of manufacture.
- c) Percentage of non-domestic component and subcomponent cost as compared to total "item" component and subcomponent costs, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly at place of manufacture.

Title

Type 4 Waiver – Total cost of project using US domestic source product exceeds the total project cost using non-domestic product by 25%. The required documentation for a type 4 of waiver is:

- a) Detailed cost information for total project using US domestic product
- b) Detailed cost information for total project using non-domestic product

False Statements: Per 49 USC § 47126, this certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of the Federal Aviation Administration and the making of a false, fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code.

Date

Signature

Company Name

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

| Description of Contract: City of San Diego - CONSTRU | ICTION OF |
|--|--|
| Type of Insurance: Workers' Compensation Insurance THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the following policy has conformance with the requirements of Section 7-1.12 Standard Specifications and is in force at this time. The Company will give at least thirty (30) days written Engineer prior to any material change or cancellation POLICY NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE | been issued by the below stated company in B (1)(a) "Workers' Compensation", of the Caltrans notice by certified mail to the City and Consulting |
| | Statutory Limits Under the laws of the State of California |
| Name Insured (Contractor) | Insured Company |
| Street Number | Street Number |
| City and State | City and State |
| | Company Representative |
| State of) (SEE NOTICE County of) | ON NEXT PAGE) |
| On this day of, 20, before me perswho being duly sworn, did depose and say: The representative of the executed the within said insurance company. | at is an authorized acknowledged to me |
| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed and affixed my above written. | y official seal on the date in this certificate first |
| | Notary Public |
| | Certificate of Insurance |
| | (Workers' Compensation) - 1 of 2 |

| Name | Agency |
|---|--|
| Street Number | Street Number |
| City and State | City and State |
| Telephone No. | Telephone No. |
| This certificate or verification of insurance is not an i alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed here condition of any contract or other document with r insurance may be issued or may pertain, the insurance | ein. Notwithstanding any requirements, term, or espect to which this certificate or verification o |
| | nce afforded by the policies. |
| NOTICE: No substitution or revision to the above certificate for provided by more than one insurance company, a s be provided for each insurance company. | orm will be accepted. If the insurance called for is |
| NOTICE: No substitution or revision to the above certificate for provided by more than one insurance company, a s | orm will be accepted. If the insurance called for is eparate certificate in the exact above form shale an agent for service of process in California and |
| NOTICE: No substitution or revision to the above certificate for provided by more than one insurance company, a side provided for each insurance company. Insurers must be authorized to do business and have have an "A-" policyholder's rating and financial rating | orm will be accepted. If the insurance called for is eparate certificate in the exact above form shale an agent for service of process in California and |

INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

| Description of Contract: City of San Diego - CONSTRU | CTION OF | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Type of Insurance: Workers' Compensation Insurance | 2 | | | | |
| This endorsement forms a part of Policy No | | | | | |
| ENDORSEMENT: It is agreed that with respect to su Company waives any right of subrogation it may acqui their consultants, and each of their directors, offic payment made on account of injury, including death of the insured, arising out of the performance of the | re against the City, the Consulting Engineer, and ers, agents, and employees by reason of any resulting therefrom, sustained by any employee | | | | |
| This endorsement does not increase the Company's t | otal limits of liability. | | | | |
| Name Insured (Contractor) | Insurance Company | | | | |
| Street Number | Street Number | | | | |
| City and State | City and State | | | | |
| | Ву | | | | |
| | (Company Representative) | | | | |
| depose and say: that | to be known, who being duly sworn, did is an authorized representative of | | | | |
| the and acknowledged within instrument on behalf of said insurance compa | | | | | |
| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed and affixed my above written. | | | | | |
| | Notary Public | | | | |
| NOTICE: No substitution or revision to the above endo called for is provided by more than one policy, a sepa be provided for each policy. | · | | | | |

Insurance Endorsement (Workers' Compensation) - 1 of 1

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Description of Contract: City of San Diego - CONSTRUCTION OF_

| Турє | e of Insurance: Liabi | lity Insurance | | |
|------------|--|----------------|--|--------------------------|
| conf | | | es have been issued to the n 7-1.12 of the Caltrans Stand | |
| | | | Limits of Liability | |
| POL | ICY EXPIRATION | | In Thousands (000) | |
| <u>NUN</u> | <u>MBER</u> | <u>DATE</u> | Each Occurrence | <u>Aggregate</u> |
| A. | GENERAL LIABILITY | , | | |
| | Bodily Injury | | \$ | |
| | Property Damage | | \$ | |
| | Bodily Injury and P Damage Combined | | \$ | |
| | Personal Injury | | \$ | |
| В. | AUTOMOBILE LIAB | ILITY | | |
| | Bodily Injury (Each Person) | | \$ | |
| | Bodily Injury (Each Occurrence) | | \$ | |
| | Bodily Injury and P Damage Combined | | \$ | |
| C. | EXCESS LIABILITY | | | |
| | Bodily Injury and Property Damage | Combined | \$ | |
| | | | | Certificate of Insurance |
| | | | | (Liability) - 1 of 3 |

Job Order Contract (JOC) SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvements Projects Only
Attachment D - JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) Funding Agency Provisions References (Rev. October 2016)
Certificate of Insurance (Liability)

Α **GENERAL LIABILITY:** Comprehensive Form..... YES _____ NO _____ NO _____ Premises-Operations YES _____ Explosion and Collapse Hazard YES NO _____ Underground Hazard..... YES _____ NO _____ YES Products/Completed Operations Hazard...... NO Contractual Insurance..... YES _____ NO _____ Broad Form Property Damage Including NO _____ Completed Operations YES _____ YES _____ Independent Contractors NO _____ Personal Injury YES NO В. **AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY** Comprehensive Form Including Loading and Unloading..... YES _____ NO _____ Owned..... YES _____ NO _____ YES _____ Hired..... NO _____ Non-Owned YES _____ NO _____ C. **EXCESS LIABILITY** YES _____ Umbrella Form..... NO Other than Umbrella Form..... YES NO

The following types of coverage are included in said policies (indicated by "X" in space):

This certificate or verification of insurance is not an insurance policy and does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed herein. Notwithstanding any requirement, term, or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate or verification of insurance may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions, and conditions of such policies.

Certificate of Insurance (Liability) - 2 of 3

| Consulting Engineer prior to any material change of | or cancellation of said policies. |
|--|---|
| Name Insured (Contractor) | Insurance Company |
| Street Number | Street Number |
| City and State | City and State |
| | By |
| State of) County of) | (Company Representative) |
| On this day of, 200 , before me known who being duly sworn, did depose and sa representative of the executed the within instrumental N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed and affixed above written. | y: that is an authorized is an authorized and acknowledged to me ental on behalf of said insurance company. |
| NOTARY PUBLIC Insurance Company Agent for Service Of Process in | n California: |
| Name | Agency |
| Street Number | Street Number |
| City and State | City and State |
| Telephone No. | Telephone No. |
| NOTICE: No substitution or revision to the above certific provided by more than one insurance company, a separate insurance company. | |
| Insurers must be authorized to do business and have an policyholders' rating and a financial rating of at least Class VI | |
| | Certificate of Insurance |
| | (Liability) - 3 of 3 |

INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

| Description of Contract: City of San Diego - CONSTRU | JCTION OF |
|--|--|
| Type of Insurance: Liability Insurance | |
| This endorsement forms a part of Policy No | |
| ENDORSEMENT: The City, it's officers and employeed policies but only while acting in their capacity as such insured, his Contractors, and Subcontractor, any supany of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them referenced contract. This insurance shall not apply is the result of the sole and exclusive negligence (in approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveithe aforesaid additional insureds. The insurance a insurance. If the additional insureds have other insurancent of this insurance shall not be reduced or pro- | h and only as respects operations of the named oplier, anyone directly or indirectly employed by may be liable in the performance of the abovef the loss or damage is ultimately determined to including any connected with the preparation or eys, designs, or specifications) of one or more of fforded to these additional insureds is primary rance which might be applicable to any loss, the |
| The Contractual Liability Insurance afforded is suffici in the section entitled, "Indemnity", in the Special Pro those matters set forth in the fourth paragraph there | visions of the above-referenced contract except |
| This endorsement does not increase the Company's | total limits of liability. |
| Name Insured (Contractor) | Insurance Company |
| Street Number | Street Number |
| City and State | City and State |
| | By(Company Representative) |
| State of)) | N PAGE 2 of 2 |
| County of) | N FAGE 2 01 2 |
| On this day of, 200 , before m known who being duly sworn, did depose and representative of the that executed the within instrument or | say: That is an authorized and acknowledged to me |
| | Insurance Endorsement |
| | (Liability) - Page 1 of 2 |

| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed and affix above written. | xed my official seal on the date in this certificate first |
|--|--|
| · | NOTARY PUBLIC |
| | ve endorsement form will be accepted. If the insurance a separate endorsement in the exact above form shall |
| | d have an agent for service of process in California and al rating of at least Class VII in accordance with the most |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | Insurance Endorsement (Liability) - Page 2 of 2 |
| | |
| | |

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

DIVISION I GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 BIDDING

2-1.01 **GENERAL**

Section 2 includes specifications related to bid eligibility and the bidding process.

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 2, "Bidding," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions for the requirements and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of and the submission of the bid.

The bidder's bond shall conform to the bond form in the Contract Documents for the project and shall be properly filled out and executed. The bidder's bond form included in that Contract Documents may be used.

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Noncollusion Affidavit is included in the Contract Documents. Signing the Contract Documents shall also constitute signature of the Noncollusion Affidavit.

Failure of the bidder to fulfill the requirements of the Special Provisions for submittals required to be furnished after bid opening, including but not limited to escrowed bid documents, where applicable, may subject the bidder to a determination of the bidder's responsibility in the event it is the apparent low bidder on a future public works contracts.

2-1.015 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS. Section 1352, Title 31, United States Code prohibits Federal funds from being expended by the recipient or any lower-tier sub-recipient of a Federal-aid contract to pay for any person for influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal-aid contract, the making of any Federal grant or loan, or the entering into of any cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal funds have been paid for the same purposes in connection with this Federal-aid contract, the recipient shall submit an executed certification and, if required, submit a completed disclosure form as part of the bid documents.

A certification for Federal-aid contracts regarding payment of funds to lobby Congress or a Federal agency is included in the Bid book. Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," with instructions for completion of the Standard Form is also included in the Bid book. Signing the Bid book shall constitute signature of the Certification.

The above referenced certification and disclosure of lobbying activities shall be included in each subcontract and any lower-tier contracts exceeding \$100,000. All disclosure forms, but not certifications, shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by the Engineer.

The Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by the Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors. An event that materially affects the accuracy of the information reported includes:

- (1) A cumulative increase if \$25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action; or
- (2) A change in the person(s) or individual(s) influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action; or
- (3) A change in the officer(s), employees(s), or member(s) contacted to influence or attempt to influence a covered Federal Action.

2-1.12 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

2-1.12A General

Under 49 CFR 26.13(b):

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

Take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have opportunity to participate in the Contract (49 CFR 26).

2-1.12B Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE)

2-1.12B(1) General

To ensure equal participation of DBEs groups provided in 49 CFR 26.5, the City's shows a goal for DBEs.

Make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with available DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

Meet the DBE goal shown on the Notice Inviting Bids or demonstrate that you made adequate good faith efforts to meet this goal.

It is the Bidder's responsibility to verify that the DBE firm is certified at date of bid opening by the California Unified Certification Program. For a list of DBEs certified by the California Unified Certification Program, go to:

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hg/bep/find_certified.htm.

All DBE participation will count towards the California Department of Transportation's federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal.

Credit for materials or supplies you purchase from DBEs counts toward the goal in the following manner:

- 1. 100 percent if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer.
- 2. 60 percent if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE regular dealer.
- 3. Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the procurement and delivery of materials or supplies, if they are obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular dealer. 49 CFR 26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer."

You receive credit toward the goal if you employ a DBE trucking company that performs a

commercially useful function as defined in 49 CFR 26.55(d)(1)-(4), (6).

2-1.12B(2) DBE Commitment Submittal

Submit the Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment form included in the Contract Documents.

If the DBE commitment form is not submitted with the bid, all bidders must complete and submit the form to the City. The DBE commitment form must be received by the City no later than 4:00 p.m. on the 4th business day after bid opening.

Submit written confirmation from each DBE shown on the form stating that it will be participating in the Contract. Include confirmation with the DBE commitment form. A copy of a DBE's quote will serve as written confirmation that the DBE will be participating in the Contract.

If you do not submit the DBE commitment form by the specified time, your bid is **non-responsive**.

2-1.12B(3) Good Faith Efforts Submittal

If you have not met the DBE goal, complete and submit the DBE information - Good Faith Efforts Documentation form, 15-H, showing that you made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal. Only good faith efforts directed toward obtaining participation by DBEs are considered. If good faith efforts documentation is not submitted with the bid, it must be received by the City no later than 4:00 p.m. on the 4th business day after bid opening.

If your DBE commitment form shows that you have met the DBE goal or if you are required to submit the DBE commitment form, you must submit good faith efforts documentation within the specified time to protect your eligibility for award of the contract in the event the City finds that the DBE goal has not been met. Good faith efforts documentation must include the following information and supporting documents, as necessary:

- Items of work you have made available to DBE firms. Identify those items of work you might
 otherwise perform with your own forces and those items that have been broken down into
 economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. For each item listed, show the dollar
 value and percentage of the total bid. You are responsible to demonstrate that sufficient work
 to meet the goal was made available to DBE firms.
- Names of certified DBEs and dates on which they were solicited to bid on the project. Include the items of work offered. Describe the methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty whether the DBEs were interested and include the dates of the follow-up. Attach supporting documents such as copies of letters, memos, facsimiles sent, telephone logs, telephone billing statements, and other evidence of solicitation. You are reminded to solicit certified DBEs through all reasonable and available means and provide enough time to allow DBEs to respond.
- 3. Name of selected firm and its status as a DBE for each item of work made available. Include name, address, and telephone number of each DBE that provided a quote and its price quote. If the firm selected for the item is not a DBE, provide the reasons for the selection.
- 4. Name and date of each publication in which you requested DBE participation for the project. Attach copies of the published advertisements.
- 5. Names of agencies and dates on which they were contacted to provide assistance in

- contacting, recruiting, and using DBE firms. If the agencies were contacted in writing, provide copies of supporting documents.
- 6. List of efforts made to provide interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract to assist them in responding to a solicitation. If you have provided information, identify the name of the DBE assisted, the nature of the information provided, and date of contact. Provide copies of supporting documents, as appropriate.
- 7. List of efforts made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, insurance, necessary equipment, supplies, and materials excluding supplies and equipment that the DBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the prime contractor or its affiliate. If such assistance is provided by you, identify the name of the DBE assisted, nature of the assistance offered, and date assistance was offered. Provide copies of supporting documents, as appropriate.
- 8. Any additional data to support demonstration of good faith efforts.

The City may consider DBE commitments of the 2nd and 3rd bidders in determining whether the low bidder made good faith efforts to meet the DBE goal.

2-1.12B(4) Exhibit 15-G - Construction Contract DBE Commitment

Complete and sign *Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment* included in the contract documents regardless of whether DBE participation is reported.

Provide written confirmation from each DBE that the DBE is participating in the Contract. A copy of a DBE's quote serves as written confirmation. If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the City encourages you to submit a copy of the joint venture agreement.

2-1.12B(5) Subcontractor and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Records

Use each DBE subcontractor as listed on *Exhibit 12-B Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE)* and *Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment* form unless you receive authorization for a substitution.

The City requests the Contractor to:

- 1. Notify the Engineer of any changes to its anticipated DBE participation
- 2. Provide this notification before starting the affected work
- 3. Maintain records including:
 - a) Name and business address of each 1st-tier subcontractor
 - Name and business address of each DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier
 - c) Date of payment and total amount paid to each business

If you are a DBE contractor, include the date of work performed by your own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th of each month, submit a *Monthly DBE Trucking Verification* form.

If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must notify the Contractor in writing of the decertification date. If a business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the business must notify the Contractor in writing of the certification date. Submit the notifications. On work

c) Date of payment and total amount paid to each business

If you are a DBE contractor, include the date of work performed by your own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th of each month, submit a *Monthly DBE Trucking Verification* form.

If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must notify the Contractor in writing of the decertification date. If a business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the business must notify the Contractor in writing of the certification date. Submit the notifications. On work completion, complete a *Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change, Exhibit 17-O, form*. Submit the form within 30 days of contract acceptance.

Upon work completion, complete *Exhibit 17-F Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), First-Tier Subcontractors*. Submit it within 90 days of contract acceptance. The City will withhold \$10,000 until the form is submitted. The City releases the withhold upon submission of the completed form.

2-1.5 BID RIGGING

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free hotline to report bid rigging activities. Use the hotline to report bid rigging, bidder collusion, and other fraudulent activities. The hotline number is (800) 424-9071. The service is available 24 hours 7 days a week and is confidential and anonymous. The hotline is part of the DOT's effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General.

3 CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION

3-1.01 GENERAL

Section 3 includes specifications related to contract award and execution.

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 3, "Contract Award and Execution," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions for the requirements and conditions concerning award and execution of contract.

Bid protests are to be delivered to the following address:

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS
525 B STREET, SUITE 750, MS 908A
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

The award of the contract, if it be awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid complies with all the requirements prescribed.

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and shall be returned together with the contract bonds, to the Agency so that it is received within 10 days, not including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after the bidder has received the contract for execution. Failure to do so shall be just cause for forfeiture of the proposal guaranty. The executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address:

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS 525 B STREET, SUITE 750, MS 908A SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

3-1.06 CONTRACTOR LICENSE

For a federal-aid contract, the Contractor must be properly license as a contractor from contract award through Contract acceptance (Pub Cont Code § 10164).

For a non-federal-aid contract:

- 1. The Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from bid opening through Contract acceptance (Bus & Prof Code § 7028.15)
- 2. Joint venture bidders must obtain a joint venture license before contract award (Bus & Prof Code § 7029.1)

3-1.12 CALTRANS BIDDER - DBE INFORMATION FORM

Complete and sign the Local Agency - DBE Information form included in the contract documents regardless of whether no DBE participation is reported.

Provide written confirmation from each DBE that the DBE is participating in the Contract. A copy of a DBE's quote serves as written confirmation. If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the City encourages you to submit a copy of the joint venture agreement.

3-1.13 FORM FHWA-1273

For a federal-aid contract, form FHWA-1273 is included with the Contract form in the documents sent to the successful bidder for execution. Comply with its provisions. Interpret the training and promotion section as specified in section 7-1.11A.

5 CONTROL OF WORK

5-1.01 GENERAL

Section 5 includes specifications regarding the Contract parties' relations and Contract acceptance.

5-1.04A PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS

A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business

and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing. Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5-1.04B PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS

The agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The prime contractor, or subcontractor, shall return all monies withheld in retention from a subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency. Federal law (49CFR26.29) requires that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of this provision shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the Business and Professions Code. These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5-1.04C SUBCONTRACTING

No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their responsibility for a subcontractor's work.

If the Contractor violates Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq., the City of San Diego may exercise the remedies provided under Pub Cont Code § 4110.

The City of San Diego may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under Pub Cont Code § 4111.

The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the original total bid with the Contractor's own employees and equipment, owned or rented, with or without operators.

Each subcontract must comply with the contract.

Each subcontractor must have an active and valid State contractor's license with a classification appropriate for the work to be performed (Bus & Prof Code, § 7000 et seq.).

Submit copies of subcontracts upon request by the Engineer.

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form.

Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is available at the Department of Industrial Relations web site at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/debar.html

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work satisfactorily.

Each subcontract and any lower-tier subcontract that may in turn be made shall include the "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts" in Section 7 of these special provisions. Noncompliance shall be corrected. Payment for subcontracted work involved will be withheld from progress payments due or to become due, until correction is made. Failure to comply may result in termination of the contract.

5-1.05 PAYMENTS. Attention is directed to Section 9-1.16, "PROGRESS PAYMENTS," and 9-1.17, "PAYMENT AFTER CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

For the purpose of making progress payments pursuant to Section 9-1.16, "PROGRESS PAYMENTS," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, the amount set forth for the contract items of work hereinafter listed shall be deemed to be the maximum value of the contract item of work, which will be recognized for progress payment purposes.

Clearing and Grubbing \$40,000.00

Develop Water Supply \$80,000.00

After acceptance of the contract pursuant to the provisions in Section 5-1.46, "FINAL INSPECTION AND CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, the amount, if any, payable for a contract item of work in excess of the maximum value for progress payment purposes hereinabove listed for the item, will be included for payment in the first estimate made after acceptance of the contract.

No partial payment will be made for any materials on hand which are furnished but not incorporated in the work.

5-1.15 STATISTICAL TESTING - Requirements for statistical testing will not apply to the Work.

5-1.13B Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

5-1.13B(1) General

Use each DBE subcontractor as listed on the Subcontractor List form and the Local Agency - DBE Information form unless you receive authorization for a substitution.

Notify the Engineer of any changes to your anticipated DBE participation. Submit this notification before starting the affected work.

Maintain records including:

1. Name and business address of each 1st-tier subcontractor

- 2. Name and business address of each DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier
- 3. Date of payment and total amount paid to each business

If you are a DBE contractor, include the date of work performed by your own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th day of each month, submit a Monthly DBE Trucking Verification form.

If a DBE subcontractor is decertified before completing subcontracted work, the subcontractor must notify you in writing of the decertification date. If a subcontractor becomes a certified DBE before completing subcontracted work, the subcontractor must notify you in writing of the certification date. Submit the notifications. On work completion, complete a Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change form. Submit the form within 90 days of Contract acceptance.

Upon work completion, complete a Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), First-Tier Subcontractors form. Submit it within 90 days of Contract acceptance. The City withholds \$10,000 until the form is submitted. The City releases the withhold upon submission of the completed form.

5-1.13B(2) Performance of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

DBEs must perform work or supply materials as listed in the Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment form.

Do not terminate or substitute a listed DBE listed for convenience and perform the work with your own forces or obtain materials from other sources without written authorization from the City.

The City authorizes a request to use other forces or sources of materials if it shows any of the following justifications:

- 1. Listed DBE fails or refuses to execute a written contract based on the plans and specifications for the project.
- 2. You stipulated that a bond is a condition of executing the subcontract and the listed DBE fails to meet your bond requirements.
- 3. Work requires a contractors license and the listed DBE does not have a valid license under Contractors License Law.
- 4. Listed DBE fails or refuses to perform the work or furnish the listed materials.
- 5. Listed DBE's work is unsatisfactory and not in compliance with the Contract.
- 6. Listed DBE is ineligible to work on the project because of suspension or debarment.
- 7. Listed DBE becomes bankrupt or insolvent.
- 8. Listed DBE voluntarily withdraws with written notice from the Contract.
- 9. Listed DBE is ineligible to receive credit for the type of work required.

- 10. Listed DBE owner dies or becomes disabled resulting in the inability to perform the work on the Contract.
- 11. City determines other documented good cause.

Notify the original DBE of your intent to use other forces or material sources and provide the reasons. Provide the DBE with 5 days to respond to your notice and advise you and the Department of the reasons why the use of other forces or sources of materials should not occur. Your request to use other forces or material sources must include:

- 1. 1 or more of the reasons listed in the preceding paragraph
- Notices from you to the DBE regarding the request
- 3. Notices from the DBE to you regarding the request

If a listed DBE is terminated or substituted, you must make good faith efforts to find another DBE to substitute for the original DBE. The substitute DBE must perform at least the same amount of work as the original DBE under the Contract to the extent needed to meet the DBE goal.

The substitute DBE must be certified as a DBE at the time of request for substitution.

Unless the City authorizes (1) a request to use other forces or sources of materials or (2) a good faith effort for a substitution of a terminated DBE, the City does not pay for work listed on the Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment formunless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE or an authorized substitute.

6 CONTROL OF MATERIALS

6-1 GENERAL

6-1.01 **GENERAL**

Section 6 includes specifications related to control of materials.

6-1.01A USE OF UNITED STATES-FLAG VESSELS

The CONTRACTOR shall agree to the following:

- 1. To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carries, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels.
- 2. To Furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United State or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading)

and to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590.

3. To insert the substance of the provisions of this clause in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract.

6-1.04 BUY AMERICA

6-1.04C Steel and Iron Materials

Section 6-2.05C applies to a federal-aid contract.

Furnish steel and iron materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance. Steel and iron materials must be produced in the U.S. except:

- 1. Foreign pig iron and processed, pelletized, and reduced iron ore may be used in the domestic production of the steel and iron materials [60 Fed Reg 15478 (03/24/1995)]
- 2. If the total combined cost of the materials does not exceed the greater of 0.1 percent of the total bid or \$2,500, materials produced outside the U.S. may be used.

Production includes:

- 1. Processing steel and iron materials, including smelting or other processes that alter the physical form or shape (such as rolling, extruding, machining, bending, grinding, and drilling) or chemical composition.
- 2. Coating application, including epoxy coating, galvanizing, and painting, that protects or enhances the value of steel and iron materials.

6-2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

6-2.01 GENERAL

6-2.01A GENERAL

6-2.01A (1) QUALITY ASSURANCE

The City uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract. The Contractor may examine the records and reports of tests the City performs if they are available at the job site. Schedule work to allow time for QAP.

7 LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC

7-1.01 **GENERAL**

Section 7 includes specifications regarding your:

1. Compliance with laws

- 2. Responsibilities for public safety and convenience
- 3. Responsibilities for indemnification, insurance, and liability

7-1.02 LAWS

7-1.02A General

Comply with laws, regulations, orders, and decrees applicable to the project. Indemnify and defend the State against any claim or liability arising from the violation of a law, regulation, order, or decree by you or your employees. Immediately report to the Engineer a discrepancy or inconsistency between the Contract and a law, regulation, order, or decree.

If the City incurs any fines or penalties because of your failure to comply with a law, regulation, order, or decree, the City deducts the amount of the fine or penalty.

Immediately notify the Engineer if a regulatory agency requests access to the job site or to records. Submit a list of documents provided to the agency and issued enforcement actions.

7-1.02B U.S. Fair Labor Standards Act

Comply with 29 USC § 201 et seq.

7-1.02J TITLE VI ASSURANCES

During the performance of this Agreement, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as CONTRACTOR) agrees as follows:

- Compliance with Regulations: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement.
- 2. Nondiscrimination: CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. CONTRACTOR shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- 3. Solicitations for Sub-agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONTRACTOR for work to be performed under a Sub-agreement, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-applicant or supplier shall be notified by CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- 4. Information and Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the California Department of Transportation or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any information required of CONTRACTOR is in the

- exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to the California Department of Transportation or the FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts CONTRACTOR has made to obtain the information.
- 5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONTRACTOR's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the California Department of Transportation shall impose such agreement sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
 - (a) withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under the Agreement within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; and/or
 - (b) cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.
- 6. Incorporation of Provisions: CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) in every sub-agreement, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to any sub-agreement or procurement as the California Department of Transportation or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance, provided, however, that, in the event CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-applicant or supplier as a result of such direction, CONTRACTOR may request the California Department of Transportation enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and, in addition, CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

7-1.11 FEDERAL LAWS FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

7-1.11B FHWA-1273 (NEXT PAGE)

FHWA-1273 -- Revised May 1, 2012

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

- General
- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Nonsegregated Facilities
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- X. Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and Debarment Requirements
- XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying

ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

 Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract).

- Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract.
- 3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors.

II. NONDISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 CFR 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

- 1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of FFO:
- a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract.
- b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:
 - "It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."
- 2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so

- 3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
- a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.
- b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
- c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.
- d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
- e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- 4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
- a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
- b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
- c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- **5. Personnel Actions:** Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
- a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.

- b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and onthe-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance. In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion
- **7. Unions:** If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
- a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.
- c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency

and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.

- d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.
- 8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there under. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- 9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.
- a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b):

- a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency deems appropriate.
- 11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
- a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:
 - (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-minority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
- (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and

- (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women;
- b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more.

The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location, under the contractor's control, where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size). The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to other projects.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

1. Minimum wages

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and $% \left(1\right) =\left(1\right) \left(1\right)$
 - (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
 - (2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
 - (3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

- (4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and basic records

a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency..

- (2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
 - (i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete;
 - (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
 - (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
 - (3) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section.
 - (4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the

contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and trainees

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in

a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration.

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
 - d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

- **5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- **6. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- **7. Contract termination: debarment.** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

- **8.** Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- **9. Disputes concerning labor standards.** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of eligibility.

- a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section.

- 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section.
- **4. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this section.

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).
- a. The term "perform work with its own organization" refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions:
- (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees; (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of
- (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;
- (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and
- (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract.
- 2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.

- 3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract.
- 5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements.

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- 1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.
- 2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).
- 3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.3704).

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these

and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows:

- 1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act.
- 2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more — as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

1. Instructions for Certification - First Tier Participants:

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.

- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.
- i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good

faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

* * * *

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
- (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
- (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and
- (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200)

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily

excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.
- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

* * * * *

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

* * * * *

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000 (49 CFR 20).

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

7-1.11C Female and Minority Goals

To comply with section II, "Nondiscrimination," of "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," the Department is including in section 7-1.11C female and minority utilization goals for federal-aid construction contracts and subcontracts that exceed \$10,000.

The nationwide goal for female utilization is 6.9 percent.

The goals for minority utilization [45 Fed Reg 65984 (10/3/1980)] are as shown in the following table:

Minority Utilization Goals

| | Economic area | Goal (Percent) |
|-----|---|-------------------|
| 174 | Redding CA: | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties: | 6.8 |
| | CA Lassen; CA Modoc; CA Plumas; CA Shasta; CA Siskiyou; CA Tehama | |
| 175 | Eureka, CA | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties: | 6.6 |
| | CA Del Norte; CA Humboldt; CA Trinity | |
| 176 | San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA: | |
| | SMSA Counties: | |
| | 7120 Salinas-Seaside-Monterey, CA | 28.9 |
| | CA Monterey | |
| | 7360 San Francisco-Oakland | 25.6 |
| | CA Alameda; CA Contra Costa; CA Marin; CA San Francisco; CA San Mateo | |
| | 7400 San Jose, CA | |
| | CA Santa Clara, CA | 19.6 |
| | 7485 Santa Cruz, CA | |
| | CA Santa Cruz | 14.9 |
| | 7500 Santa Rosa | |
| | CA Sonoma | 9.1 |
| | 8720 Vallejo-Fairfield-Napa, CA | |
| | CA Napa; CA Solano | 17.1 |
| | Non-SMSA Counties: | |
| | CA Lake; CA Mendocino; CA San Benito | 23.2 |
| 177 | Sacramento, CA: | |
| | SMSA Counties: | |
| | 6920 Sacramento, CA | 16.1 |
| | CA Placer; CA Sacramento; CA Yolo | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties | 14.3 |
| | CA Butte; CA Colusa; CA El Dorado; CA Glenn; CA Nevada; CA Sierra; CA | |
| | Sutter; CA Yuba | |

| | Economic area | Goal (Percent) |
|-----|--|-------------------|
| 178 | Stockton-Modesto, CA: | |
| | SMSA Counties: | |
| | 5170 Modesto, CA | 12.3 |
| | CA Stanislaus | |
| | 8120 Stockton, CA | 24.3 |
| | CA San Joaquin | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties | 19.8 |
| | CA Alpine; CA Amador; CA Calaveras; CA Mariposa; CA Merced; CA | |
| | Tuolumne | |
| 179 | Fresno-Bakersfield, CA | |
| | SMSA Counties: | |
| | 0680 Bakersfield, CA | 19.1 |
| | CA Kern | |
| | 2840 Fresno, CA | 26.1 |
| | CA Fresno | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties: | 23.6 |
| | CA Kings; CA Madera; CA Tulare | |
| 180 | Los Angeles, CA: | |
| | SMSA Counties: | |
| | 0360 Anaheim-Santa Ana-Garden Grove, CA | 11.9 |
| | CA Orange | |
| | 4480 Los Angeles-Long Beach, CA | 28.3 |
| | CA Los Angeles | |
| | 6000 Oxnard-Simi Valley-Ventura, CA | 21.5 |
| | CA Ventura | |
| | 6780 Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA | 19.0 |
| | CA Riverside; CA San Bernardino | |
| | 7480 Santa Barbara-Santa Maria-Lompoc, CA | 19.7 |
| | CA Santa Barbara | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties | 24.6 |
| | CA Inyo; CA Mono; CA San Luis Obispo | |
| 181 | San Diego, CA: | |
| | SMSA Counties | |
| | 7320 San Diego, CA | 16.9 |
| | CA San Diego | |
| | Non-SMSA Counties | 18.2 |
| | CA Imperial | |

For each July during which work is performed under the Contract, you and each non-material-supplier subcontractor with a subcontract of \$10,000 or more must complete Form FHWA PR-1391 (Appendix C to 23 CFR 230). Submit the forms by August 15.

7-1.11D Training

For the Federal training program, the number of trainees or apprentices is ____.

As part of your equal opportunity affirmative action program, provide on-the-job training to develop full journeymen in the types of trades or job classifications involved.

You have primary responsibility for meeting this training requirement.

If you subcontract a Contract part, determine how many trainees or apprentices are to be trained by the subcontractor.

Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation must be in their 1st year of apprenticeship or training.

Distribute the number of apprentices or trainees among the work classifications on the basis of your needs and the availability of journeymen in the various classifications within a reasonable recruitment area.

Before starting work, submit:

- 1. Number of apprentices or trainees to be trained for each classification.
- 2. Training program to be used.
- 3. Training starting date for each classification.

Obtain the Department's approval for this submitted information before you start work. The Department credits you for each apprentice or trainee you employ on the work who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program.

The primary objective of section 7-1.11D is to train and upgrade minorities and women toward journeymen status. Make every effort to enroll minority and women apprentices or trainees, such as conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minority and women apprentices or trainees, to the extent they are available within a reasonable recruitment area. Show that you have made the efforts. In making these efforts, do not discriminate against any applicant for training.

Do not employ as an apprentice or trainee an employee:

- 1. In any classification in which the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or in which the employee has been employed as a journeyman.
- 2. Who is not registered in a program approved by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training.

Ask the employee if the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or has been employed as a journeyman. Your records must show the employee's answers to the questions.

In your training program, establish the minimum length and training type for each classification. The Department and FHWA approves a program if one of the following is met:

1. It is calculated to:

- a) Meet your equal employment opportunity responsibilities.
- b) Qualify the average apprentice or trainee for journeyman status in the classification involved by the end of the training period.
- 2. It is registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training and it is administered in a way consistent with the equal employment responsibilities of federal-aid highway construction contracts.

Obtain Department approval for your training program before you start work involving the classification covered by the program.

Provide training in the construction crafts, not in clerk-typist or secretarial-type positions. Training is allowed in lower level management positions such as office engineers, estimators, and timekeepers if the training is oriented toward construction applications. Training is allowed in the laborer classification if significant and meaningful training is provided and approved by the FHWA division office. Off-site training is allowed if the training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not make up a significant part of the overall training.

The Department reimburses you 80 cents per hour of training given an employee on this Contract under an approved training program:

- 1. For on-site training
- 2. For off-site training if the apprentice or trainee is currently employed under a federal-aid contract and you do at least one of the following:
 - 2.1. Contribute to the cost of the training
 - 2.2. Provide the instruction to the apprentice or trainee
 - 2.3. Pay the apprentice's or trainee's wages during the off-site training period
- 3. If you comply with section 7-1.11D

Each apprentice or trainee must:

- 1. Start training on the project as soon as feasible after the start of work involving the apprentice's or trainee's craft
- 2. Remain on the project as long as training opportunities exist in the apprentice's or trainee's work classification or until the apprentice or trainee has completed the training program

Furnish the apprentice or trainee:

- 1. Copy of the program you will comply with in providing the training
- 2. Certification showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed

Maintain records and submit reports documenting your performance under section 7-1.11D.

8 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS

8-1.01 **GENERAL**

Section 8 includes specifications related to prosecuting the Contract and work progress.

8-1.10 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

8-1.10D BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

| The Contractor shall begin work within 15 calendar days after the contract has been approved by th | e |
|--|---|
| attorney appointed and authorized to represent the City. | |

This work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the expiration of ___ **WORKING DAYS** beginning on the fifteenth calendar day after approval of the contract.

The Contractor shall pay to the City the sum of \$ _____ per day, for each and every calendar day's delay in finishing the work in excess of the number of working days prescribed above.

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS (13-95)

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS - MATERIALS

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS - DESCRIPTION OF BRIDGE WORK

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS - CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS - BUILDINGS

CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS - RAILROAD RELATIONS

ATTACHMENT E

SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS

SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The following Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP) modifies the following documents:

- 1. The **2015 Edition** of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The "GREENBOOK") currently in effect.
- 2. The **2015 Edition** of the City of San Diego Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The "WHITEBOOK") including the following:
 - a) General Provisions (A) for all Contracts.
 - b) General Provisions (B) for Job Order Contracting (JOC).

SECTION 1 - TERMS, DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, UNITS OF MEASURE, AND SYMBOLS

1-2 TERMS AND DEFINITIONS. To the "WHITEBOOK", item 54, "Normal Working Hours", ADD the following:

The **Normal Working Hours** will be identified in each Task Order.

SECTION 2 - SCOPE AND CONTROL OF WORK

- **2-3.2 Self Performance.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. You shall perform, with your own organization, Contract Work amounting to at least 50% of the base Bid.

ADD:

2-5.3.7 Contractor's Quality Control Plan (QCP).

- 1. You shall establish, implement, and maintain an effective Quality Control Plan (QCP) to perform quality control inspection and testing for all items of paving Work required by the Contract Documents, including those performed by subcontractors and material suppliers.
- 2. The QCP shall ensure conformance to applicable specification and plan requirements with respect to materials, workmanship, construction, finish, and functional performance.
- 3. The QCP shall detail the methods and procedures that will be taken to ensure that all materials and construction required for street pavement restoration will conform to the Contract Documents, and to ensure that information

included will be recorded in Daily Quality Control (QC) Inspection Reports for the Engineer's verification and approval.

- 4. You shall establish a level of control that will:
 - a) Provide for the production and delivery of acceptable quality materials.
 - b) Provide documentation that construction meets Contract requirements.
- 5. During the pre-construction meeting, you shall be prepared to discuss and present details of your QCP. You shall not begin any production of materials or construction of surface preparation, pavement restoration, and other related work until your QCP has been reviewed and approved by the Engineer. No partial payment will be made for materials subject to specific quality control requirements until the QCP has been approved.
- 6. The quality control requirements contained in this section and elsewhere in the Contract Documents are in addition to and separate from the acceptance testing requirements discussed elsewhere in the contract specifications.

2-5.3.7.1 QCP Submittal.

- 1. Submit the QCP in a written document to the Engineer at the pre-construction meeting. The QCP shall be reviewed and approved by the Engineer prior to the start of any material delivery or paving work.
- 2. The QCP shall be organized to address, at a minimum, the following items:
 - a) Quality Control Administrator
 - b) Surface preparation and paving schedule.
 - c) Inspection and documentation requirements (Daily Quality Control Inspection Report).
 - d) Material quality control testing plan.
 - e) Documentation of quality control activities.
 - f) Procedures for corrective action when quality control and/or acceptance criteria are not met.
- 3. You are encouraged to add any additional elements to the QCP as deemed necessary to adequately control all production and construction processes required by Contract Documents.

2-5.3.7.2 OCP Administrator.

- 1. You shall designate a QCP Administrator to implement the QCP.
 - a) The QCP Administrator shall be your full-time employee or your consultant. The QCP Administrator shall have full authority to institute

- any and all actions necessary for the successful implementation of the QCP to ensure compliance with the Contract Documents.
- b) The QCP Administrator shall ensure that the following functions are performed and documented:
 - i. Inspection of all materials, construction, plant, and equipment for conformance to the specifications.
 - ii. Performance of all quality control tests as required by the Contract Documents.
 - iii. Performance of density tests for the Engineer when required.

2-5.3.7.3 Inspection Requirements.

- 1. Quality control inspection functions shall be organized to provide inspections for all definable features of Work. You shall document all inspections.
- 2. Inspections shall be performed daily to ensure continuing compliance with contract requirements until completion of the particular feature of Work. These shall include the following minimum requirement:
 - a) During field operations, quality control test results and periodic inspections shall be utilized to ensure the quality of all materials and workmanship meets the requirements of the contract. All equipment utilized in placing, finishing, and compacting shall be inspected to ensure its proper operating condition and to ensure that all such operations are in conformance to the specifications and are within the plan dimensions, lines, grades, and tolerances specified. The QCP shall document how these and other quality control functions will be accomplished and utilized.

2-5.3.7.4 Documentation.

- 1. You shall maintain current quality control records of all inspections performed. These records shall include factual evidence that the required inspections or tests have been performed, including type and number of inspections or tests involved; results of inspections or tests; nature of defects, deviations, causes for rejection, etc.; proposed remedial action; and corrective actions taken.
- 2. These records shall cover both conforming and defective or deficient features, and shall include a statement that all supplies and materials incorporated in the Work are in full compliance with the terms of the Contract. Legible copies of these records for the entire week of paving work shall be furnished to the Engineer after 2 Working Days. The records shall cover all Work placed subsequent to the previously furnished records and shall be verified and signed by the QCP Administrator.

- 3. Specific QCP records required for the Contract shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following records:
 - a) **Daily Quality Control (QC) Inspection Reports.** The QCP Administrator shall maintain a daily log of all inspections performed for both Contractor and subcontractor operations. These daily QC inspection reports shall provide factual evidence that continuous quality control inspections have been performed and shall, as a minimum, include the following items:
 - i. Date and location/s of paving work performed.
 - ii. Asphalt mix specifications and supplier.
 - iii. Dig out locations.
 - iv. Tack coat application rate for each location.
 - v. Asphalt temperature at placement for each location.
 - vi. Asphalt depth for each location.
 - vii. Compaction test results for each location.
 - viii. Documentation that the following have been verified to be in compliance:
 - Proper storage of materials and equipment.
 - Proper operation of all equipment.
 - Adherence to plans and technical specifications.
 - Review of quality control tests.
 - Safety inspection.
 - ix. Location and nature of defects with remedial and corrective actions.
 - x. Presence of City Laboratory representative.
 - xi. Deviations from QCP.
 - xii. Signature of QCP Administrator.

The daily QC inspection reports shall identify inspections conducted, results of inspections, location and nature of defects found, causes for rejection, and remedial or corrective actions taken or proposed.

- b) The daily QC inspection reports shall be signed by the QCP Administrator. The Engineer shall be provided at least 1 copy of each daily QC inspection report for the entire week 2 Working Days following the end of the week.
- c) Refer to Task Order Documents for a sample of the daily QC inspection report. An updated version of this sample report will be provided at the pre-construction meeting.

2-5.3.7.5 Corrective Action Requirements.

- 1. The QCP shall indicate the appropriate action to be taken when a process is deemed, or believed, to be out of control (out of tolerance) and detail what action will be taken to bring the process into control.
- 2. The requirements for corrective action shall include both general requirements for operation of the QCP as a whole and for individual items of Work contained in the specifications.
- 3. The QCP shall detail how the results of quality control inspections will be used for determining the need for corrective action and shall contain clear sets of rules to gauge when a process is out of control and the type of correction to be taken to regain process control.

2-5.3.7.6 Noncompliance.

- 1. The Engineer will notify you of any noncompliance with any of the foregoing requirements. You shall, after receipt of such notice, immediately take corrective action. Any notice, when delivered by the Engineer to you, shall be considered sufficient notice.
- 2. In cases where quality control activities do not comply with either the QCP or the contract provisions, or where you fail to properly operate and maintain an effective QCP, as determined by the Engineer, the Engineer may:
 - a) Require replacement of ineffective or unqualified QCP personnel or subcontractors.
 - b) Stop operations until appropriate corrective actions are taken.

2-5.3.7.7 Payment.

1. For payment for preparation, submittal, implementation and maintenance of the Quality Control Plan in accordance with the Contract Documents, refer to Task Order Documents.

2-7 SUBSURFACE DATA. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

- 4. In preparation of the Contract Documents, the designer has relied upon the following reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the Work Site:
 - a) Refer to Task Order Documents.

ADD:

2-10 AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD AND THE ENGINEER. To the "GREENBOOK", Paragraph (2), DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The decision of the Engineer is final and binding on all questions relating to: quantities; acceptability of material, equipment, or work; execution, progress or sequence of work; requests for information (RFI), and interpretation of the Plans, Specifications, or other Contract Documents. This shall be precedent to any payment under the Contract. The Engineer shall be the single point of contact and shall be included in all communications.

- **2-14.2 Integration of the Work with Separate Contractors.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 2. The list of Separate Contractors includes:
 - a) Refer to Task Order documents.
- **2-14.3 Coordination.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 2. Other adjacent City projects may be scheduled for construction for the same time period in the vicinity of a Task Order. The Work shall be coordinated with the adjacent projects as listed in the Task Order documents.
- **2-15 TECHNICAL STUDIES AND DATA.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 3. In preparation of the Contract Documents, the designer has relied upon the following reports of explorations and tests at the Work Site:
 - a) Refer to Task Order documents.
- **2-16 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION AND ELECTRONIC REPORTING SYSTEM.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 1, DELETE in its entirety.

SECTION 3 - CHANGES IN WORK

3-5.1 Claims. To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

ADD:

3-5.1 Claims.

- 1. A Claim is a written demand by you that seeks an adjustment in the Contract Price, Contract Time, or other relief associated with a dispute arising under or relating to the Contract, including a breach of any provision thereof. A voucher, invoice, or other routine request for payment is not a Claim.
- 2. A Claim shall conform to these specifications and may be considered after the City has previously denied a request by you for a Change Order seeking the demanded relief.
- 3. You shall submit a Claim to the Engineer if a dispute occurs that arises from or relates to the Contract. The Claim shall seek all relief to which you assert you are entitled as a result of the event(s) giving rise to the dispute. Your failure to process a Claim in accordance with these specifications shall constitute a waiver of all relief associated with the dispute. Claims are subject to 6-11, "Right to Audit".
- 4. You shall continue to perform the Services and Work and shall maintain the Schedule during any dispute proceedings. The Engineer will continue to make payments for undisputed Services and Work.

5. The City's Claims process specified herein shall not relieve you of your statutory obligations to present claims prior to any action under the California Government Code.

3-5.1.1 Initiation of Claim.

- 1. You shall promptly, but no later than 30 Days after the event(s) giving rise to the Claim, deliver the Claim to the Engineer.
- 2. You shall not process a Claim unless the Engineer has previously denied a request by you for a Change Order that sought the relief to be pursued in the claim.

3-5.1.1.1 Claim Certification Submittal.

- 1. If your Claim seeks an increase in the Contract Price, the Contract Time, or both, submit with the Claim an affidavit certifying the following:
 - a) The Claim is made in good faith and covers all costs and delays to which you are entitled as a result of the event(s) giving rise to the Claim.
 - b) The amount claimed accurately reflects the adjustments in the Contract Price, the Contract Time, or both to which you believe you are entitled.
 - c) All supporting costs and pricing data are current, accurate, and complete to the best of your knowledge. The cost breakdown per item of Work shall be supplied.
 - d) You shall ensure that the affidavit is executed by an official who has the authority to legally bind you.

3-5.1.2 Initial Determination.

1. The Engineer will respond in writing to your Claim within 30 Days of receipt of the Claim.

3-5.1.3 Settlement Meeting.

1. If you disagree with the Initial Determination, you shall request a Settlement Meeting within 30 Days. Upon receipt of this request, the Engineer will schedule the Settlement Meeting within 15 Working Days.

3-5.1.4 City's Final Determination.

- 1. If a settle agreement is not reached, the City shall make a written Final Determination within 10 Working Days after the Settlement Meeting.
- 2. If you disagree with the City's Final Determination, notify the Engineer in writing of your objection within 15 Working Days after receipt of the written determination and file a "Request for Mediation" in accordance with 3-5.2, "Dispute Resolution Process".
- 3. Failure to give notice of objection within the 15 Working Days period shall waive your right to pursue the Claim.

3-5.1.5 Mandatory Assistance.

- 1. If a third party dispute, litigation, or both arises out of or relates in any way to the Services provided under the Contract, upon the City's request, you shall agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Your assistance includes, but is not limited to the following:
 - a) Providing professional consultations.
 - b) Attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials, or any event related to the dispute resolution and litigation.

3-5.1.5.1 Compensation for Mandatory Assistance.

- 1. The City will reimburse you for reasonable fees and expenses incurred by you for any required assistance rendered in accordance with 3-5.1.8, "Mandatory Assistance" as Extra Work.
- 2. The Engineer will determine whether these fees and expenses were necessary due to your conduct or failure to act.
- 3. If the Engineer determines that the basis of the dispute or litigation in which these fees and expenses were incurred were the result of your conduct or your failure to act in part or in whole, you shall reimburse the City for any payments made for these fees and expenses.
- 4. Reimbursement may be through any legal means necessary, including the City's withholding of your payment.

3-5.2.3 Selection of Mediator. To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

- 1. A single mediator, knowledgeable in construction aspects and acceptable to both parties, shall be used to mediate the dispute.
- 2. To initiate mediation, the initiating party shall serve a Request for Mediation at the American Arbitration Association (AAA) on the opposing party.
- 3. If AAA is used, the initiating party shall concurrently file with AAA a "Request for Mediation" along with the appropriate fees, a copy of requested mediators marked in preference order, and a preference for available dates.
- 4. If AAA is selected to coordinate the mediation (Administrator), within 10 Working Days from the receipt of the initiating party's Request for Mediation, the opposing party shall file the following:
 - a) A copy of the list of the preferred mediators listed in preference order after striking any mediators to which they have any objection.
 - b) A preference for available dates.
 - c) Appropriate fees.
- 5. If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, then each party shall select a mediator and those mediators shall select the neutral third party to mediate the matter.

- **Forum of Litigation.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - It is the express intention that all legal actions and proceedings related to the Contract or Agreement with the City or to any rights or any relationship between the parties arising therefrom shall be solely and exclusively initiated and maintained in courts of the State of California for the County of San Diego.

SECTION 4 - CONTROL OF MATERIALS

- **4-1.3.1 General.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 1. Steel pipe in sizes larger than 18 inches shall require inspection at the source of production.
 - 2. City lab staff or a qualified inspection agency approved by the Engineer shall witness all welding, lining, coating, and testing. You shall incur additional inspection costs outlined in 4-1.3.3, "Inspection of Items Not Locally Produced".
 - 3. All parts of production (including but not limited to product fabrication, welding, testing, lining, and coating of straight pieces and specials) shall be performed or produced in the United States.
 - 4. Welding and all testing shall be performed by certified welders and testing staff with credentials traceable in the United States.
- **4-1.3.2 Inspection by the Agency.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. The City will provide inspection and testing laboratory services within the continental United States within a 200-mile radius of the geographical limits of the City.
- **4-1.3.3 Inspection of Items Not Locally Produced.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety.

ADD:

- **4-1.3.3 Inspection of Items Not Locally Produced.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. When you intend to purchase materials, fabricated products, or equipment from sources located more than 200 miles (321.9 km) outside the geographical limits of the City, City Lab staff or a qualified inspection agency approved by the Engineer, shall be engaged at your expense to inspect the materials, equipment, or process.
 - 2. This approval shall be obtained before producing any material or equipment. City Lab staff or inspector shall evaluate the materials for conformance with the requirements of the Plans and Specifications. You shall forward reports required by the Engineer. No materials or equipment shall be shipped nor shall any processing, fabrication or treatment of such materials be done without proper inspection by City Lab staff or the approved agent. Approval

- by said agent shall not relieve you of responsibility for complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 3. The Engineer may elect City Lab staff to perform inspection of an out-of-town manufacturer. You shall incur additional inspection costs of the Engineer including lodging, meals, and incidental expenses based on Federal Per Diem Rates, along with travel and car rental expenses. If the manufacturing plant operates a double shift, a double shift shall be figured in the inspection costs.
 - a) At the option of the Engineer, full time inspection shall continue for the length of the manufacturing period. If the manufacturing period will exceed 3 consecutive weeks, you shall incur additional inspection expenses of the Engineer's supervisor for a trip of 2 Days to the site per month.
 - b) When the Engineer elects City Lab staff to perform out-of-town inspections, the wages of staff employed by the City shall not be part of the additional inspection expenses paid by you.
 - c) Federal Per Diem Rates can be determined at the location below: https://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877
- 4. The Engineer will perform inspections of out-of-town manufacturers for the items of Work specified here:
 - a) Refer to Task Order documents.
- **4-1.3.4 Inspection Paid For By the Contractor.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 2. The special inspections required are listed as follows:
 - a) Refer to the Task Order documents.
- **4-1.3.6 Preapproved Materials.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 3. You shall submit in writing a list of all products to be incorporated in the Work that are on the AMI.
- **4-1.6 Trade Names or Equals.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 11. You shall submit your list of proposed substitutions for an "equal" item **no**later than 5 Working Days after the issuance of the Task Order Notice To
 Proceed (NTP) and on the City's Product Submittal Form available at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/publicworks/edocref/index.shtml

SECTION 5 - UTILITIES

- **5-2 PROTECTION.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 2, ADD the following:
 - g) Refer to Task Order documents for more information on the protection of AMI devices.

COOPERATION. To the "GREENBOOK", ADD the following:

1. Notify SDG&E at least 10 Working Days prior to excavating within 10 feet of SDG&E Underground High Voltage Transmission Power Lines (69 kV and higher).

SECTION 6 - PROSECUTION, PROGRESS AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK

6-1.1 Construction Schedule. To the "WHITEBOOK", item 20, ADD the following:

The number of Calendar Days for the Plant Establishment Period shall be identified in the Task Order documents, when applicable.

To the "WHITEBOOK", item 22, subsection b, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

b) A curve value percentage comparison between the Contract Price and the updated cash flow forecast for each Project ID included in the Contract Documents. Curve values shall be set on a scale from 0% to 100% in intervals of 5% of the Contract Time. Refer to the Sample City Invoice materials in the Contract Documents and use the format shown. Your invoice amounts shall be supported by this curve value percentage. For previous periods, use the actual values and percentages and update the curve value percentages accordingly.

6-2.1 Moratoriums. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

3. Do not Work in the areas where there is currently a moratorium issued by the City. The areas subject to moratorium are listed in the Task Order documents.

ADD:

6-3.2.1.1 Environmental Document.

- 1. Refer to Task Order documents for environmental requirements.
- 2. Compliance with the City's environmental document shall be included in the Contract Price, unless separate bid items have been provided.

ADD:

6-3.2.2 Archeological and Native American Monitoring Program. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

4. Refer to Task Order documents. When applicable, you shall coordinate your activities and Schedule with the activities and schedules of the archaeologist monitor. Notify the Engineer before noon of the Working Day before monitoring is required. See 2-11, "INSPECTION" for details.

ADD:

6-3.2.3 Paleontological Monitoring Program. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

3. Refer to Task Order documents. When applicable, you shall coordinate your activities and Schedule with the activities and schedules of the paleontologist monitor. Notify the Engineer before noon of the Working Day before monitoring is required. See 2-11, "INSPECTION" for details.

SECTION 7 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR

7-3 INSURANCE. To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

7-3 INSURANCE.

1. The insurance provisions herein shall not be construed to limit your indemnity obligations contained in the Contract.

7-3.1 Policies and Procedures.

- You shall procure the insurance described below, at its sole cost and expense, to provide coverage against claims for loss including injuries to persons or damage to property, which may arise out of or in connection with the performance of the Work by you, your agents, representatives, officers, employees or Subcontractors.
- 2. Insurance coverage for property damage resulting from your operations is on a replacement cost valuation. The market value will not be accepted.
- 3. You shall maintain this insurance for the duration of this Contract and at all times thereafter when you are correcting, removing, or replacing Work in accordance with this Contract. Your liabilities under the Contract, e.g., your indemnity obligations, is not deemed limited to the insurance coverage required by this Contract.
- 4. The payment for insurance shall be included in the Contract Price as bid by you. Except as specifically agreed to by the City in writing, you are not entitled to any additional payment. Do not begin any Work under this Contract until you have provided and the City has approved all required insurance.
- 5. Policies of insurance shall provide that the City is entitled to 30 Days (10 Days for cancellation due to non-payment of premium) prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of the Contract. Your failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of the Contract may be treated by the City as a material breach of the Contract.

7-3.2 Types of Insurance.

7-3.2.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

- Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 00 01 07 98 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.
- 2. The policy shall cover liability arising from premises and operations, XCU (explosions, underground, and collapse), independent contractors, products/completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, bodily injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an insured's contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract).
- 3. There shall be no endorsement or modification limiting the scope of coverage for either "insured vs. insured" claims or contractual liability. You shall maintain the same or equivalent insurance for at least 10 years following completion of the Work.
- 4. All costs of defense shall be outside the policy limits. Policy coverage shall be in liability limits of not less than the following:

| General Annual Aggregate Limit | Limits of Liability |
|---|---------------------|
| | - |
| Other than Products/Completed Operations | \$2,000,000 |
| Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit | \$2,000,000 |
| Personal Injury Limit | \$1,000,000 |
| Each Occurrence | \$1,000,000 |

7-3.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.

- 1. You shall provide a policy or policies of Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance written on the current version of the ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or later version or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad in the amount of \$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident, covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles ("Any Auto").
- 2. All costs of defense shall be outside the limits of the policy.
- **7-3.3 Rating Requirements.** Except for the State Compensation Insurance Fund, all insurance required by this Contract as described herein shall be carried only by responsible insurance companies with a rating of, or equivalent to, at least "A-, VI" by A.M. Best Company, that are authorized by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in the State, and that have been approved by the City.
- **7-3.3.1 Non-Admitted Carriers.** The City will accept insurance provided by non-admitted, "surplus lines" carriers only if the carrier is authorized to do business in the State and is included on the List of Approved Surplus Lines Insurers (LASLI list).

All policies of insurance carried by non-admitted carriers shall be subject to all of the requirements for policies of insurance provided by admitted carriers described herein.

7-3.4 Evidence of Insurance. Furnish to the City documents e.g., certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the insurance required herein, and furnish renewal documentation prior to expiration of this insurance. Each required document shall be signed by the insurer or a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. We reserve the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required herein.

7-3.5 Policy Endorsements.

7-3.5.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

7-3.5.1.1 Additional Insured.

- 1. You shall provide at your expense policy endorsement written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 20 10 11 85 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.
- 2. To the fullest extent allowed by law e.g., California Insurance Code §11580.04, the policy shall be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured.
- 3. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is \$1,000,000 or more shall include liability arising out of:
 - a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf,
 - b) your products,
 - c) your Work, e.g., your completed operations performed by you or on your behalf, or
 - d) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.
- 4. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is less than \$1,000,000 shall include liability arising out of:
 - a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf,
 - b) your products, or
 - c) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.
- **7-3.5.1.2 Primary and Non-Contributory Coverage.** The policy shall be endorsed to provide that the coverage with respect to operations, including the completed operations, if appropriate, of the Named Insured is primary to any insurance or self-insurance of the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. Further, it shall provide that any insurance maintained by the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives shall be in excess of your insurance and shall not contribute to it.

- **7-3.5.1.3 Project General Aggregate Limit.** The policy or policies shall be endorsed to provide a Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit that will apply only to the Work. Only claims payments which arise from the Work shall reduce the Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit. The Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit shall be in addition to the aggregate limit provided for the products-completed operations hazard.
- 7-3.5.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.
- **7-3.5.2.1 Additional Insured.** Unless the policy or policies of Commercial Auto Liability Insurance are written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad, the policy shall be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured, with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by you or on your behalf. This endorsement is limited to the obligations permitted by California Insurance Code §11580.04.
- **7-3.6 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.** You shall pay for all deductibles and self-insured retentions. You shall disclose deductibles and self-insured retentions to the City at the time the evidence of insurance is provided.
- **7-3.7 Reservation of Rights.** The City reserves the right, from time to time, to review your insurance coverage, limits, deductibles and self-insured retentions to determine if they are acceptable to the City. The City will reimburse you, without overhead, profit, or any other markup, for the cost of additional premium for any coverage requested by the Engineer but not required by this Contract.
- **7-3.8 Notice of Changes to Insurance.** You shall notify the City 30 Days prior to any material change to the policies of insurance provided under this Contract.
- **7-3.9 Excess Insurance.** Policies providing excess coverage shall follow the form of the primary policy or policies e.g., all endorsements.
- **NOT USED.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

7-4 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE.

1. In accordance with the provisions of §3700 of the California Labor Code, you shall provide at your expense Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance to protect you against all claims under applicable state workers compensation laws. The City, its elected officials, and employees will not be responsible for any claims in law or equity occasioned by your failure to comply with the requirements of this section.

2. Limits for this insurance shall be not less than the following:

| Workers' Compensation | Statutory Employers Liability |
|---------------------------|-------------------------------|
| · | |
| Bodily Injury by Accident | \$1,000,000 each accident |
| Bodily Injury by Disease | \$1,000,000 each employee |
| Bodily Injury by Disease | \$1,000,000 policy limit |

- 3. By signing and returning the Contract you certify that you are aware of the provisions of §3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code and you shall comply with such provisions before commencing the Work as required by §1861 of the California Labor Code.
- **7-4.1. Waiver of Subrogation.** The policy or policies shall be endorsed to provide that the insurer will waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives for losses paid under the terms of the policy or policies and which arise from Work performed by the Named Insured for the City.
- **7-5 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 2. The City will obtain, at no cost to you, the following permits:
 - a) Refer to Task Order documents.

ADD:

- **7-6 THE CONTRACTORS REPRESENTATIVE.** To the "GREENBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 1. Both the representative and alternative representative shall be employees of the Contractor and shall not be assigned to a Subcontractor unless otherwise approved by the City in writing.
- **7-8.6 Water Pollution Control.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 6. Refer to Task Order documents.
- **7-13.4 Contractor Standards and Pledge of Compliance.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. The Contract is subject to City's Municipal Code §22.3004 as amended 10/29/13 by ordinance O-20316.
 - 2. You shall complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that you complied with the requirements of this section.
 - 3. You shall ensure that all Subcontractors complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that they complied with the requirements of this section.

- 4. You may access the Pledge of Compliance at: http://www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/pdf/contractor_standards_questionnaire.pdf
- 5. You shall require in each subcontract that the Subcontractor shall abide by the provisions of the City's Municipal Code §22.3004. A sample provision is as follows:

"Compliance with San Diego Municipal Code §22.3004: The Subcontractor acknowledges that it is familiar with the requirements of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3004 ("Contractor Standards"), and agrees to comply with requirements of that section. The Subcontractor further agrees to complete the Pledge of Compliance, incorporated herein by reference."

ADD:

7-13.8 Equal Pay Ordinance.

- 1. You shall comply with the Equal Pay Ordinance (EPO) codified in the San Diego Municipal Code (SDMC) in section 22.4801 through 22.4809, unless compliance is not required based on an exception listed in SDMC section 22.4804.
- 2. You shall require all of your Subcontractors to certify compliance with the EPO in their written subcontracts.
- 3. You shall post a notice informing your employees of their rights under the EPO in the workplace or job site.
- 4. By signing this Contract with the City of San Diego, you acknowledge the EPO requirements and pledge ongoing compliance with the requirements of SDMC Division 48, section 22.4801 et seq., throughout the duration of this Contract.

7-20 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

2. Virtual Project Manager shall be used on this Contract.

- **7-21.1 GENERAL.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 3, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 3. During the construction phase of projects, the minimum waste management reduction goal is 90% of the inert material (a material not subject to decomposition such as concrete, asphalt, brick, rock, block, dirt, metal, glass, and etc.) and 65% of the remaining project waste. You shall provide appropriate documentation, including a Waste Management Form attached as an appendix, and evidence of recycling and reuse of materials to meet the waste reduction goals specified.

- **7-21.6 Special Project Conditions.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 1, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. When removal of sediments and debris from channels and storm drains are required, you shall make a preliminary estimate of the materials that can be diverted to beneficial use. Receipts from disposal, re-use, and recycling options shall indicate that 65% of materials are diverted.
- **7-22.17 Monitoring of Potentially Petroleum Contaminated Soil.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 5. The areas of known or suspected contamination are as follows:
 - a) Refer to Task Order documents.

SECTION 9 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ADD:

- **9-3.7 Compensation Adjustments for Price Index Fluctuations.** To the "WHITEBOOK" ADD the following:
 - 5. This Contract is subject to the provisions of The "WHITEBOOK" for Compensation Adjustments for Price Index Fluctuations for paving asphalt.

SECTION 203 - BITUMINOUS MATERIALS

- **203-3.4.4 Rubber Polymer Modified Slurry (RPMS).** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety.
- **203-3.4.4.1 General.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety.

ADD:

- **203-3.4.4.1 General.** To the "GREENBOOK", paragraph (2), ADD the following:
 - e) Crumb rubber shall be a product of recycled material from the City if unavailable from the San Diego County region.

ADD:

- 203-5.6 Rubber Polymer Modified Slurry (RPMS).
- 203-5.6.1 General.
 - 1. Rubber polymer modified slurry (RPMS) is a crumb rubber asphalt slurry-seal surface treatment. RPMS shall be a stable mixture of asphaltic emulsion, mineral aggregate, set-control additives, specially produced and graded crumb rubber, polymer, mineral fillers, carbon black, and water. The materials for RPMS shall conform to 203-5.4, "Emulsion-Aggregate Slurry (EAS)" and these specifications. Mixing and spreading of RPMS shall be as described in 302-4.12, "Rubber Polymer Modified Slurry (RPMS)".
 - 2. RPMS shall be used for this Contract.

203-5.6.2 Materials.

- 1. The ingredients of RPMS immediately prior to the mixing shall conform to the following:
 - a) Asphaltic emulsion shall be a quick-set type and shall conform to the requirements of CQS-1h and to the following requirements in accordance with the specified test methods:

| Quality Tests for Emulsion | Test | Requirements |
|-------------------------------|----------------|--------------|
| AASHTO T59 | Residue after | |
| ASTM D244 | Distillation | 60% min. |
| AASHTO T49 | Penetration at | 40% 00% |
| ASTM D2397 | 77° F (25° C) | 40% - 90% |

- b) Quick setting Type CQS-1h Asphaltic Emulsion shall test positive for Particle Charge when tested in accordance with the applicable ASTM test designation. If the Particle Charge Test result is inconclusive, the asphaltic emulsion shall meet a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum.
- c) Water shall be potable and of such quality that the asphalt will not separate from the emulsion before the application of slurry seal.
- d) If necessary for workability, a set-control agent that will not adversely affect the RPMS material may be added.
- e) Polymer additive shall be SBR Latex or approved equal, which is added at a minimum of 2% by weight of the asphaltic emulsion.
- f) Crumb Rubber.
 - i. Crumb rubber shall be ambient granulated or ground from whole passenger tires, truck tires, or a combination only in conformance with the requirements indicated in Tables 203-5.6.2 (A), 203-5.6.2 (B), and 203-5.6.2 (C).
 - ii. Un-curing or de-vulcanized rubber shall not be acceptable. Rubber tire buffing from either recapping or manufacturing processes may not be used as a supplement to the crumb rubber mixture.

- iii. In order to remove steel and fabric, an initial separation stage which subjects the rubber to freezing temperatures may be used.
- iv. The crumb rubber shall not be elongated or hair-like in shape and individual particles shall not be greater than 1/20 of an inch in length.
- v. The crumb rubber shall be free of contaminants including fiber, metal, and mineral matter within the following tolerances: the fiber content shall be less than 0.30% by weight and the crumb rubber shall be free of metal particles. Metal imbedded in rubber particles shall not be allowed. The amount of mineral contaminants allowed shall not exceed 0.10% by weight.
- vi. The crumb rubber shall be dry with a moisture content of less than 0.75%.

TABLE 203-5.6.2 (A)
CRUMB RUBBER CHEMICAL PROPERTIES SPECIFICATION

| Property | Specification Limits |
|-------------------------------|----------------------|
| Specific Gravity | 1.15 ± .05 |
| Percent of Carbon Black | 35.0 Maximum |
| Percent of Rubber Hydrocarbon | 55.0 Maximum |
| Percent Ash | 6.0 Maximum |
| Percent of Acetone Extract | 10.0 Maximum |
| Percent of Chloroform Extract | 3.0 Maximum |
| Percent Natural Rubber | 40 Minimum |

TABLE 203-5.6.2 (B)

CRUMB RUBBER GRADATION REQUIREMENTS

| Sieve Size | Percent Passing |
|------------|-----------------|
| No. 30 | 100 |
| No. 40 | 90 - 100 |
| No. 50 | 75 - 85 |
| No. 100 | 25 - 35 |
| No. 200 | 0 - 10 |

TABLE 203-5.6.2 (C)

TESTING METHODS FOR CRUMB RUBBER ANALYSIS

| Property | Test Method |
|--------------------------|-------------|
| Specific Gravity | ASTM D1817 |
| Carbon Black | ASTM D297 |
| Ash | ASTM D297 |
| Chloroform Extract | ASTM D297 |
| Natural/Synthetic Rubber | ASTM D297 |
| Sieve Analysis | ASTM C136 |

vii. Carbon black solution shall be non-ionic in charge and liquid in form. The carbon black shall be compatible with the emulsion system, polymers, and additives being used and shall conform to the requirements indicated in 203-5.6.2 (D) and ASTM D1511.

TABLE 203-5.6.2 (D)

| Specification | Tolerances |
|-------------------|----------------------|
| Total Solids | 40 - 44 |
| % Black by Weight | 35 - 37 |
| Type Black | Medium Furnace Color |
| Type Dispersing | Non-ionic |

- viii. Additives may be used to accelerate or retard the break-set of the RPMS. The use of additives shall be in quantities specified in the mix design.
- ix. Mineral filler such as Portland cement, hydrated lime, limestone dust, fly ash, or other approved filler meeting the requirements of ASTM D242 shall be used if required by the mix design and may be used to facilitate set times as needed. Any cement used shall be considered as part of the dry aggregate weight for mix design purposes.
- x. The mineral aggregate used shall be the type and grade specified for the particular Type of RPMS. The aggregate shall be manufactured crushed stone such as granite, slang, limestone, chat, other high quality aggregate, or a combination thereof. Aggregate shall consist of rock dust except that 100%

of any aggregate of combination of aggregates larger than the No. 50 sieve size used in the mix shall be obtained by crushing rock. The material shall be free from vegetable matter and other deleterious substances. The aggregate shall be free of caked lumps and oversized particles. The aggregate shall also conform to the following requirements in Table 203-5.6.2 (E).

TABLE 203-5.6.2 (E)

| Test | California Test | Requirements |
|------------------|-----------------|--------------|
| Sand Equivalent | 217 | 45 min. |
| Durability Index | 229 | 55 min. |

xi. Crumb rubber shall be a product of recycled material from the City if unavailable from the San Diego County region.

203-5.6.3 Composition and Grading.

1. The percentage composition by weight of the aggregate shall conform to the requirements indicated in the tables below when determined by California Test 202 and modified by California Test 105 when there is a difference in specific gravity of 0.20 or more between blends of different aggregates.

TABLE 203-5.6.3 (A)

TYPE I SLURRY SEAL GRADATION

| Sieve Size | Percentage Passing | Stockpile Tolerance |
|------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| No.4 | 100 | ± 5% |
| No.8 | 90 - 100 | ± 5% |
| No.16 | 65 - 90 | ± 5% |
| No.30 | 40 - 60 | ± 5% |
| No.50 | 25 - 42 | ± 4% |
| No.200 | 10 - 20 | ± 2% |

TABLE 203-5.6.3 (B)
TYPE II SLURRY SEAL GRADATION

| Sieve Size | Percentage Passing | Stockpile Tolerance |
|------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| No.3/8 | 100 | ± 5% |
| No.4 | 90 - 100 | ± 5% |
| No.8 | 65 - 90 | ± 5% |
| No.16 | 45 - 70 | ± 5% |
| No.30 | 30 - 50 | ± 5% |

| Sieve Size | Percentage Passing | Stockpile Tolerance |
|------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| No.50 | 18 - 36 | ± 4% |
| No.100 | 10 - 24 | ± 3% |
| No.200 | 5 - 15 | ± 2% |

TABLE 203-5.6.3 (C)
TYPE III SLURRY SEAL GRADATION

| Sieve Size | Percentage Passing | Stockpile Tolerance |
|------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| No.3/8 | 100 | ± 5% |
| No.4 | 70 - 90 | ± 5% |
| No.8 | 45 - 70 | ± 5% |
| No.16 | 28 - 50 | ± 5% |
| No.30 | 19 - 34 | ± 5% |
| No.50 | 12 - 25 | ± 4% |
| No.100 | 7 - 18 | ± 3% |
| No.200 | 5 - 15 | ± 2% |

- 2. The job mix (target) gradation shall be within the gradation band for the desired type. After the target gradation has been submitted, the percent passing each sieve shall not be more than the stockpile tolerance.
- 3. The aggregate shall be accepted at the Site or stockpile. The stockpile shall be accepted based on 5 gradation tests according to California Test 202, modified by California Test 105 when there is a difference in specific gravity of 0.2 or more between blends of different aggregates. If the average of the 5 tests is within the gradation tolerances, then the material will be accepted. If the test shows the material to be out, you may choose to remove the material or blend other aggregates with the stockpile material to bring it into compliance with these specifications. Materials used in blending shall meet the quality test before blending and shall be blended in a manner to produce a consistent gradation.
- 4. When the results of either the Aggregate Grading or the Sand Equivalent test do not conform to the requirements specified, the aggregate shall be removed. However, if requested in writing and approved by the Engineer, the aggregate may be used and you shall pay to the agency \$1.75 per ton for such aggregate left in place. No single aggregate grading or sand equivalent tests shall represent more than 300 tons or one day's production, whichever is smaller.

203-5.6.4 Mix Design.

1. Before Work begins, you shall submit laboratory reports of mix designs performed in accordance with the tests identified in Table 203-5.6.4 at your

expense and shall utilize the specific materials to be used on the project. The design shall be prepared by a laboratory experienced in designing rubber asphalt slurry-seal surface treatments. After the mix design is approved, no substitution shall be made unless approved by the Engineer. The proposed rubber asphalt slurry-seal surface treatment mix design shall verify compatibility of the aggregate, emulsion, mineral filler, set-control additive, and rubber blend.

TABLE 203-5.6.4

| Test | Description | Specification |
|---------------------------|-------------------------|--|
| ISSA T-106 | Slurry Seal Consistency | Pass |
| ISSA TB-109 | Excess Asphalt | 50 grams/ft² maximum |
| ISSA TB-100 (Type I) | The Wet Track Abrasion | 50 grams/ ft² maximum |
| ISSA TB-100 (Type II) | The Wet Track Abrasion | 60 grams/ ft² maximum |
| ISSA TB-100 (Type III) | The Wet Track Abrasion | 60 grams/ ft² maximum |
| ISSA TB-113 | Mixing Time | Controllable to 150 seconds minimum |
| ISSA TB-114 | The Wet Stripping | Pass |

- 2. The Mixing Time test shall be done at the highest temperatures expected during construction. The original lab report shall be signed by the laboratory that performed the mix design and shall show the results of the tests on individual materials. The report shall clearly show the proportions of aggregate, mineral filler (minimum and maximum), water (minimum and maximum), additive (s) (usage), asphalt emulsion, and asphalt rubber blend based on the dry weight of the aggregate.
- 3. Component materials used in the mix design shall be representative of your proposed materials. The percentage of each individual material required shall be shown in the laboratory report. Adjustments may be required during the construction based on field conditions.
- 4. The component materials shall be within the following limits:
 - a) Residual Asphalt Type I, 10% 16% based on dry weight of aggregate.
 - b) Residual Asphalt Type II, 7.5% 13.5% based on dry weight of aggregate.
 - c) Residual Asphalt Type III, 6.5% 12% based on dry weight of aggregate.

- d) The crumb rubber will be added to the rubberized slurry mix at a rate of 5% by volume to the asphalt cement.
- e) Polymer additive shall be added at 2% of finished emulsion.
- f) Carbon Black shall be added at 1.3% to 2% of the finished emulsion.
- g) Mineral filler shall be 0.5% 2.0% (if required by mix design) based on dry weight of aggregate.
- h) Additives, as needed.
- i) Water, as needed to achieve proper mix consistency (total mix liquids shall not exceed the loose aggregate voids).

SECTION 300 - EARTHWORK

Requirements. To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 4, "Tree Removal", Paragraph c), DELETE the last sentence in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The topsoil shall be Class A.

- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 7, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 7. Payment for the removal of trees will be by Contract Bid Unit price for "Small Tree Removal & Disposal (<24 inch trunk diameter)" or "Large Tree Removal & Disposal (>=24 inch trunk diameter)" depending on the size of the tree trunk. Cutting, excavation, disposal, backfill, and placement of topsoil as defined in 300-1.3.2 shall be included in the unit bid price.

SECTION 301 – SUBGRADE PREPARATION, TREATED MATERIALS AND PLACEMENT OF BASE MATERIALS

Adjustment of Manhole and Gate Valve Frames and Covers to Grade. To the "WHITEBOOK", before Item 1, ADD the following:

Manhole, Sewer, and Water covers shall be raised to be level with the surrounding pavement surface when such appurtenances are a minimum of one inch (1") below the surface. Engineer to approve location prior to raising.

- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 4, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 4. Payment for Raising Appurtenances to Grade, manholes, valve covers, all casings, rings, extensions, concrete collars, shall be made at the Contract unit bid price for "Raise Appurtenance to Grade (Water, Sewer)" for each appurtenance raised.

To the "WHITEBOOK", item 5, DELETE in its entirety.

- **Adjustment of Survey Monuments to Grade.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 1, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. The casing and cover for survey monuments shall be adjusted to the new grade using riser rings, when such appurtenances are 1.5" to 4" below the surface, in accordance with Standard Drawing M-10A, "Street Survey Monument Overlay Adjustment" and Standard Drawing M-10B, "Street Survey Monument Notes".

The Survey Monument Precast Concrete Pipe Box must be reconstructed in accordance with Standard Drawings M-10 and Standard Drawing M-10A for survey monuments that are greater than 0.5" and less than 1.5" below the surface.

The Survey Monument Precast Concrete Pipe Box must be reconstructed in accordance with Standard Drawings M-10 and Standard Drawings M-10A for survey monuments that are greater than 4" below the surface.

- **301-1.8.1 Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. The payment for adjusting existing survey monument casing, frame, ring, covers, extensions, grout, brick support, sand base and any other material to grade shall be included in the Bid item for "Raise Survey Monument to Grade" for each survey monument raised.
 - 2. The payment for reconstructing the Survey Monument Precast Concrete Pipe Box, monument casing, frame, ring, covers, extensions, grout, brick support, sand base, and any other material required to reconstruct the precast concrete pipe box shall be included in the Bid Item Unit Price for "Reconstruct Survey Monument Box" for each the Survey Monument Precast Concrete Pipe Box reconstructed.
- **301-2.4 Measurement and Payment.** To the "GREENBOOK", ADD the following:

Payment for Class II Base material installed shall be made at the Contract Unit Price for "Class II Base" per ton of Class II base material placed and includes all necessary works such as placement and compaction.

SECTION 302 - ROADWAY SURFACING

- **302-1.1 General.** To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 10, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 10. The Contractor shall cold mill the full width of existing street pavement as marked out in the field, identified in the task order documents, and/or as directed by the Engineer.

The depth to be cold milled shall be specified in task order document List of Proposed Work (2" or 3"), unless otherwise instructed by the Engineer, and shall correspond to the depth of the asphalt to be paved. Limits of work have been marked out in the field with "AC" and "FW" on the pavement indicating Asphalt Concrete and Full Width.

Cold milled full width locations shall be paved within 3 days.

To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

- 13. Edges of milled areas shall be cut cleanly. The outside edges of the milled pavement may have a radius of transition on the sides parallel to the cutting drum.
- 14. The presence of roots, pavement fabric, rubberized material, or steel reinforcement within the depth to be cold milled have not been noted or marked out in the field.
- 15. All milling shall be performed in such a manner as to improve drainage, eliminate ponding, and re-establish gravity flow across intersections.
- 16. Prior to milling or hammering PCC, the edges adjacent to any hardscape shall be saw cut.
- 17. Material removed, regardless of removal method, shall be disposed of at a legal site. Hardscape such as bricks may be removed, set aside, and reinstalled in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer.
- **302-1.6 Cold Milling of Composite Pavements.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE the following:

The areas and depth of composite pavement to be cold milled, sawn or cut have not been identified in the field nor the Contract Documents.

302-1.9 Traffic Signal Loop Detectors. To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 4, ADD the following:

All traffic detector loops and/or other detection systems located within or adjacent to the limits of work will require replacement. All damaged detectors shall be replaced after resurfacing and striping. "Q" loops may be required at bike lanes. "E Modified" loops are required at stop bars. The contractor shall install as many loops as necessary to meet current standards.

Loops may be installed in asphalt or concrete and any other material may be encountered during the installation.

All traffic loops and/or other detection systems located within or adjacent to the limits of work within Caltrans right of way will require replacement. Traffic Loops constructed within Caltrans right of way need to be constructed in accordance to Caltrans Standard Plans.

- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", item 3 and item 4, DELETE in their entirety, and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 3. The payment for Cold Milling shall be paid per square foot of material milled and grinded, at the contract Bid Unit Price for "Cold Mill Full Width". No extra payment will be made for the milling and grinding of concrete, asphalt pavement fabric, or any other material that may be encountered during the milling and grinding, unless specified by the Engineer.
 - 4. The payment for the removal of Speed Humps shall be included in the linear foot Contract Bid Item for "Speed Hump Remove and Replace". No additional payment shall be made for milling, grinding, or saw cutting of concrete, asphalt pavement fabric, and any other material that may be encountered during the installation, unless specified by the Engineer.
- **PREPARATORY REPAIR WORK.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Prior to asphalt resurfacing, the Contractor shall complete all necessary preparation and repair work to the road segment e.g., tree trimming, root pruning, root pinning, weed abatement, weed spraying, asphalt repair, hump removal, removal of raised pavement markers, all PCC work, etc., and as specified in the Special Provisions and Contract Appendices.
 - 2. Areas of damaged asphalt requiring the preparatory work, Excavation and placement of Asphalt Concrete, and Class II Base, have been marked out in the field as "DO", Dig Out, also called Base Repair. Dig outs shall have a minimum depth of 10".
 - 3. The minimum repair area shall be 4' by 4' regardless of the mark out in the field.
 - 4. You shall repair marked out areas of distressed asphalt concrete to remove damaged areas of pavement in accordance with 302-1.1, to expose firm and unyielding pavement, base, or native soils, regardless of materials encountered. Unyielding pavement will have no visible cracked and unyielding base or native soils will be properly compacted, as determined by the Engineer, If cracks are visible, then pavement is not unyielding and shall require additional depth be removed. The Contractor shall prepare subgrade as needed and install a maximum of 5" compacted asphalt concrete pavement over the compacted base material to be level with the adjacent roadway surface.
 - 5. Edges of milled areas shall be cut cleanly.
 - 6. Materials removed, regardless of removal method, shall be disposed of at a legal site.

- 7. If, in order to achieve the minimum specified depth, the base material is exposed, then the existing base material, as well as additional base material shall be compacted to 95% relative compaction to a depth 5" below the finished grade (dig-out).
- 8. Compaction tests shall be conducted to ensure compliance with the specifications. The Engineer will determine when and where the test will occur. The City will pay for the soils testing required by the Engineer, which meets the required compaction. The Contractor shall reimburse the City for the cost of retesting failed compaction tests. If additional base material is required, the Contractor shall use Class II Aggregate Base in accordance with 200-2.2 and 200-2.9 "Crushed Aggregate Base" and "Class 2 Aggregate Base" respectively. The base material shall be prepared as per 301, "Subgrade Preparation".
- 9. Recycled base material shall conform to Crushed Miscellaneous Base Material in accordance with 200-2.4, "Crushed Miscellaneous Aggregate Base".
- 10. Prior to replacing asphalt concrete, the area shall be cleaned by removing all loose and damaged materials, moisture, dirt, and other foreign matter and shall be tack coated in accordance with 302-5.4, "Tack Coat"
- 11. When milling and/or grinding asphalt pavement for base repair and the Contractor encounters level and unyielding PCC trench caps or appurtenance collars before reaching a minimum depth of 2", then the Contractor shall place enough asphalt concrete pavement to bring the surface to be level with the adjacent roadway.
- 12. The Contractor shall install new asphalt concrete within the repair area for patches in accordance with 302-5, "Asphalt Concrete Pavement". Asphalt concrete shall be B3 PG 64-10 (3/4") and C2-PG 64-10 (1/2") in compliance with 203-6, "Asphalt Concrete".
- 13. Base repairs shall not exceed 20% Recycled Asphalt Pavement in content.
- 14. No preparatory asphalt work shall be done when the atmospheric temperature is below 50 degrees Fahrenheit or during unsuitable weather.
- 15. Following the asphalt placement, the Contractor shall roll the entire area of new asphalt in both directions at least twice. The finished patch shall be level and smooth in compliance with 302-5.6.2, "Density and Smoothness".
- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. The payment for the preparatory works shall be included in the Contract Unit Bid Item for which preparation works are performed, unless it is specified as a separate Bid Item.

- 2. The areas and quantities shown on the road segments and in the appendices are given only for the Contractor's aid in planning the Work and preparing Bids. The Engineer will designate the limits to be removed and prepared and these designated areas shall take precedent over the areas shown in the Task Order. The quantities shown in the task order documents are based on a street assessment survey and may vary. No payment shall be made for areas of over excavation as determined by the Engineer.
- 3. At the end of each day the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer an itemized list of the asphalt pavement and base repair work completed. The list shall include the location of the work, the exact cubic yard of materials removed, tons of asphalt placed, and tons of base material placed.
- 4. The payment for preparatory repair works shall be paid at the Contract Unit Price for "Excavation" for each cubic yard of material removed. This includes excavating, milling, grinding, hauling and disposal, saw cutting of existing pavement, root pruning, tree trimming, root pinning, tack coating, compaction, locating the depth and elevation of existing underground utilities, and all other necessary works related to "Excavation".

No additional payment shall be made for the milling, grinding, saw cutting, hauling and disposal of concrete, pavement fabric, rubberized asphalt, or any other materials encountered, unless specified by the Engineer.

- 5. The payment for "Asphalt Concrete" placed and compacted during the preparatory repair works shall be paid per ton, in accordance with 302-5.9
- 6. The payment for "Class II Base" placed and compacted during the preparatory repair works shall be paid per ton in accordance with 301-2.4

ADD:

302-4.12.2.1.1 Slurry Treatment.

- 1. When slurry treatment is required by the Contract Documents, notify the Engineer at least 10 Working Days prior to the first application of slurry. The Engineer, upon assessment of street condition and classification, will verify the slurry type to be applied.
- 2. Application of sequential layers of slurry shall not commence until approved by the Engineer and until the following have been completed:
 - a) Mix design and wet track abrasion testing for the first-step slurry application has been approved by the Engineer. Unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, this testing may require 4 Working Days from field sampling to reporting of test results to the Engineer.

b) Corrective actions have been executed in accordance with 302-4.11.1.2, "Reduction in Payment Based on WTAT" such as reductions in payment, non-payment, or removal of material not meeting specifications, as directed by the Engineer.

302-5.5 Distribution and Spreading. To the "WHITEBOOK". ADD the following:

17. Asphalt Inlay shall consist of cold milling the existing asphalt concrete to a minimum depth of 2" for residential or local streets or a minimum of 3" for non-residential and local streets, then inlaying new asphalt concrete upon the existing roadbed at 2" for residential streets and 3" for non-residential streets. The asphalt concrete to be used for 2" inlay or 3" inlay shall be C2-PG 64-10 (1/2").

Street sections shall be marked in the field as "F/W" (1" to 2" Full Width Grind) and "AC" (2" or 3" Inlay, as designated in the Request For Proposal).

Cold milling along the edges of existing concrete curb and/or gutter shall be in accordance with City of San Diego Standard Drawing SDG-106.

302-5.9 Measurement and Payment. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

3. The payment for Asphalt Concrete Inlay shall be paid per ton of Asphalt Concrete material placed, at the Contract Bid Unit Price for "Asphalt Concrete".

The payment includes the cost for placing the Asphalt Concrete and all necessary works related to the placement and compaction of the Asphalt Concrete material for Asphalt Inlay.

Payment. To the "WHITEBOOK", item 1, last sentence, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Payment shall not be made for additional fabric for overlapped areas.

SECTION 303 - CONCRETE AND MASONRY CONSTRUCTION

303-5.1.1 General. To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:

- 7. All PCC cross gutters, curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveways, bus pads, alley aprons, street panels, and curb ramps shall be constructed in accordance with the applicable City of San Diego Standard Drawings or CalTrans Standard Plans if within CalTrans right of way. Limits of work are as marked out in the field as "PCC" and identified in the Request For Proposal (RFP or as instructed by the Engineer. All work to be completed within CalTrans right of way as identified in RFP.
- 8. Where landscaping and/or hardscape is removed from parkway areas adjacent to the construction site, the Contractor shall be responsible for filling with clean, compacted dirt to grade.

- 9. All curb ramps constructed within CalTrans right of way shall be constructed in accordance with the CalTrans Standard Plans. Curb ramps in CalTrans right of way will be identified in RFP.
- Curb Outlet Type A shall be constructed in accordance with the City of San Diego Standard Drawing D-25. Locations for Curb Outlet – Type A will be identified in task order documents as "D-25" or as directed by the Engineer.
- **Measurement and Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Payment for demolition, removal, and installation of concrete cross gutters or concrete commercial driveways shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price per square foot of "PCC Cross Gutter or PCC Commercial Driveway".
 - 2. Payment for demolition, removal, and installation of concrete bus pads or concrete pavements shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price per square foot of "PCC Bus Pad or PCC Pavement"
 - 3. Payment for demolition, removal and installation of concrete alley aprons and driveways shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price per square foot of "PCC Alley Apron or Residential Driveways".
 - 4. Payment for the demolition, removal, and construction of concrete curb and gutter shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price per linear foot of "Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter" installed, no additional payment will be made for removing and replacing Curb and Gutter of a different type or curb height.
 - Payment for the demolition, removal, and construction of depressed curb and gutter at PCC driveways or PCC curb ramps shall be included in the Contract unit price for corresponding bid item.
 - 5. Payment for the demolition, removal, and replacement of damaged meter or pull boxes or covers, and installation of new concrete meter or pull boxes with new covers shall be made at the Contract unit price of "PCC Meter Box w/ cover or Pull Box w/ cover Replace damaged" for each box with cover installed.
 - 6. Payment for the demolition, removal, and replacement of concrete walks shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price of "Remove and Replace Existing Sidewalk" per square foot of sidewalk placed.
 - At locations where the width of the walk is being reduced, payment for removing the existing walk shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price "Remove and Replace Existing Sidewalk" per square foot of sidewalk placed.
 - Payment for the removal, demolition, and construction of sidewalk at PCC Driveways or PCC Curb Ramps within the flare, transition area, or landing shall be included in the Contract Unit Price for the corresponding bid item.
 - 7. Payment for the removal and relocation of existing Contractor Date Stamps and Impressions shall be made at the Contract Unit Bid Price of "Contractor Date Stamps and Impressions" for each stamp and/or Impression removed and relocated.

- 8. Payment for the demolition and removal, and installment of a Curb Outlet Type A shall be made at the Contract Unit Bid Price of "Curb Outlet Type A".
- 9. Payment for all necessary preparation works as it is specified in the contract document and all related work such as labor, monument preservation and restoration, demolition, root pruning, forming, grading, construction materials, finishing, hauling, disposal, site maintenance, base material, and clean fill dirt is included in all individual concrete work bid items listed in this section
- **303-5.10.1 Installation.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 8. "PCC Curb Ramp Large" refer to Curb Ramps built in accordance to the Standard Drawings for all types and cases, except for the Type D curb ramps. "PCC Curb Ramp Small" refers to the Type D curb ramps.
- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 2, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 2. Payment for the demolition, removal, and construction of concrete ADA compliant curb access ramps shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price of "PCC Curb Ramp Large" or "PCC Curb Ramp Small" for each ramp installed.
 - Payment for the demolition, removal, and construction of concrete ADA compliant curb access ramps within CalTrans right of way shall be made at the Contract Bid Unit Price of "PCC Curb Ramp Large".

SECTION 314 - TRAFFIC STRIPING, CURB AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS, AND PAVEMENT MARKERS

GENERAL. To the "GREENBOOK", ADD the following:

All crosswalks required for this contract shall be in conformance with the Standard Drawing SDM-116 for Continental Crosswalks.

The Contractor shall install all traffic striping, pavement markings, pavement markers and devices in accordance with current standards regardless of the existing conditions and installation will include the proposed striping modifications as identified in the Task Order. All striping modifications shall be coordinated by the Engineer.

Payment. To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

See 314-5.7.

Payment. To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

See 314-5.7.

Payment. To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

See 314-5.7.

Payment. To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

See 314-5.7.

Payment. To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

All work, materials, and labor associated with removing traffic striping and pavement markings, and thermoplastics, removal of pavement markers and devices, installing painted traffic striping and markings, installing thermoplastics, replacement and installation of new pavement markers and devices shall be included in the lump sum bid item for "Remove, Replace & Install Traffic Striping, Markers, Markings, & Devices" regardless of amount installed.

Payment for delineators and other traffic control facilities shall be included in the Contract lump sum price for "Remove, Replace & replace, Install Traffic Striping, Markers, Markings, & Devices:" regardless of amount installed.

SECTION 601 - TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE WORK ZONES

- **601-2.1.2 Engineered Traffic Control Plans (TCP).** To the "GREENBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 6. Engineered TCP (2 foot x 3 foot size) shall be required for the following areas:
 - a) Refer to the Task Order Documents
- **Payment.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE the following:
 - 1. The payment for all temporary traffic control Work, including any traffic control devices that may be required by the City, shall be made at the Contract lump sum bid price for "Traffic Control including Plans".
 - 2. No separate or additional payment shall be made for the following: operation, maintenance, repair, or replacement of Temporary Traffic Control zone devices; all traffic control devices, required signs, notices, and detours; Work Drawings, Traffic Control Plans; labor; and traffic control for grinding, resurfacing, striping, loop installation.
 - 3. Payment for traffic control plans submitted for CalTrans permits shall be included in the lump sum bid price for "Traffic Control including Plans".

SECTION 700 - MATERIALS

- **700-9.1 Pedestrian Barricade.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Pedestrian barricades shall be constructed in accordance with the City of San Diego Standard Drawing SDE-103, "Pedestrian Barricade".
 - 2. Assembly shall be commercial quality galvanized material.

SECTION 701 - CONSTRUCTION

- **701-2 PAYMENT.** To the "WHITEBOOK", ADD the following:
 - 19. The payment for Pedestrian Barricades shall be included in the Bid Item for each "Pedestrian Barricade". This includes all work, material, and labor associated with the installment of a Pedestrian Barricade.
- **701-17.7.5 Payment.** To the "GREENBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Payment for pedestrian signal head and push buttons will be paid at the contract unit price "Pedestrian Signal Head and Push Button Relocation".

This includes all material, labor, and work required to relocate and install pedestrian push buttons and pedestrian signal heads.

All excavation, hauling and disposal of materials required to relocate and install pedestrian push buttons will be included in the payment for curb ramp installation, see section 303-5.10.2.

SECTION 801 - INSTALLATION

- **801-4.1 General.** To the "WHITEBOOK", Item 1 and Item 2, DELETE in their entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Quantities, locations, and type of plant materials trees to be planted shall be as specified in the Contract Documents. Minimum required sizes shall be:
 - a) Minimum Size Required Canopy Shade Tree = 24" Box
 - b) Minimum Size Non-Required Canopy Shade Tree = #15 (15 Gallon) Container.
 - c) Minimum Size Palm Species = 10' Brown Trunk Height (14' Brown Trunk Height at Bus Stop or Red Curb)

If after the soil excavation, the Engineer determines that it is not possible to save existing tree with the "Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation" methods, Contractor shall remove the tree and plant new tree at that location.

The Engineer will determine, based on a recommendation from the City of San Diego Horticulturist, the type of the tree to be planted.

Payment will be made to the Contractor for actual costs incurred in connection with the Pneumatic soil excavation and tree root relocation. Payment for the tree removal and tree planting will be made by related Contract Bid Unit Price.

2. All plants shall be reviewed and approved by the Engineer prior to planting, including plants previously approved at the nursery. Contractor shall be responsible for the condition of all plants planted until the final acceptance by the Engineer.

801-7 MAINTENANCE OF EXISTING TREES.

- **Root Pruning for Re-configured Sidewalk.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. At locations where the width of the sidewalk will be reduced or moved over to enlarge the tree well, arrange for root pruning after the existing sidewalk has been demolished and removed and prior to installation of new sidewalk.

Coordinate the scheduling of root pruning within 1 week of the start of the concrete repair work.

Roots shall be cut in accordance with Contract Documents and City of San Diego Standard Drawing SDL-106 at the new line established by the Engineer based upon a report from a Certified Arborist.

The Work includes cutting all roots necessary for satisfactory forming for the reconfigured sidewalk to a depth of 12 inches, 21 inches on curb side, along the edge of the new sidewalk or curb for a distance of 10 feet in each direction from the trunk. If the walk will not be replaced, roots shall be cut in straight lines parallel to the sidewalk or curb. The root cut shall not be more than 3 inches from edge of existing walk or curb for a length of 10 feet in each direction.

2. Roots more than 2 inches in diameter shall be preapproved for removal the Engineer based upon a report from a certified arborist.

Roots shall be cut at the nearest node to encourage roots to grow away from the sidewalk. Root cutting shall not impact the trunk flare. Roots shall be cleanly cut a minimum of 6 inches away from the new sidewalk edge.

Install the root barriers as it is specified in the Contract Document, Section 801-7.6, and current City of San Diego Standard Drawings.

Backfill excavated areas with Class A topsoil as directed by the Engineer to existing grade and compact sufficiently to not settle when walked upon.

- 3. In order to protect existing trees, surface roots in the parkway area or planter strip shall not be damaged or removed outside of the pruning area and no construction equipment or supplies including soils shall be placed in or upon this area.
- **Root Pruning for Sidewalk Replacement.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - Root pruning shall occur after the existing sidewalk has been demolished and removed and prior to installation of the new sidewalk. Coordinate the scheduling of the root pruning within 1 week of the start of the concrete repair work.

The Work includes cutting all roots necessary for satisfactory forming of the replacement sidewalk to have a depth of 12 inches, along the edge of the new sidewalk for a distance of 10 feet in each direction from the trunk. If the sidewalk will not be replaced, roots shall be cut in straight lines parallel to the

- walk or the curb. The root cut shall not be more than 3 inches from edge of existing walk or curb for a length of 10 feet in each direction from the trunk.
- 2. Roots more than 2 inches in diameter shall be preapproved for removal by the Engineer based upon a report from a certified arborist.
 - Roots shall be cut at the nearest node to encourage roots to grow away from the sidewalk. Root cutting shall not impact the trunk flare. Roots shall be cleanly cut a minimum of 6 inches away from the new sidewalk edge
 - Install root barriers as it is specified in the Contract Document, Section 801-7.6, and the current City of San Diego Standard Drawings.
 - Backfill excavated areas with Class A topsoil as directed by the Engineer to existing grade and compact sufficiently to not settle when walked upon.
- 3. In order to protect existing trees, surface roots in the parkway area or planter strip shall not be damaged or removed outside of the pruning area and no construction equipment or supplies including spoils shall be placed in or upon this area.
- 4. A certified arborist will be required on site during Root Pruning, at locations that will be specified in the Contract Documents, Appendix F, or by the Engineer, and will be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide a certified arborist at these locations to monitor the Root Pruning of trees.
- **Root Pruning on Curb Side.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Prune the tree roots in accordance with the Contract Documents and City of San Diego Standard Drawings. The Contractor shall coordinate the schedule of the root prune work within 1 week of the concrete repair work. Roots shall be cut following the removal of the existing curb and prior to the installation of the new curb when practical.
 - The Work includes cutting all roots necessary for satisfactory forming for replaced curb to a depth of 21 inches on the curb side, along the edge of the new sidewalk or curb for a distance of 10 feet in each direction from the trunk. If the walk will not be replaced, roots shall be cut in straight lines parallel to the sidewalk or curb. The root cut shall not be more than 3 inches from edge of existing sidewalk or curb for a length of 10 feet in each direction from the trunk.
 - 2. Roots more than 2 inches in diameter shall be preapproved for removal by the Engineer based upon a report from a certified arborist.
 - Roots shall be cut at the nearest node to encourage roots to grow away from the curb. Root cutting shall not impact the trunk flare.
 - Install root barriers as specified in the Contract Document, Section 801-7.6, and current City of San Diego Standard Drawings.
 - Backfill excavated areas with Class A topsoil as directed by the Engineer to existing grade and compact sufficiently to not settle when walked upon.

- 3. In order to protect existing trees, surface roots in the parkway area or planter strip shall not be damaged or removed outside of pruning area and no construction equipment or supplies including spoils shall be placed in or upon this area.
- 4. A certified arborist will be required on site during Root Pruning, at locations that will be specified in the Contract Documents, Appendix F, or by the Engineer, and will be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide a certified arborist at these locations to monitor the Root Pruning of trees.

ADD:

801-7.7 Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation.

- 1. For the trees specified in the Contract Documents relocate the roots below the level of the road improvement (new asphalt, base repair, or class II base repair) as directed by the Engineer.
 - All work must be monitored, photographed, and documented by the Verified Arborist and approved by the Engineer.
- 2. Prior to the beginning of the pneumatic soil excavation, you shall remove existing pavement, curb and gutter, and any other hardscape material without damaging the roots.
- 3. The area of excavation shall be thoroughly wetted, 24 hours in advance, to minimize dust to the greatest extent possible. The pneumatic device shall be the "Air Spade CPG System" by the Concept Engineering Group, Inc., or an approved equal. You shall provide a compressor unit for operating the pneumatic excavator rated at one hundred fifty standard cubic feet per minute (150 scfm) and ninety pounds per square foot gauge (90 psfg).
- 4. Tree roots exposed by the excavation operation must be kept constantly moist with burlap covered with plastic. Backfill must be placed within 48 hours from the time of exposure.
- 5. A Certified Arborist will inspect any roots encountered over 2 (two) inches in diameter and determine the impact of their relocation on the structural stability of the tree and give the final approval for proper root relocation including root pinning.
- 6. After the tree root relocation and root pinning, backfill excavated areas with the soil, prepare the subgrade and do the base, sidewalk, or driveway repair as it is specified in the Contract Document. Class A topsoil shall be used in the parkway areas, as directed by the Engineer and shall be filled to existing grade and compact sufficiently to not settle down when walked upon.
- 7. In order to protect existing trees or surface roots in the parkway area or exposed roots, no construction equipment or supplies shall be placed in or upon the area of excavation.
- 8. A certified arborist will be required on site during Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation, at locations that will be specified in the Task Order, or by the Engineer, and will be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide

a certified arborist at these locations to monitor the Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation.

- **801-8 MEASUREMENT.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - 1. Tree planting shall be measured for each tree planted.
 - 2. Tree maintenance Work shall be measured by "Tree Root Pruning and Barrier installed" per each tree or "Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation" per each tree.
- **PAYMENT.** To the "WHITEBOOK", DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - Payment for Tree Planting related material and work including excavation, weed removal, preparation, backfilling, topsoil, maintenance, plant establishment, protection, and other specified in the Contract Document shall be included under "Tree Planting (15 Gallon)" Bid Item for each tree planted.
 - If the additional tree needs to be planted after the determination of the Engineer as specified in 801-4.1, payment for tree planting will be made at the Contract Bid Unit price for "Tree Planting (15 Gallon)" and payment for the removal of trees will be by Contract Bid Unit Price, see section 300-1.4.
 - 2. Payment for the Tree Root Pruning and Barrier material and work, including the certified arborist evaluation, excavation, weed removal, preparation, installment of the root barriers, root pruning, backfilling, topsoil, and other specified in the Contract Document such as in section 801-7 shall be included under "Tree Root Pruning & Barrier Installed" Bid Item for each tree.
 - 3. Payment for the Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation, material and labor, including the certified arborist work, excavation, use of all necessary tools, compressor etc., weed removal, preparation, root pinning, backfilling, topsoil, and other specified in the contract documents such as in sections 801-7 shall be included under the "Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation" bid item for each tree.
 - 4. Payment for tree trimming is included in the Contract Unit Bid Price for which the trimming is required and no additional payment shall be made.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING PROGRAM (EOCP) SECTION A - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

4.1 Nondiscrimination in Contracting Ordinance. To the "WHITEBOOK", subsection 4.1.1, paragraph (2), sentence (1), DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

You shall not discriminate on the basis of race, gender, gender expression, gender identity, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sexual orientation, age, or disability in the solicitation, selection, hiring, or treatment of subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers.

END OF SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS (SSP)

ATTACHMENT F

JOB ORDER CONTRACT

1. UNIT PRICE BOOK (UPB):

- **1.1.** The UPB for the duration of this Job Order Contract (JOC) has been developed by the City and incorporated into the Contract Documents.
- **1.2.** Task Order Proposals and reports shall be prepared and submitted as follows:
 - **1.2.1.** When City provided UPB is specified in the Contract, the Contractor shall use the City provided form for bidding purposes.
 - **1.2.2.** Prices in the UPB are firm for the entire term of the Contract including Task Order changes executed after Contract expiration.
- **2. BID PRICE SUBMITTAL:** Each Bidder shall submit 2 Adjustment Factors which shall apply to Pre-priced and Non-Pre-priced work items as follows:
 - **1.** Adjustment Factor #1 (AF1): The first Adjustment Factor will be applied to all work items that are constructed during Normal Working Hours (NWH).
 - **2.** Adjustment Factor #2 (AF2): The second Adjustment Factor will be applied to all work items that are constructed during Other than Normal Working Hours (ONWH).
 - **2.1.** The Adjustment Factors shall be specified to the fourth decimal place (e.g., 1.1234). Failure to express adjustment factors to the fourth decimal place will result in the Bid as being **non-responsive** and ineligible for further consideration.
 - **2.2.** The Bidder with the lowest Composite Adjustment Factor (CAF) that meets all of the bid requirements will be considered the Apparent Low Bidder. The Composite Adjustment Factor will be calculated using the following formula:

$$CAF = (AF1 \times 0.80) + (AF2 \times 0.20)$$

- **2.3.** The calculation used above is not a forecast of the portions of Normal Working Hour or Other than Normal Working Hour work that will be assigned to a JOC contract.
- **2.4.** The Bidder's Adjustment Factors shall include allowances for all costs associated with and incidental to either self-performed or subcontracted Work in accordance with 2-6, "WORK TO BE DONE." Examples of costs included in the Bidder's Adjustment Factors as follows:
 - 1. Overhead, profit, bond premiums, insurance, mobilization of any kind to include equipment, and the cost of doing business in and for the City.
 - 2. Preparation of all required forms, reports, or documents.

- 3. Attendance at Site, Contract, or Project meetings for all staff whether Contractor, Subcontractor, Supplier, or truckers.
- 4. Compliance with laws.
- 5. Costs to prepare estimates, proposals, submittals, and Shop Drawings.
- 6. Purchase and review of Unit Price Books, UPB software, or both, code books, The GREENBOOK, The WHITEBOOK, and any other codes or manuals referenced in the Contract Documents.
- 7. Labor not directly related to construction such as foreman, superintendent, office staff, safety staff, estimation staff, and project management staff.
- 8. Review Contract and Task Order documents, order materials prepare submittals, and prepare, negotiate, and finalize proposals.
- 9. Site visits to collect information, daily Site cleanup and protection.
- 10. Public information or public interface.
- 11. Other costs not directly related to installation or construction of a Task Order line item.
- **2.5.** No allowance or payment will be made later for any prices other than UPB or NPP Item unit prices.
- **3. PRICE ADJUSTMENT:** The Adjustment Factors shall be firm for 2 years (730 days) from the Contract Award Date.

4. CONTRACT PROCEDURES AND TERMS:

4.1. Contract Term and Value: Upon issuance of a contract, the City guarantees each Contractor a minimum value of total work (Minimum Contract Amount) of \$5,000 up to a potential maximum value of total work (Maximum Contract Amount) of \$10,000,000. The term of the Contract is 24 months for the issuance of Task Orders or the expenditure of the \$10,000,000 maximum contract amount, whichever occurs first.

4.2. Task Assignment:

- **4.2.1.** As the need for work arises, the City will assign Task Orders by sending to the JOC contractor a Task Order Scope of Work. A Scope Meeting to take place onsite between the City and the JOC contractor will be scheduled.
- **4.2.2.** The JOC contractor must accept and complete **ALL** Task Orders assigned to them by the City. JOC contractors may not opt-out or decline to accept a Task

- Order. JOC contractors who decline to accept a Task Order will be considered in breach of this contract and may be defaulted.
- **4.2.3.** JOC Contracts are indefinite in quantity and scope at the time of bid. Task Orders will be assigned or issued as the need arises for the Work. The work items in the UPB with pre-established pricing are called Pre-Priced Items. Task Orders may also include Non-pre-priced Items that are not included in the UPB. The Contractor will be required to obtain at least 2 competitive quotes from outside sources for all Non-Pre-priced Items.

4.3. Task Order Proposal:

- **4.3.1.** The JOC contractor shall then present an estimate for the Task Order scope of work using any appropriate pre-priced and non-pre-priced items. The JOC contractor shall, as requested by the City, prepare a proposal, reports, or both in electronic format or as directed by the City, and submit them to the City's Project Manager within the time frame established in the Task Order.
- **4.3.2.** Upon receipt of the Contractor's estimate or proposal, the City will compare it to the City's estimate of costs for the scope of work. If the JOC contractor's proposal is deemed acceptable, the City may release the Task Order by issuing NTP at the agreed-upon price.
- **4.3.3.** The JOC contractor will be required to meet all deadlines and timelines established in the Task Order documents.
- **4.3.4.** If the City does not accept the Proposal, the City and the Contractor may negotiate the proposal until an agreement is reached.
- 4.4. Task Order Price: Task Order prices are calculated by selecting applicable construction items from the UPB and multiplying the prices for those construction items by the appropriate quantities and Adjustment Factors in effect as of the date of the RFP. For construction items not included in the UPB, the JOC Contractor will obtain two competitive quotes for the installed price from outside vendors, suppliers or subcontractors and multiply the lowest quote by the appropriate Adjustment Factors. The competitive quotes will include labor, material, equipment, and services to install startup and test the item. Competitive quotes will be valid for 6 months from the time they are received by the City. The City may obtain additional quotes from outside sources for comparison and may use those quotes as a basis for payment. The sum of the appropriate Pre-priced and Non-Pre-priced Construction Items multiplied by the appropriate quantities and applicable Adjustment Factor will establish a firm, fixed price for the Task Order. The Contractor will be required to apply the appropriate and actual construction line items and quantities required in the Task Order Scope of Work.
- **4.5. Task Order Modifications**: Line items and quantities for unforeseen conditions and changes in the work may be requested through a Task Order Modification only if it is determined during construction that the additional quantities are actually required to

complete the Task Order. The Adjustment Bid Factor shall apply to all Task Order Modifications and Field Orders. The City may issue Task Order Modifications for scope changes and to claim credit for items not actually installed, completed, or cancelled.

4.6. Task Order Price Limit shall not exceed \$5,000,000.00

City's Unit Price Book (UPB)

I/We agree to the construction of **Job Order Contract (JOC) SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvement Projects Only**, for the construction of **Street Paving** Projects at various locations for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below multiplied by the **Adjustment Factor (AF)**:

BASE BID

| | BASE BID | | | | |
|------|----------|--------|----------------------|--|------------|
| Item | Unit | NAICS | Payment Reference | Description | Unit Price |
| 1 | TONS | 237310 | 302-5.9 | Asphalt Concrete | \$75.00 |
| 2 | SF | 237310 | 302-1.12 | Cold Mill Full Width | \$0.32 |
| 3 | CY | 237310 | 302-3.2 | Excavation | \$75.00 |
| 4 | TONS | 237310 | 301-2.4 | Class 2 Aggregate Base | \$65.00 |
| 5 | LF | 237310 | 302.12 | Speed Hump Remove & Replace | \$60.00 |
| 6 | EA | 238210 | 302-1.12 | Traffic Detector Loop Replacement or Conduit Stub Installed | \$250.00 |
| 7 | EA | 237310 | 301-1.7 | Raise Appurtenance to Grade (Water, Sewer) | \$250.00 |
| 8 | EA | 237310 | 301-1.8.1 | Raise Survey Monument to Grade | \$200.00 |
| 9 | EA | 237310 | 301-1.8.1 | Reconstruct Survey Monument Box | \$1,900.00 |
| 10 | EA | 237310 | 303-5.10.2 | PCC Curb Ramp - Large (Types A, B, C, etc.) | \$2,500.00 |
| 11 | EA | 237310 | 303-5.10.2 | PCC Curb Ramp - Small (Type D, etc.) | \$1,500.00 |
| 12 | EA | 237310 | 701-2 | Pedestrian Barricade | \$1,000.00 |
| 13 | EA | 237310 | 303-5.9 | Curb Outlet - Type A | \$3,500.00 |
| 14 | EA | 238210 | 701-17.7.5 | Pedestrian Push Button | \$3,000.00 |
| 15 | EA | 237310 | 303-5.9 | Contractor Date Stamps and Impressions | \$150.00 |
| 16 | SF | 237310 | 303-5.9 | Remove and Replace Existing Sidewalk | \$8.00 |

I/We agree to the construction of **Job Order Contract (JOC) SP17 Street Paving for Capital Improvement Projects Only**, for the construction of **Street Paving** Projects at various locations for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below multiplied by the **Adjustment Factor (AF)**:

BASE BID

| Item | Unit | NAICS | Payment Reference | Description | Unit Price |
|------|------|--------|----------------------|---|--------------|
| 17 | LF | 237310 | 303-5.9 | Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter | \$45.00 |
| 18 | SF | 237310 | 303-5.9 | PCC Cross Gutter or PCC Commercial Driveway | \$14.00 |
| 19 | SF | 237310 | 303-5.9 | PCC Bus Pad or PCC Pavement | \$15.00 |
| 20 | SF | 237310 | 303-5.9 | PCC Alley Apron and PCC Residential Driveways | \$12.00 |
| 21 | EA | 237310 | 303-5.9 | PCC Meter or Pull Box w/cover - Replace damaged | \$325.00 |
| 22 | EA | 561730 | 801-9 | Tree Planting (15 Gallon) | \$275.00 |
| 23 | EA | 561730 | 300-1.4 | Small Tree Removal & Disposal (< 24" trunk diameter) | \$700.00 |
| 24 | EA | 561730 | 300-1.4 | Large Tree Removal & Disposal (>=24" trunk diameter) | \$1,300.00 |
| 25 | EA | 561730 | 801-9 | Pneumatic Soil Excavation and Tree Root Relocation | \$900.00 |
| 26 | EA | 561730 | 801-9 | Tree Root Pruning & Barrier Installed | \$600.00 |
| 27 | LS | 237310 | 314-5.7 | Remove, Replace & Install Traffic Striping, Markers, Markings, & Devices | \$150,000.00 |
| 28 | LS | 237310 | 7-8.6.4.2 | Water Pollution Control Program Implementation | \$5,500.00 |
| 29 | LS | 541330 | 7-8.6.4.2 | Water Pollution Control Program Development | \$2,000.00 |
| 30 | LS | 237310 | 601-6 | Traffic Control Including Plans | \$75,000.00 |
| 31 | AL | 237310 | 9-3.7 | Oil Price Index Fluctuation (EOC TYPE I) | \$200,000.00 |
| 32 | AL | | 9-3.5 | Field Orders (EOC TYPE II) | \$100,000.00 |

ATTACHMENT G

CONTRACT AGREEMENT

CONTRACT AGREEMENT

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This contract is made and entered into between THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation, herein called "City", and <u>TC Construction Company, Inc.</u>, herein called "Contractor" for JOC JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING For Capital Improvements Projects Only; Bid No. K-18-1543-JOC-3; for a Composite Adjustment Factor 1.2130 of comprised of AF 1 0.9640 and AF 2 0.2490.

IN CONSIDERATION of the payments to be made hereunder and the mutual undertakings of the parties hereto, City and Contractor agree as follows:

- 1. The following are incorporated into this contract as though fully set forth herein:
 - (a) The attached Faithful Performance and Payment Bonds.
 - (b) The attached Proposal included in the Bid documents by the Contractor.
 - (c) Reference Standards listed in the Instruction to Bidders and the Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP).
 - (d) That certain documents entitled **JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING For Capital Improvements Projects Only**, on file in the office of the City Clerk as Document No. **11000322**, as well as all matters referenced therein.
- 2. The Contractor shall perform and be bound by all the terms and conditions of this contract and in strict conformity therewith shall perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING For Capital Improvements Projects Only, Bid No. K-18-1543-JOC-3, San Diego, California.
- 3. For such performances, the City shall pay to Contractor the amounts set forth at the times and in the manner and with such additions or deductions as are provided for in this contract, and the Contractor shall accept such payment in full satisfaction of all claims incident to such performances.
- 4. No claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.
- 5. This contract is effective as of the date that the Mayor or designee signs the agreement.
- 6. The City shall guarantee each Contractor a minimum value of total work (Minimum Contract Amount) of \$10,000 up to a potential maximum value of total work (Maximum Contract Amount) of \$10,000,000. The period during which new Task Orders may be issued pursuant

to this contract is 24 months or the expenditure of the \$10,000,000, whichever comes first. The total Contract term, including the completion of all tasks, may not exceed 5 years.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is signed by the City of San Diego, acting by and through its Mayor or designee, pursuant to Municipal Code §22.3103 authorizing such execution.

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

APPROVED AS TO FORM

| * | | Mara W. Elliott, | City Attorney | |
|-------------------|--|------------------|------------------------|-------------|
| By Sta | phu Cemau | Ву | | |
| Print Name: | Stephen Samara Interim Deputy Director Public Works Department | Print Name: | PYAN Deputy City At | EERRITY |
| Date: | 8/20/2018 | Date: | 16/18 | |
| CONTRACTOR | | | | |
| ву | M. T. | | | |
| Print Name: | AUSTIN CAMERON | | • | |
| Title: PRE | SIDENT | | | |
| Date: 4 | 4/2018 | | | |
| City of San Dieរុ | go License No.; <u>B19870</u> 0 | 4773 | | |
| State Contracto | or's License No.: 402459 | | | |
| DEPARTMENT (| OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS (DIR) I | REGISTRATION N | UMBER: 1000 | 0003132 |

| <u> </u> | 01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/01/0 |
|--|--|
| A notary public or other officer completing this certificate of document to which this certificate is attached, and not the tr | |
| State of California County of San Dugo On April 4, 2018 before me. San Date personally appeared Austin Ca | Ira Welks, Notary Public Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer Men Pm 1 Name(b) of Signer(s) |
| who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory ev subscribed to the within instrument and acknowled his/her/their authorized capacity(les), and that by his/hor the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted | ged to me that he/sh e/the y executed the same in er/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s). |
| of t | ertify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws the State of California that the foregoing paragraph rue and correct. |
| Notary Public – California San Diego County | TNESS my hand and official seal. Inature OMONA WELKS Signature of Notary Public |
| Place Notary Seal Above | NAI |
| Though this section is optional, completing this info | ormation can deter alteration of the document or |
| Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document: Construction Document Date: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: | Number of Pages: |
| Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) Signer's Name: A USTIN CAMBIENT Corporate Officer — Title(s): President Partner — Limited | Signer's Name: |

CERTIFICATIONS AND FORMS

| The Bidder, by submitting its electronic bid, agrees to and certifies under penalty of p | erjury |
|--|--------|
| under the laws of the State of California, that the certifications, forms and affidavits sub | mitted |
| as part of this bid are true and correct. | |

Bidder's General Information

To the City of San Diego:

Pursuant to "Notice Inviting Bids", specifications, and requirements on file with the City Clerk, and subject to all provisions of the Charter and Ordinances of the City of San Diego and applicable laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California, the undersigned hereby proposes to furnish to the City of San Diego, complete at the prices stated herein, the items or services hereinafter mentioned. The undersigned further warrants that this bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

The undersigned bidder(s) further warrants that bidder(s) has thoroughly examined and understands the entire Contract Documents (plans and specifications) and the Bidding Documents therefore, and that by submitting said Bidding Documents as its bid proposal, bidder(s) acknowledges and is bound by the entire Contract Documents, including any addenda issued thereto, as such Contract Documents incorporated by reference in the Bidding Documents.

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID UNDER 23
UNITED STATES CODE 112 AND PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 7106

State of California

County of San Diego

The bidder, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he or she is authorized by the party making the foregoing bid that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-17 regarding Drug-Free Workplace as outlined in the WHITEBOOK, Section 7-13.3, "Drug-Free Workplace", of the project specifications, and that;

This company_has in place a drug-free workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions a) through c) of the policy as outlined.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-4 regarding the American With Disabilities Act (ADA) outlined in the WHITEBOOK, Section 7-13.2, "American With Disabilities Act", of the project specifications, and that:

This company has in place workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of the policy as outlined.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

CONTRACTOR STANDARDS - PLEDGE OF COMPLIANCE

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of the company submitting this bid/proposal, that as Contractor, I am familiar with the requirements of City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3004 regarding Contractor Standards as outlined in the WHITEBOOK, Section 7-13.4, ("Contractor Standards"), of the project specifications, and that Contractor has complied with those requirements.

I further certify that each of the Contractor's subcontractors has completed a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury of having complied with City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3004.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am familiar with the requirements of and in compliance with the City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.4300 regarding Equal Benefits Ordinance.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

EQUAL PAY ORDINANCE CERTIFICATION

Contractor shall comply with the Equal Pay Ordinance (EPO) codified in the San Diego Municipal Code (SDMC) at section 22.4801 through 22.4809, unless compliance is not required based on an exception listed in SDMC section 22.4804.

Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors to certify compliance with the EPO in their written subcontracts.

Contractor must post a notice informing its employees of their rights under the EPO in the workplace or job site.

By signing this Contract with the City of San Diego, Contractor acknowledges the EPO requirements and pledges ongoing compliance with the requirements of SDMC Division 48, section 22.4801 et seq., throughout the duration of this Contract.

AFFIDAVIT OF DISPOSAL

(To be submitted upon completion of Construction pursuant to the contracts Certificate of Completion) **WHEREAS**, on the ______ DAY OF ______ , 2 _____ the undersigned entered into and executed a contract with the City of San Diego, a municipal corporation, for: JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING For Capital Improvements Projects Only (Name of Project or Task) as particularly described in said contract and identified as Bid No. K-18-1543-JOC-3; SAP No. (WBS/IO/CC) 11000322; and WHEREAS, the specification of said contract requires the Contractor to affirm that "all brush, trash, debris, and surplus materials resulting from this project have been disposed of in a legal manner"; and WHEREAS, said contract has been completed and all surplus materials disposed of: NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the final payment by the City of San Diego to said Contractor under the terms of said contract, the undersigned Contractor, does hereby affirm that all surplus materials as described in said contract have been disposed of at the following location(s) and that they have been disposed of according to all applicable laws and regulations. Dated this ______, _____, _____. Contractor ATTEST: State of _____ County of ____

On this______ DAY OF ______, 2_____, before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said

known to me to be the _____ Contractor named in the foregoing Release, and whose name is subscribed thereto, and acknowledged to me that said Contractor executed the said Release.

Notary Public in and for said County and State

County and State, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared

COMPANY LETTERHEAD

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

Materials and Workmanship Compliance

| For Contract or Task |
|---|
| I certify that the material listed below complies with the materials and workmanship requirements of the Caltrans Contract Plans, Special Provisions, Standard Specifications, and Standard Plans for the contract listed above. |
| I also certify that I am an official representative for, the manufacturer of the material listed above. Furthermore, I certify that where California test methods, physical or chemical test requirements are part of the specifications, that the manufacturer has performed the necessary quality control to substantiate this certification. |
| Material Description: |
| Manufacturer: |
| Serial Number (if applicable) |
| Quantity to be supplied: |
| Remarks: |
| Signed by: |
| Printed Name: |
| Title: Company: |
| Date: |

City of San Diego Public Works Department, Field Division

NOTICE OF MATERIALS TO BE USED

| To: | [| Date: | , 20 |
|---|---|--|--|
| Resident En | gineer | | |
| | t the materials required for us | | |
| in the City of San Diego, will | be obtained from sources he | rein designated. | |
| CONTRACT ITEM NO. (Bid Item) | (Category) | NAME AND ADD MATERIAL CAN E (At Source) | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| It is required that year | range for a sampling, testing | and increasion of t | ho matariala ariar ta |
| delivery, in accordance wi accordance with your policy of full responsibility for inc | th Section 4-1.11 of the Whole it is understood that source torporating in the work, mat tions, nor does it preclude su | HITEBOOK, where it is inspection does not rerials that comply in | s practicable, and in relieve the Contractor all respects with the |
| Distribution: | | | |
| Supplier | | | |
| Signature of Suppli | <u> </u> | Ac | ddress |

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

*** PROVIDED FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY *** TO BE SUBMITTED IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT ONL Y*** SEE INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Section 4100, of the California Public Contract Code (PCC), the Bidder is to list below the name, address and license number of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricate and install a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount of or in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the Bid being rejected as non-responsive. The Contractor is to list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percentage of the Work to be performed with the Bidder's own forces. The Bidder is to also list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors for which the Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

| NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR | DIR Registration Number | CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER | SUBCONTRACTOR LICENSE NUMBER | TYPE OF WORK | DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT | MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB® | WHERE CERTIFIED ② | CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP |
|---|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------------------------|--|-------------------------|--|
| Name: | | | | | | | | |
| Name: | | | | | | | | |

| ① | As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcontractor as one of | the following and sh | all include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and | d ELBE): |
|---|--|----------------------|--|----------|
| | Certified Minority Business Enterprise | MBE | Certified Woman Business Enterprise | WBE |
| | Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise | DBE | Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise | DVBE |
| | Other Business Enterprise | OBE | Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise | ELBE |
| | Certified Small Local Business Enterprise | SLBE | Small Disadvantaged Business | SDB |
| | Woman-Owned Small Business | WoSB | HUBZone Business | HUBZone |
| | Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business | SDVOSB | | |
| 2 | As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is certif | ied by: | | |
| | City of San Diego | CITY | State of California Department of Transportation | CALTRANS |
| | California Public Utilities Commission | CPUC | | |
| | State of California's Department of General Services | CADoGS | City of Los Angeles | LA |
| | State of California | CA | U.S. Small Business Administration | SBA |

The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation percentages if the Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certification.

NAMED EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SUPPLIER LIST

*** PROVIDED FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY *** TO BE SUBMITTED IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT ONLY *** SEE INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

| NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF VENDOR/SUPPLIER | DIR Registration Number | MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES | DOLLAR VALUE OF MATERIAL OR SUPPLIES | SUPPLIER (Yes/No) | MANUFACTURER (Yes/No) | MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB® | WHERE CERTIFIED② |
|--|-------------------------------|--------------------------|---|----------------------|--------------------------|--|---------------------|
| Name: | | | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | | |
| City: State: | | | | | | | |
| Zip: Phone: | | | | | | | |
| Email: | | | | | | | |
| Name: | | | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | | |
| City: State: | | | | | | | |
| Zip: Phone: | | | | | | | |
| Email: | | | | | | | |

| ① | As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Vendor/Supplier as one | of the following and | shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE,SLBE a | nd ELBE): |
|---|---|----------------------|---|-----------|
| | Certified Minority Business Enterprise | MBE | Certified Woman Business Enterprise | WBE |
| | Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise | DBE | Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise | DVBE |
| | Other Business Enterprise | OBE | Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise | ELBE |
| | Certified Small Local Business Enterprise | SLBE | Small Disadvantaged Business | SDB |
| | Woman-Owned Small Business | WoSB | HUBZone Business | HUBZone |
| | Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business | SDVOSB | | |
| 2 | As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Vendor/Supplier is cer | tified by: | | |
| | City of San Diego | CITY | State of California Department of Transportation | CALTRANS |
| | California Public Utilities Commission | CPUC | | |
| | State of California's Department of General Services | CADoGS | City of Los Angeles | LA |
| | State of California | CA | U.S. Small Business Administration | SBA |

The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation percentages if the Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certification

ELECTRONICALLY SUBMITTED FORMS

THE FOLLOWING FORMS MUST BE SUBMITTED IN PDF FORMAT WITH BID SUBMISSION

The following forms are to be completed by the bidder and submitted (uploaded) electronically with the bid in PlanetBids:

A. CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF PENDING ACTIONS

Bids will not be accepted until ALL the above-named forms are submitted as part of the bid submittal

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF PENDING ACTIONS

As part of its bid or proposal (Non-Price Proposal in the case of Design-Build contracts), the Bidder shall provide to the City a list of all instances within the past 10 years where a complaint was filed or pending against the Bidder in a legal or administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers, and a description of the status or resolution of that complaint, including any remedial action taken.

CHECK ONE BOX ONLY.

| Image: Control of the | The undersigned certifies that within the past 10 years the Bidder has NOT been the subject of a complaint or pending action in a legal administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers. | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|-----------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|
| | complain discrimin status or | t or pending action in a ated against its employees, | legal admini subcontractors | strative pr s, vendors o | idder has been the subject of a coceeding alleging that Bidder or suppliers. A description of the action taken and the applicable | | | | |
| DATE OF CLAIM | LOCATION | DESCRIPTION OF CLAIM | LITIGATION (Y/N) | STATUS | RESOLUTION/REMEDIAL ACTION TAKEN | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | *************************************** | | | | | | | | |
| Contractor | Name: | | | | | | | | |
| Certified B | у | Austin Cameron | | Title | President | | | | |
| | | Signature | The second secon | Date _ | 3-21-18 | | | | |

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form

BIDDER/PROPOSER INFORMATION

TC Construction Company, Inc.

| Legal Name | | DBA | |
|----------------------|--------------|-----------|-------|
| 10540 Prospect Ave | Santee | CA | 92071 |
| Street Address | City | State | Zip |
| Austin Cameron | 619-448-4560 | 619-448-3 | |
| ontact Person, Title | Phone | Fax | |

Provide the name, identity, and precise nature of the interest* of all persons who are directly or indirectly involved** in this proposed transaction (SDMC § 21.0103).

- * The precise nature of the interest includes:
 - the percentage ownership interest in a party to the transaction,
 - the percentage ownership interest in any firm, corporation, or partnership that will receive funds from the transaction,
 - the value of any financial interest in the transaction,
 - any contingent interest in the transaction and the value of such interest should the contingency be satisfied, and
 - any philanthropic, scientific, artistic, or property interest in the transaction.
- ** Directly or indirectly involved means pursuing the transaction by:
 - communicating or negotiating with City officers or employees,
 - submitting or preparing applications, bids, proposals or other documents for purposes of contracting with the City, or
 - directing or supervising the actions of persons engaged in the above activity.

| Austin Cameron | President | |
|--|--|---|
| Name | Title/Position | |
| 10540 Prospect Ave Santee CA 92071 | | |
| City and State of Residence Bidder 20% | Employer (if different than Bidder/Proposer) | |
| Interest in the transaction | | |
| Jeep Tharp | Vice President | |
| Name | Title/Position | |
| 10540 Prospect Ave Santee CA 92071 | | |
| City and State of Residence Bidder | Employer (if different than Bidder/Proposer) | |
| Interest in the transaction | | - |

* Use Additional Pages if Necessary *

Under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, I certify that I am responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the responses contained herein, and that all information provided is true, full and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I agree to provide written notice to the Mayor or Designee within five (5) business days if, at any time, I learn that any portion of this Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form requires an updated response. Failure to timely provide the Mayor or Designee with written notice is grounds for Contract termination.

| Austin Cameron, President | (next | 8-8-18 |
|---------------------------|-----------|--------|
| Print Name, Title | Signature | |

Failure to sign and submit this form with the bid/proposal shall make the bid/proposal non-responsive. In the case of an informal solicitation, the contract will not be awarded unless a signed and completed Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form is submitted,

Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form

BIDDER/PROPOSER INFORMATION

| TC Construction Con | npany, Inc. | | |
|----------------------|--------------|--------------|-------|
| Legal Name | | DBA | |
| 10540 Prospect Ave | Santee | CA | 92071 |
| Street Address | City | State | Zip |
| Austin Cameron | 619-448-4560 | 619-448-3341 | |
| ontact Person, Title | Phone | Fay | |

Provide the name, identity, and precise nature of the interest* of all persons who are directly or indirectly involved** in this proposed transaction (SDMC § 21.0103).

- * The precise nature of the interest includes:
 - the percentage ownership interest in a party to the transaction,
 - the percentage ownership interest in any firm, corporation, or partnership that will receive funds from the transaction,
 - the value of any financial interest in the transaction,
 - any contingent interest in the transaction and the value of such interest should the contingency be satisfied, and
 - any philanthropic, scientific, artistic, or property interest in the transaction.
- ** Directly or indirectly involved means pursuing the transaction by:
 - communicating or negotiating with City officers or employees,
 - submitting or preparing applications, bids, proposals or other documents for purposes of contracting with the City, or
 - directing or supervising the actions of persons engaged in the above activity.

| Jack Gieffels | Secretary / Treasurer | |
|---|--|--|
| Name | Title/Position | |
| 10540 Prospect Ave Santee C. | A 92071 | |
| City and State of Residence Bidder 0% | Employer (if different than Bidder/Proposer) | |
| Interest in the transaction | | |
| Terry Cameron | CEO | |
| Name | Title/Position | |
| 10540 Prospect Ave Santee (| CA 92071 | |
| City and State of Residence Bidder 60% | Employer (if different than Bidder/Proposer) | |
| Interest in the transaction | | |

* Use Additional Pages if Necessary *

Under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, I certify that I am responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the responses contained herein, and that all information provided is true, full and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I agree to provide written notice to the Mayor or Designee within five (5) business days if, at any time, I learn that any portion of this Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form requires an updated response. Failure to timely provide the Mayor or Designee with written notice is grounds for Contract termination.

| Accetic Common D 11 | | |
|---------------------------|-----------|--------|
| Austin Cameron, President | Ille C | 8-8-18 |
| Print Name, Title | Signature | Date |

Failure to sign and submit this form with the bid/proposal shall make the bid/proposal non-responsive. In the case of an informal solicitation, the contract will not be awarded unless a signed and completed Mandatory Disclosure of Business Interests Form is submitted.

City of San Diego

CITY CONTACT: Angelica Gil, Contract Specialist, Email: AngelicaG@sandiego.gov

Phone No. (619) 533-3622

ADDENDUM A





FOR

JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) SP17 STREET PAVING FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS ONLY

| BID NO.: | K-18-1543-JOC-3 |
|----------------------|-----------------|
| SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC): | 11000322 |
| CLIENT DEPARTMENT: | 2100 |
| COUNCIL DISTRICT: | CITYWIDE |
| PROJECT TYPE: | ID |

BID DUE DATE:

2:00 PM

MARCH 27, 2018

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS
525 B STREET, SUITE 750, MS 908A

SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

March 14, 2018 **ADDENDUM A** Page 1 of 39

DEPUTY CITY ENGINEER

The engineering Specifications and Special Provisions contained herein have been prepared by or under the direction of the following Registered Engineer:

1) For City Engineer

3-14-18 Seal:

Date

No 10144184

A. CHANGES TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The following changes to the Contract Documents are hereby made effective as though originally issued with the bid package. Bidders are reminded that all previous requirements to this solicitation remain in full force and effect.

THE SUBMITTAL DATE FOR THIS PROJECT HAS BEEN **EXTENDED AS STATED ON THE COVER PAGE.**

B. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS

- Q1. Page 06 What is the minimum/maximum dollar amount of each task?
- A1. There is no minimum amount, the maximum dollar amount for each task is \$5,000,000.00.
- Q2. Page 06 Item 5.1 & 5.2. Can the City provide examples of "Sufficient Justifications" for a Contractor not being able to perform a task?
- A2. It is incumbent upon the Contractor to present to the City the <u>actual</u> reason(s) that they are unable to perform the task as issued. The City will then, in its sole discretion, evaluate and make a determination as to whether failing to perform the task is justified, or if liquidated damages and/or default of contract are warranted.
- Q3. Page 17 Item 17. What unit price items are designated as "Specialty Items"?
- A3. Specialty Items are known as "Non-Pre-Priced Items". Please refer to Section 4, Contract Procedures and Terms, 4.2.3 and 4.3.1.
- Q4. Page 25 Item 25. From what date is the 2 year and 5 year time limits to be determined? Is it the bid date, the date the contract is signed by the City or the date each task is issued?
- A4. The term of the contract begins upon contract execution (when all parties have signed). Please refer to Attachment A, Sec 4, Contract Terms.
- Q5. Page 39 Item 10. From what date are prevailing wage rates to be determined? Is it the date of advertisement, bid date or date each task is issued?
- A5. The prevailing wage rates are determined based on the Request for Proposal (RFP) date for each task issued.

- Q6. Page 194 Item 1-2. Can the City designate "Normal Working Hours" for bidding purposes?
- A6. 7:00 am to 4:00 pm.
- Q7. Page 194 Item 2-5.3.7 Can the City add a separate line item for Quantity Control Plan to the unit price book?
- A7. No.
- Q8. Page 199 Section 3 Changes of Work. If new or unforeseen work is required that is NOT covered by the Unit Price Book, and this work is performed at Force Amount, will the Adjustment Factor be applied?
- A8. The Adjustment Bid Factor shall be applied for new and unforeseen work.
- Q9. Page 211 Item 9-3.7. Will the Bid Date be used in determining the basis for Price Index Fluctuations or will each Task Order date be used?
- A9. Bid Date shall be used in determining the basis for Price Index Fluctuations.
- Q10. Page 222 Item 13. 20% recycled asphalt pavement in content is allowed for the base repairs, what is the % of recycled asphalt pavement allowed for the asphalt concrete inlays/overlays/resurfacing?
- A10. 15% RAP is allowed for the Asphalt used in Asphalt Inlays.
- Q11. Page 234 Item 1.2.2. If the Contract has expired, how can prices in the UPB be firm?
- A11. The UPB is firm for the duration of contract including any work done after the two year contract expiration date and within the 5 year limit.
- Q12. Page 235 Item 4.2.2. This item conflicts with Page 06 Item 5.1 & 5.2. Which is correct?
- A12. They are not in conflict. Item 4.2.2 is correct the Contractor must accept and complete all task orders assigned. However, in the event of an extenuating circumstance, Items 5.1 and 5.2 will apply.

- Q13. Page 239 Unit Price Book Item 10 PCC Curb Ramp Large (Types A, B, C, etc.) What does etc. represent? Can the City provide a clear item description of work and eliminate etc.?
- A13. Large is the payment for all types of curb ramps and passageways EXCEPT for the Type D ramp.
- Q14. Page 239 Unit Price Book Item 10 PCC Curb Ramp Large. Based upon the most recent City of San Diego Asphalt Paving Group 1601 (K-18-1538-DBB-3) the average unit price submitted by the 5 bidders was \$3,341.20, The Unit Price in the UPB is \$2,500. Can the City adjust this Unit Price to reflect recent current prices?
- A14. NO.
- Q15. Page 239 Unit Price Book Item 11 PCC Curb Ramp Small (Types D, etc.). What does etc. represent? Can the City provide a clear item description of work and eliminate etc.?
- A15. Small is only for the payment of Type D ramps.
- Q16. Page 239 Unit Price Book Item 11 PCC Curb Ramp Small. Based upon the most recent City of San Diego Asphalt Paving Group 1601 (K-18-1538-DBB-3) the average unit price submitted by the 5 bidders was \$3,215.00, The Unit Price in the UPB is \$1,500. Can the City adjust this Unit Price to reflect recent current prices?

A16. NO.

C. ATTACHMENTS

1. To Attachment D, Job Order Contract (JOC) Funding Agency Provisions References, Item 11, Wage Rates, pages 43 through 76, **DELETE** in its entirety and **SUBSTITUTE** with pages 6 through 39 of this Addendum.

James Nagelvoort, Director Public Works Department

Dated: *March 14, 2018*

San Diego, California

JN / AR / cc

11. WAGE RATES: This contract shall be subject to the following Davis-Bacon Wage Decisions:

General Decision Number: CA180001 03/02/2018 CA1

Superseded General Decision Number: CA20170001

State: California

Construction Types: Building, Heavy (Heavy and Dredging), Highway and Residential

County: San Diego County in California.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; DREDGING PROJECTS (does not include hopper dredge work); HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include water well drilling); HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (consisting of single family homes and apartments up to and including 4 stories)

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.35 for calendar year 2018 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.35 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2018. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date

- 0 01/05/2018
- 1 01/12/2018
- 2 01/19/2018
- 3 02/09/2018
- 4 03/02/2018

ASBE0005-002 07/03/2017

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Workers/Insulator
(Includes the application of
all insulating materials,
protective coverings,
coatings, and finishes to all
types of mechanical systems).....\$ 39.72 20.81
Fire Stop Technician
(Application of Firestopping
Materials for wall openings
and penetrations in walls,
floors, ceilings and curtain
walls).......\$ 26.96 17.81

ASBE0005-004 07/03/2017

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Removal
worker/hazardous material
handler (Includes
preparation, wetting,
stripping, removal,
scrapping, vacuuming, bagging
and disposing of all
insulation materials from
mechanical systems, whether
they contain asbestos or not)....\$ 19.26
11.27

BOIL0092-003 10/01/2012

Rates Fringes

BOILERMAKER.....\$ 41.17 28.27

BRCA0004-008 11/01/2017

Rates Fringes

BRICKLAYER; MARBLE SETTER......\$ 37.46 16.69

BRCA0018-004 07/01/2017

| | Rates | Fringes | |
|--|--|---|--|
| MARBLE FINISHER. TILE FINISHER TILE LAYER | \$ 25 | .98 | 11.23 |
| BRCA0018-010 09 | /01/2017 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| TERRAZZO FINISHE TERRAZZO WORKE | | | |
| CARP0409-002 07 | /01/2016 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| Diver (1) Wet (2) Standby (3) Tender (4) Assistant Ter | \$ 356 \$ 348. | .24 1 24 1 | 7.03 7.03 |
| Amounts in "Rates | ' column ar | e per day | |
| CARP0409-008 08 | /01/2010 | | |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| Modular Furniture | Installer | \$ 17.00 | 7.41 |
| CARP0547-001 07 | /01/2016 | | · |
| | Rates | Fringes | |
| CARPENTER (1) Bridge | Building hway\$ Carpenter ller\$ 18 | \$ 35.10 5 40.20 \$ 28.08 8.00 6.70 | .03 17.03 17.03 17.03 8.16 17.03 17.03 |

* CARP0547-002 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Drywall

(1) Work on wood framed construction of single family residences, apartments or condominiums under four stories

Drywall Installer/Lather...\$ 22.95 18.85 Drywall Stocker/Scrapper...\$ 12.50 12.27

(2) All other work

Drywall Installer/Lather...\$ 32.00 17.63 Drywall Stocker/Scrapper...\$ 12.50 12.27

ELEC0569-001 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

Electricians (Tunnel Work)

Cable Splicer...........\$ 49.41 3%+12.63 Electrician...........\$ 46.97 3%+12.63

Electricians: (All Other Work, Including 4 Stories

Residential)

ELEC0569-004 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

ELECTRICIAN (Sound &

Communications Sound

Technician).....\$ 31.00 3%+11.53

SCOPE OF WORK Assembly, installation, operation, service and maintenance of components or systems as used in closed circuit television, amplified master television distribution, CATV on private property, intercommunication, burglar alarm, fire alarm, life support and all security alarms, private and public telephone and related telephone interconnect, public address, paging, audio, language, electronic, background music system less than line voltage or any system acceptable for class two wiring for private, commercial, or industrial use furnished by leased wire, freuency modulation or other recording devices, electrical apparatus by means of which

electricity is applied to the amplification, transmission, transference, recording or reproduction of voice, music, sound, impulses and video. Excluded from this Scope of Work - transmission, service and maintenance of background music. All of the above shall include the installation and transmission over fiber optics.

ELEC0569-005 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

Sound & Communications

Sound Technician.....\$ 31.00 3%+11.53 SCOPE OF WORK Assembly, installation, operation, service and maintenance of components or systems as used in closed circuit television, amplified master television distribution, CATV on private property, intercommunication, burglar alarm, fire alarm, life support and all security alarms, private and public telephone and related telephone interconnect, public address, paging, audio, language, electronic, background music system less than line voltage or any system acceptable for class two wiring for private, commercial, or industrial use furnished by leased wire, freuency modulation or other recording devices, electrical apparatus by means of which electricity is applied to the amplification, transmission, transference, recording or reproduction of voice, music, sound, impulses and video. Excluded from this Scope of Work transmission, service and maintenance of background music. All of the above shall include the installation and transmission over fiber optics.

SOUND TECHNICIAN: Terminating, operating and performing final check-out

ELEC0569-006 02/27/2017

Work on street lighting; traffic signals; and underground systems and/or established easements outside of buildings

Rates Fringes

Traffic signal, street light and underground work

Utility Technician #1......\$ 30.48 3%+7.70 Utility Technician #2......\$ 25.45 3%+7.70

STREET LIGHT & TRAFFIC SIGNAL WORK:

UTILITY TECHNICIAN #1: Installation of street lights and traffic signals, including electrical circuitry, programmable controller, pedestal-mounted electrical meter enclosures and laying of pre-assembled cable in ducts. The layout of electrical systems and communication installation including proper position of trench depths, and radius at duct banks, location for manholes, street lights and traffic signals.

UTILITY TECHNICIAN #2: Distribution of material at jobsite, installation of underground ducts for electrical, telephone, cable TV land communication systems. The setting, leveling, grounding and racking of precast manholes, handholes and transformer pads.

ELEC0569-008 06/05/2017

Rates Fringes

ELECTRICIAN (Residential, 1-3

Stories).....\$ 32.81 3%+6.61

ELEC1245-001 06/01/2017

Rates Fringes

LINE CONSTRUCTION

(1) Lineman; Cable splicer..\$ 55.49 16.62

(2) Equipment specialist

(operates crawler

tractors, commercial motor

vehicles, backhoes,

trenchers, cranes (50 tons

and below), overhead &

underground distribution

line equipment).......\$ 44.32 3%+17.65 (3) Groundman.....\$ 33.89 3%+17.65

(4) Powderman.....\$ 49.55 3%+17.65

HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, M.L. King Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day -----

ELEV0018-001 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

ELEVATOR MECHANIC......\$ 53.85 32.645

FOOTNOTE:

PAID VACATION: Employer contributes 8% of regular hourly rate as vacation pay credit for employees with more than 5 years of service, and 6% for 6 months to 5 years of service. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.

ENGI0012-003 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

| OPERATOR: Power Equ | iipment | |
|---------------------|----------|-------|
| (All Other Work) | | |
| GROUP 1 | \$ 44.00 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 2 | \$ 44.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 45.07 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 4 | \$ 46.56 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 5 | \$ 47.66 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 6 | \$ 46.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 8 | \$ 46.89 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 9 | \$ 47.99 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 10 | \$ 48.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 11 | \$ 48.11 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 12 | \$ 47.18 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 13 | \$ 47.28 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 14 | \$ 47.31 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 15 | \$ 47.39 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 16 | \$ 47.51 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 17 | \$ 47.68 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 18 | \$ 47.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 19 | \$ 47.89 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 20 | \$ 48.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 21 | \$ 48.18 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 22 | \$ 48.28 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 23 | \$ 48.39 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 24 | \$ 48.51 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 25 | \$ 48.68 | 24.25 |

| OPERATOR: Power Equipment | |
|---------------------------|-------|
| (Cranes, Piledriving & | |
| Hoisting) | |
| GROUP 1\$ 45.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 2\$ 46.13 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 3\$ 46.42 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 4\$ 46.56 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 5\$ 46.78 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 6\$ 46.89 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 7\$ 47.01 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 8\$ 47.18 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 9\$ 47.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 10\$ 48.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 11\$ 49.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 12\$ 50.35 | 24.25 |
| GROUP 13\$ 51.35 | 24.25 |
| OPERATOR: Power Equipment | |
| (Tunnel Work) | |
| GROUP 1\$ 41.80 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 2\$ 42.58 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 3\$ 42.87 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 4\$ 43.01 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 5\$ 43.23 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 6\$ 43.34 | 23.35 |
| GROUP 7\$ 43.46 | 23.35 |

PREMIUM PAY:

\$3.75 per hour shall be paid on all Power Equipment Operator work on the followng Military Bases: China Lake Naval Reserve, Vandenberg AFB, Point Arguello, Seely Naval Base, Fort Irwin, Nebo Annex Marine Base, Marine Corp Logistics Base Yermo, Edwards AFB, 29 Palms Marine Base and Camp Pendleton

Workers required to suit up and work in a hazardous material environment: \$2.00 per hour additional. Combination mixer and compressor operator on gunite work shall be classified as a concrete mobile mixer operator.

SEE ZONE DEFINITIONS AFTER CLASSIFICATIONS

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Bargeman; Brakeman; Compressor operator; Ditch Witch, with seat or similar type equipment; Elevator operator-inside; Engineer Oiler; Forklift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types under 5 tons;

Generator operator; Generator, pump or compressor plant operator; Pump operator; Signalman; Switchman

GROUP 2: Asphalt-rubber plant operator (nurse tank operator); Concrete mixer operator-skip type; Conveyor operator; Fireman; Forklift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types over 5 tons; Hydrostatic pump operator; oiler crusher (asphalt or concrete plant); Petromat laydown machine; PJU side dum jack; Screening and conveyor machine operator (or similar types); Skiploader (wheel type up to 3/4 yd. without attachment); Tar pot fireman; Temporary heating plant operator; Trenching machine oiler

GROUP 3: Asphalt-rubber blend operator; Bobcat or similar type (Skid steer); Equipment greaser (rack); Ford Ferguson (with dragtype attachments); Helicopter radioman (ground); Stationary pipe wrapping and cleaning machine operator

GROUP 4: Asphalt plant fireman; Backhoe operator (mini-max or similar type); Boring machine operator; Boxman or mixerman (asphalt or concrete); Chip spreading machine operator; Concrete cleaning decontamination machine operator; Concrete Pump Operator (small portable); Drilling machine operator, small auger types (Texoma super economatic or similar types - Hughes 100 or 200 or similar types drilling depth of 30' maximum); Equipment greaser (grease truck); Guard rail post driver operator; Highline cableway signalman; Hydra-hammer-aero stomper; Micro Tunneling (above ground tunnel); Power concrete curing machine operator; Power concrete saw operator; Power-driven jumbo form setter operator; Power sweeper operator; Rock Wheel Saw/Trencher; Roller operator (compacting); Screed operator (asphalt or concrete); Trenching machine operator (up to 6 ft.); Vacuum or much truck

GROUP 5: Equipment Greaser (Grease Truck/Multi Shift).

GROUP 6: Articulating material hauler; Asphalt plant engineer; Batch plant operator; Bit sharpener; Concrete joint machine operator (canal and similar type); Concrete planer operator; Dandy digger; Deck engine operator; Derrickman (oilfield type); Drilling machine operator, bucket or auger types (Calweld 100 bucket or similar types - Watson 1000 auger or similar types - Texoma 330, 500 or 600 auger or similar types - drilling depth of 45' maximum); Drilling machine operator; Hydrographic seeder machine operator (straw, pulp or seed), Jackson track

maintainer, or similar type; Kalamazoo Switch tamper, or similar type; Machine tool operator; Maginnis internal full slab vibrator, Mechanical berm, curb or gutter(concrete or asphalt); Mechanical finisher operator (concrete, Clary-Johnson-Bidwell or similar); Micro tunnel system (below ground); Pavement breaker operator (truck mounted); Road oil mixing machine operator; Roller operator (asphalt or finish), rubber-tired earth moving equipment (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck); Self-propelled tar pipelining machine operator; Skiploader operator (crawler and wheel type, over 3/4 yd. and up to and including 1-1/2 yds.); Slip form pump operator (power driven hydraulic lifting device for concrete forms); Tractor operator-bulldozer, tamper-scraper (single engine, up to 100 h.p. flywheel and similar types, up to and including D-5 and similar types); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum); Ultra high pressure waterjet cutting tool system operator; Vacuum blasting machine operator

GROUP 8: Asphalt or concrete spreading operator (tamping or finishing); Asphalt paving machine operator (Barber Greene or similar type); Asphalt-rubber distribution operator; Backhoe operator (up to and including 3/4 yd.), small ford, Case or similar; Cast-in-place pipe laying machine operator; Combination mixer and compressor operator (gunite work); Compactor operator (self-propelled); Concrete mixer operator (paving); Crushing plant operator; Drill Doctor; Drilling machine operator, Bucket or auger types (Calweld 150 bucket or similar types - Watson 1500, 2000 2500 auger or similar types - Texoma 700, 800 auger or similar types drilling depth of 60' maximum); Elevating grader operator; Grade checker; Gradall operator; Grouting machine operator; Heavy-duty repairman; Heavy equipment robotics operator; Kalamazoo balliste regulator or similar type; Kolman belt loader and similar type; Le Tourneau blob compactor or similar type; Loader operator (Athey, Euclid, Sierra and similar types); Mobark Chipper or similar; Ozzie padder or similar types; P.C. slot saw; Pneumatic concrete placing machine operator (Hackley-Presswell or similar type); Pumpcrete gun operator; Rock Drill or similar types; Rotary drill operator (excluding caisson type); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. up to and including 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (multiple engine up to and including 25 yds. struck); Rubber-tired scraper operator (self-loading paddle wheel

type-John Deere, 1040 and similar single unit); Self-propelled curb and gutter machine operator; Shuttle buggy; Skiploader operator (crawler and wheel type over 1-1/2 yds. up to and including 6-1/2 yds.); Soil remediation plant operator; Surface heaters and planer operator; Tractor compressor drill combination operator; Tractor operator (any type larger than D-5 - 100 flywheel h.p. and over, or similar-bulldozer, tamper, scraper and push tractor single engine); Tractor operator (boom attachments), Traveling pipe wrapping, cleaning and bendng machine operator; Trenching machine operator (over 6 ft. depth capacity, manufacturer's rating); trenching Machine with Road Miner attachment (over 6 ft depth capacity): Ultra high pressure waterjet cutting tool system mechanic; Water pull (compaction) operator

GROUP 9: Heavy Duty Repairman

GROUP 10: Drilling machine operator, Bucket or auger types (Calweld 200 B bucket or similar types-Watson 3000 or 5000 auger or similar types-Texoma 900 auger or similar types-drilling depth of 105' maximum); Dual drum mixer, dynamic compactor LDC350 (or similar types); Monorail locomotive operator (diesel, gas or electric); Motor patrol-blade operator (single engine); Multiple engine tractor operator (Euclid and similar type-except Quad 9 cat.); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Pneumatic pipe ramming tool and similar types; Prestressed wrapping machine operator; Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber tired earth moving equipment operator (multiple engine, Euclid, caterpillar and similar over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck), Tower crane repairman; Tractor loader operator (crawler and wheel type over 6-1/2 yds.); Woods mixer operator (and similar Pugmill equipment)

GROUP 11: Heavy Duty Repairman - Welder Combination, Welder - Certified.

GROUP 12: Auto grader operator; Automatic slip form operator; Drilling machine operator, bucket or auger types (Calweld, auger 200 CA or similar types - Watson, auger 6000 or similar types - Hughes Super Duty, auger 200 or similar types - drilling depth of 175' maximum); Hoe ram or similar with compressor; Mass excavator operator less tha 750 cu. yards; Mechanical finishing machine operator; Mobile form

traveler operator; Motor patrol operator (multi-engine); Pipe mobile machine operator; Rubber-tired earth- moving equipment operator (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired self- loading scraper operator (paddle-wheel-auger type self-loading - two (2) or more units)

GROUP 13: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 14: Canal liner operator; Canal trimmer operator; Remote- control earth-moving equipment operator (operating a second piece of equipment: \$1.00 per hour additional); Wheel excavator operator (over 750 cu. yds.)

GROUP 15: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. and up to and including 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine-up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 16: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 17: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 50 cu. yds. struck); Tandem tractor operator (operating crawler type tractors in tandem - Quad 9 and similar type)

GROUP 18: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 19: Rotex concrete belt operator (or similar types); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds.and up to and including 50 cu. yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 20: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps, and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 21: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating in tandem (scrapers, belly dumps and similar types in any combination, excluding compaction units - multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck)

GROUP 22: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 23: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, Caterpillar, Euclid, Athey Wagon and similar types with any and all attachments over 25 yds. and up to and including 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, up to and including 25 yds. struck)

GROUP 24: Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (single engine, over 50 yds. struck); Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar, over 25 yds. and up to 50 yds. struck)

GROUP 25: Concrete pump operator-truck mounted; Rubber-tired earth-moving equipment operator, operating equipment with the tandem push-pull system (multiple engine, Euclid, Caterpillar and similar type, over 50 cu. yds. struck)

CRANES, PILEDRIVING AND HOISTING EQUIPMENT CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Engineer oiler; Fork lift operator (includes loed, lull or similar types)

GROUP 2: Truck crane oiler

GROUP 3: A-frame or winch truck operator; Ross carrier operator (jobsite)

GROUP 4: Bridge-type unloader and turntable operator; Helicopter hoist operator

GROUP 5: Hydraulic boom truck; Stinger crane (Austin-Western or similar type); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum)

GROUP 6: Bridge crane operator; Cretor crane operator; Hoist operator (Chicago boom and similar type); Lift mobile operator; Lift slab machine operator (Vagtborg and similar types); Material hoist and/or manlift operator; Polar gantry crane operator; Self Climbing scaffold (or similar type); Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 3/4 yd. and up to 5 cu. yds. mrc); Tugger hoist operator

GROUP 7: Pedestal crane operator; Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 5 cu. yds. mrc); Tower crane repair; Tugger hoist operator (3 drum)

GROUP 8: Crane operator (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Crawler transporter operator; Derrick barge operator (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (up to and including 25 ton capacity); Shovel, backhoe, dragline, clamshell operator (over 7 cu. yds., M.R.C.)

GROUP 9: Crane operator (over 25 tons and up to and including 50 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 25 tons up to and including 50 tons mrc); Highline cableway operator; Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 25 tons up to and including 50 tons mrc); K-crane operator; Polar crane operator; Self erecting tower crane operator maximum lifting capacity ten tons

GROUP 10: Crane operator (over 50 tons and up to and including 100 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 50 tons up to and including 100 tons mrc); Hoist operator,

stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 50 tons up to and including 100 tons mrc), Mobile tower crane operator (over 50 tons, up to and including 100 tons M.R.C.); Tower crane operator and tower gantry

GROUP 11: Crane operator (over 100 tons and up to and including 200 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc); Mobile tower crane operator (over 100 tons up to and including 200 tons mrc)

GROUP 12: Crane operator (over 200 tons up to and including 300 tons mrc); Derrick barge operator (over 200 tons up to and including 300 tons mrc); Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 200 tons, up to and including 300 tons mrc); Mobile tower crane operator (over 200 tons, up to and including 300 tons mrc)

GROUP 13: Crane operator (over 300 tons); Derrick barge operator (over 300 tons); Helicopter pilot; Hoist operator, stiff legs, Guy derrick or similar type (over 300 tons); Mobile tower crane operator (over 300 tons)

TUNNEL CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Skiploader (wheel type up to 3/4 yd. without attachment)

GROUP 2: Power-driven jumbo form setter operator

GROUP 3: Dinkey locomotive or motorperson (up to and including 10 tons)

GROUP 4: Bit sharpener; Equipment greaser (grease truck); Slip form pump operator (power-driven hydraulic lifting device for concrete forms); Tugger hoist operator (1 drum); Tunnel locomotive operator (over 10 and up to and including 30 tons)

GROUP 5: Backhoe operator (up to and including 3/4 yd.); Small Ford, Case or similar; Drill doctor; Grouting machine operator; Heading shield operator; Heavy-duty repairperson; Loader operator (Athey, Euclid, Sierra and similar types); Mucking machine operator (1/4 yd., rubber-tired, rail or track type); Pneumatic concrete placing machine operator (Hackley-Presswell or similar type); Pneumatic heading shield (tunnel); Pumpcrete gun operator; Tractor compressor drill combination operator; Tugger hoist operator (2 drum); Tunnel locomotive operator (over 30 tons)

GROUP 6: Heavy Duty Repairman

GROUP 7: Tunnel mole boring machine operator

ENGINEERS ZONES

\$1.00 additional per hour for all of IMPERIAL County and the portions of KERN, RIVERSIDE & SAN BERNARDINO Counties as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin in San Bernardino County, approximately 3 miles NE of the intersection of I-15 and the California State line at that point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N,m R14E, San Bernardino Meridian. Continue W in a straight line to that point which is the SW corner of the northwest guarter of Section 6, T27S, R42E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue North to the intersection with the Inyo County Boundary at that point which is the NE corner of the western half of the northern quarter of Section 6, T25S, R42E, MDM. Continue W along the Inyo and San Bernardino County boundary until the intersection with Kern County, as that point which is the SE corner of Section 34, T24S, R40E, MDM. Continue W along the Inyo and Kern County boundary until the intersection with Tulare County, at that point which is the SW corner of the SE quarter of Section 32, T24S, R37E, MDM. Continue W along the Kern and Tulare County boundary, until that point which is the NW corner of T25S, R32E, MDM. Continue S following R32E lines to the NW corner of T31S, R32E, MDM. Continue W to the NW corner of T31S, R31E, MDM. Continue S to the SW corner of T32S, R31E, MDM. Continue W to SW corner of SE quarter of Section 34, T32S, R30E, MDM. Continue S to SW corner of T11N, R17W, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T11N, SBM to SW corner of T11N, R7W, SBM. Continue S to SW corner of T9N, R7W, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T9N, SBM to SW corner of T9N, R1E, SBM. Continue S along west boundary of R1E, SMB to Riverside County line at the SW corner of T1S, R1E, SBM. Continue E along south boundary of T1s, SBM (Riverside County Line) to SW corner of T1S, R10E, SBM. Continue S along west boundary of R10E, SBM to Imperial County line at the SW corner of T8S, R10E, SBM. Continue W along Imperial and Riverside county line to NW corner of T9S, R9E, SBM. Continue S along the boundary between Imperial and San Diego Counties, along the west edge of R9E,

SBM to the south boundary of Imperial County/California state line. Follow the California state line west to Arizona state line, then north to Nevada state line, then continuing NW back to start at the point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N, R14E, SBM

\$1.00 additional per hour for portions of SAN LUIS OBISPO, KERN, SANTA BARBARA & VENTURA as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin approximately 5 miles north of the community of Cholame, on the Monterey County and San Luis Obispo County boundary at the NW corner of T25S, R16E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue south along the west side of R16E to the SW corner of T30S, R16E, MDM. Continue E to SW corner of T30S, R17E, MDM. Continue S to SW corner of T31S, R17E, MDM. Continue E to SW corner of T31S, R18E, MDM. Continue S along West side of R18E, MDM as it crosses into San Bernardino Meridian numbering area and becomes R30W. Follow the west side of R30W, SBM to the SW corner of T9N, R30W, SBM. Continue E along the south edge of T9N, SBM to the Santa Barbara County and Ventura County boundary at that point whch is the SW corner of Section 34.T9N, R24W, SBM, continue S along the Ventura County line to that point which is the SW corner of the SE quarter of Section 32, T7N, R24W, SBM. Continue E along the south edge of T7N, SBM to the SE corner to T7N, R21W, SBM. Continue N along East side of R21W, SBM to Ventura County and Kern County boundary at the NE corner of T8N, R21W. Continue W along the Ventura County and Kern County boundary to the SE corner of T9N, R21W. Continue North along the East edge of R21W, SBM to the NE corner of T12N, R21W, SBM. Continue West along the north edge of T12N, SBM to the SE corner of T32S, R21E, MDM. [T12N SBM is a think strip between T11N SBM and T32S MDM]. Continue North along the East side of R21E, MDM to the Kings County and Kern County border at the NE corner of T25S, R21E, MDM, continue West along the Kings County and Kern County Boundary until the intersection of San Luis Obispo County. Continue west along the Kings County and San Luis Obispo County boundary until the intersection with Monterey County. Continue West along the Monterey County and San Luis Obispo County boundary to the beginning point at the NW corner of T25S, R16E, MDM.

\$2.00 additional per hour for INYO and MONO Counties and the Northern portion of SAN BERNARDINO County as defined below:

That area within the following Boundary: Begin at the intersection of the northern boundary of Mono County and the California state line at the point which is the center of Section 17, T10N, R22E, Mt. Diablo Meridian. Continue S then SE along the entire western boundary of Mono County, until it reaches Inyo County at the point which is the NE corner of the Western half of the NW guarter of Section 2, T8S, R29E, MDM. Continue SSE along the entire western boundary of Inyo County, until the intersection with Kern County at the point which is the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 32, T24S, R37E, MDM. Continue E along the Inyo and Kern County boundary until the intersection with San Bernardino County at that point which is the SE corner of section 34, T24S, R40E, MDM. Continue E along the Inyo and San Bernardino County boundary until the point which is the NE corner of the Western half of the NW quarter of Section 6, T25S, R42E, MDM. Continue S to that point which is the SW corner of the NW quarter of Section 6, T27S, R42E, MDM. Continue E in a straight line to the California and Nevada state border at the point which is the NW corner of Section 1, T17N, R14E, San Bernardino Meridian. Then continue NW along the state line to the starting point, which is the center of Section 18, T10N, R22E, MDM.

REMAINING AREA NOT DEFINED ABOVE RECIEVES BASE RATE

ENGI0012-004 08/01/2015

Rates Fringes

OPERATOR: Power Equipment (DREDGING)

| (1) Leverman\$ 49.50 | 23.60 |
|---------------------------|-------|
| (2) Dredge dozer\$ 43.53 | 23.60 |
| (3) Deckmate\$ 43.42 | 23.60 |
| (4) Winch operator (stern | |
| winch on dredge)\$ 42.87 | 23.60 |
| (5) Fireman-Oiler, | |
| Deckhand, Bargeman, | |
| Leveehand\$ 42.33 | 23.60 |
| (6) Barge Mate\$ 42.94 | 23.60 |
| | |

IRON0377-002 01/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Ironworkers:

Fence Erector.....\$ 29.58 21.59
Ornamental, Reinforcing

and Structural.....\$ 36.00 30.15

PREMIUM PAY:

\$6.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

China Lake Naval Test Station, Chocolate Mountains Naval Reserve-Niland,

Edwards AFB, Fort Irwin Military Station, Fort Irwin Training Center-Goldstone, San Clemente Island, San Nicholas Island, Susanville Federal Prison, 29 Palms - Marine Corps, U.S. Marine Base - Barstow, U.S. Naval Air Facility - Sealey, Vandenberg AFB

\$4.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

Army Defense Language Institute - Monterey, Fallon Air Base, Naval Post Graduate School - Monterey, Yermo Marine Corps Logistics Center

\$2.00 additional per hour at the following locations:

Port Hueneme, Port Mugu, U.S. Coast Guard Station - Two Rock

LABO0089-001 07/18/2016

Rates Fringes

LABORER (BUILDING and all other Residential

Construction)

| Group 1 | \$ 29.42 | 19.78 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| Group 2 | \$ 30.10 | 19.78 |
| Group 3 | \$ 30.81 | 19.78 |
| Group 4 | \$ 31.61 | 19.78 |
| Group 5 | \$ 33.54 | 19.78 |

LABORER (RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION - See definition below)

(1) Laborer.....\$ 27.32 18.11

(2) Cleanup, Landscape,

Fencing (Chain Link & Wood).\$ 26.03 18.11

RESIDENTIAL DEFINITION: Wood or metal frame construction of single family residences, apartments and condominums excluding (a) projects that exceed three stories over a garage level, (b) any utility work such as telephone, gas, water, sewer and other utilities and (c) any fine grading work, utility work or paving work in the future street and public right-of-way; but including all rough grading work at the job site behind the existing right of way

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Cleaning and handling of panel forms; Concrete Screeding for Rought Strike-off; Concrete, water curing; Demolition laborer; Flagman; Gas, oil and/or water pipeline laborer; General Laborer; General clean-up laborer; Landscape laborer; Jetting laborer; Temporary water and air lines laborer; Material hoseman (walls, slabs, floors and decks); Plugging, filling of Shee-bolt holes; Dry packing of concrete; Railroad maintenance, Repair Trackman and road beds, Streetcar and railroad construction trac laborers; Slip form raisers; Slurry seal crews (mixer operator, applicator operator, squeegee man, Shuttle man, top man), filling of cracks by any method on any surface; Tarman and mortar man; Tool crib or tool house laborer; Window cleaner; Wire Mesh puling-all concrete pouring operations

GROUP 2: Asphalt Shoveler; Cement Dumper (on 1 yard or larger mixer and handling bulk cement); Cesspool digger and installer; Chucktender; Chute man, pouring concrete, the handling of the cute from ready mix trucks, such as walls, slabs, decks, floors, foundations, footings, curbs, gutters and sidewalks; Concrete curer-impervious membrane and form oiler; Cutting torch operator (demoliton); Guinea chaser; Headboard man-asphlt; Laborer, packing rod steel and pans; membrane vapor barrier installer; Power broom sweepers (small); Riiprap, stonepaver, placing stone or wet sacked concrete; Roto scraper and tiller; Tank sealer and cleaner; Tree climber, faller, chain saw

operator, Pittsburgh Chipper and similar type brush shredders; Underground laborers, including caisson bellower

GROUP 3: Buggymobile; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete pile cutter; Driller, jackhammer, 2 1/2 feet drill steel or longer; Dri Pak-it machine; High sealer (including drilling of same); Hydro seeder and similar type; Impact wrench, mult-plate; Kettlemen, potmen and mean applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, line caustic and similar type materials (applying means applying, dipping, brushing or handling of such materials for pipe wrapping and waterproofing); Operators of pneumatic, gas, electric tools, vibratring machines, pavement breakers, air blasting, come-along, and similar mechanical tools not separately classified herein; Pipelayers back up man coating, grouting, making of joints, sealing, caulking, diapering and inclduing rubber gasket joints, pointing and any and all other services; Rotary Scarifier or multiple head concrete chipping scaarifier; Steel header board man and guideline setter; Tampers, Barko, Wacker and similar type; Trenching machine, handpropelled

GROUP 4: Asphalt raker, luterman, ironer, apshalt dumpman and asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Concrete core cutter (walls, floors or ceilings), Grinder or sander; Concrete saw man; cutting walls or flat work, scoring old or new concrete; Cribber, shorer, lagging, sheeting and trench bracing, hand-guided lagging hammer; Laser beam in connection with laborer's work; Oversize concrete vibrator operator 70 pounds and over; Pipelayer performing all services in the laying, installation and all forms of connection of pipe from the point of receiving pipe in the ditch until completion of oppration, including any and all forms of tubular material, whether pipe, metallic or non-metallic, conduit, and any other stationary type of tubular device used for the conveying of any substance or element, whether water, sewage, solid, gas, air or other product whatsoever and without regard to the nature of material from which the tubular material is fabricated: No joint pipe and stripping of same; Prefabricated manhole installer; Sandblaster (nozzleman), Porta shot-blast, water blasting

GROUP 5: Blasters Powderman-All work of loading holes, placing and blasting of all pwder and explosives of whatever type, regardless of method used for such loading and placing; Driller-all power drills, excluding

jackhammer, whether core, diamond, wagon, track, multiple unit, and any and all other types of mechanical drills without regard to the form of motive power.

LABO0089-002 11/01/2017

Rates Fringes

LABORER (MASON TENDER)......\$ 30.00 16.47

LABO0089-004 07/01/2017

HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Rates Fringes

Laborers:

| Group 1 | \$ 31.63 | 18.58 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| Group 2 | \$ 32.09 | 18.58 |
| Group 3 | \$ 32.50 | 18.58 |
| Group 4 | \$ 33.34 | 18.58 |
| Group 5 | \$ 37.46 | 18.58 |

LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Laborer: General or Construction Laborer, Landscape Laborer. Asphalt Rubber Material Loader. Boring Machine Tender (outside), Carpenter Laborer (cleaning, handling, oiling & blowing of panel forms and lumber), Concrete Laborer, Concrete Screeding for rough strike-off, Concrete water curing. Concrete Curb & Gutter laborer, Certified Confined Space Laborer, Demolition laborer & Cleaning of Brick and lumber, Expansion Joint Caulking; Environmental Remediation, Monitoring Well, Toxic waste and Geotechnical Drill tender, Fine Grader, Fire Watcher, Limbers, Brush Loader, Pilers and Debris Handlers. flagman. Gas Oil and Water Pipeline Laborer. Material Hoseman (slabs, walls, floors, decks); Plugging, filling of shee bolt holes; Dry packing of concrete and patching; Post Holer Digger (manual); Railroad maintenance, repair trackman, road beds; Rigging & signaling; Scaler, Slip-Form Raisers, Filling cracks on any surface, tool Crib or Tool House Laborer, Traffic control (signs, barriers, barricades, delineator, cones etc.), Window Cleaner

GROUP 2: Asphalt abatement; Buggymobile; Cement dumper (on 1 yd. or larger mixers and handling bulk cement); Concrete curer, impervious membrane and form oiler; Chute man, pouring concrete; Concrete cutting torch; Concrete pile cutter; driller/Jackhammer, with drill steel 2 1/'2 feet or longer; Dry pak-it machine; Fence erector; Pipeline wrapper, gas, oil, water, pot tender & form man; Grout man; Installation of all asphalt overlay fabric and materials used for reinforcing asphalt; Irrigation laborer; Kettleman-Potman hot mop, includes applying asphalt, lay-klold, creosote, lime caustic and similar typpes of materials (dipping, brushing, handling) and waterproofing; Membrane vapor barrier installer; Pipelayer backup man (coating, grouting, making of joints, sealing caulkiing, diapering including rubber basket joints, pointing); Rotary scarifier, multiple head concrete chipper; Rock slinger; Roto scraper & tiller; Sandblaster pot tender; Septic tank digger/installer; Tamper/wacker operator; Tank scaler & cleaner; Tar man & mortar man; Tree climber/faller, chainb saw operator, Pittsburgh chipper & similar type brush shredders.

GROUP 3: Asphalt, installation of all frabrics; Buggy Mobile Man, Bushing hammer; Compactor (all types), Concrete Curer - Impervious membrane, Form Oiler, Concrete Cutting Torch, Concrete Pile Cutter, Driller/Jackhammer with drill steel 2 1/2 ft or longer, Dry Pak-it machine, Fence erector including manual post hole digging, Gas oil or water Pipeline Wrapper - 6 ft pipe and over, Guradrail erector, Hydro seeder, Impact Wrench man (multi plate), kettleman-Potman Hot Mop includes applying Asphalt, Lay-Kold, Creosote, lime caustic and similar types of materials (dipping, brushing or handling) and waterproofing. Laser Beam in connection with Laborer work. High Scaler, Operators of Pneumatic Gas or Electric Tools, Vibrating Machines, Pavement Breakers, Air Blasting, Come-Alongs and similar mechanical tools, Remote-Controlled Robotic Tools in connection with Laborers work. Pipelayer Backup Man (Coating, grouting, m makeing of joints, sealing, caulking, diapering including rubber gasket joints, pointing and other services). Power Post Hole Digger, Rotary Scarifier (multiple head concrete chipper scarifier), Rock Slinger, Shot Blast equipment (8 to 48 inches), Steel Headerboard Man and Guideline Setter, Tamper/Wacker operator and similar types, Trenching Machine hand propelled.

GROUP 4: Any worker exposed to raw sewage. Asphalt Raker, Luteman, Asphalt Dumpman, Asphalt Spreader Boxes, Concrete Core Cutter, Concrete Saw Man, Cribber, Shorer, Head Rock Slinger. Installation of subsurface instrumentation, monitoring wells or points, remediation system installer; Laborer, asphalt-rubber distributor bootman; Oversize concrete vibrator operators, 70 pounds or over. Pipelayer, Prfefabricated Manhole Installer, Sandblast Nozzleman (Water Balsting-Porta Shot Blast), Traffic Lane Closure.

GROUP 5: Blasters Powderman-All work of loading holes, placing and blasting of all powder and explosives of whatever type, regardless of method used for such loading and placing; Horizontal directional driller, Boring system, Electronic traking, Driller: all power drills excluding jackhammer, whether core, diamond, wagon, track, multiple unit, and all other types of mechanical drills without regard to form of motive power. Environmental remediation, Monitoring well, Toxic waste and Geotechnical driller, Toxic waste removal. Welding in connection with Laborer's work.

.-----

LABO0300-005 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

Asbestos Removal Laborer......\$ 33.19 17.78

SCOPE OF WORK: Includes site mobilization, initial site cleanup, site preparation, removal of asbestos-containing material and toxic waste, encapsulation, enclosure and disposal of asbestos- containing materials and toxic waste by hand or with equipment or machinery; scaffolding, fabrication of temporary wooden barriers and assembly of decontamination stations.

.....

LABO1184-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

Laborers: (HORIZONTAL DIRECTIONAL DRILLING)

(1) Drilling Crew Laborer...\$ 34.65(2) Vehicle Operator/Hauler.\$ 34.8213.20

(3) Horizontal Directional

| Drill Operator | \$ 36.67 | 13.20 |
|---------------------|----------|-------|
| (4) Electronic Tra | cking | |
| Locator | \$ 38.67 | 13.20 |
| Laborers: (STRIPING | S/SLURRY | |
| SEAL) | | |
| GROUP 1 | \$ 35.86 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 2 | \$ 37.16 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 39.17 | 16.21 |
| GROUP 4 | \$ 40.91 | 16.21 |

LABORERS - STRIPING CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Protective coating, pavement sealing, including repair and filling of cracks by any method on any surface in parking lots, game courts and playgrounds; carstops; operation of all related machinery and equipment; equipment repair technician

GROUP 2: Traffic surface abrasive blaster; pot tender - removal of all traffic lines and markings by any method (sandblasting, waterblasting, grinding, etc.) and preparation of surface for coatings. Traffic control person: controlling and directing traffic through both conventional and moving lane closures; operation of all related machinery and equipment

GROUP 3: Traffic delineating device applicator: Layout and application of pavement markers, delineating signs, rumble and traffic bars, adhesives, guide markers, other traffic delineating devices including traffic control. This category includes all traffic related surface preparation (sandblasting, waterblasting, grinding) as part of the application process. Traffic protective delineating system installer: removes, relocates, installs, permanently affixed roadside and parking delineation barricades, fencing, cable anchor, guard rail, reference signs, monument markers; operation of all related machinery and equipment; power broom sweeper

GROUP 4: Striper: layout and application of traffic stripes and markings; hot thermo plastic; tape traffic stripes and markings, including traffic control; operation of all related machinery and equipment

LABO1414-003 08/02/2017

Rates Fringes

LABORER

PLASTER CLEAN-UP LABORER....\$ 35.50 18.29 PLASTER TENDER.....\$ 38.05 18.29

Work on a swing stage scaffold: \$1.00 per hour additional.

Work at Military Bases - \$3.00 additional per hour:
Coronado Naval Amphibious Base, Fort Irwin, Marine Corps Air
Station-29 Palms, Imperial Beach Naval Air Station, Marine
Corps Logistics Supply Base, Marine Corps Pickle Meadows,
Mountain Warfare Training Center, Naval Air
Facility-Seeley, North Island Naval Air Station, Vandenberg
AFB.

PAIN0036-001 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

Painters: (Including Lead Abatement)

(1) Repaint (excludes San

Diego County).....\$ 27.59 14.14 (2) All Other Work......\$ 31.12 14.14

REPAINT of any previously painted structure. Exceptions: work involving the aerospace industry, breweries, commercial recreational facilities, hotels which operate commercial establishments as part of hotel service, and sports facilities.

PAIN0036-010 10/01/2017

Rates Fringes

DRYWALL FINISHER/TAPER

(1) Building & Heavy

Construction......\$ 30.24 16.95

(2) Residential

Construction (Wood frame apartments, single family

homes and multi-duplexes
up to and including four
stories)......\$ 23.50 15.96

* PAIN0036-012 10/01/2017

Rates Fringes

GLAZIER.....\$ 42.55 18.57

PAIN0036-019 01/01/2018

Rates Fringes

SOFT FLOOR LAYER.....\$ 30.02 13.68

PLAS0200-005 08/02/2017

Rates Fringes

PLASTERER.....\$ 41.26 14.46

NORTH ISLAND NAVAL AIR STATION, COLORADO NAVAL AMPHIBIOUS BASE, IMPERIAL BEACH NAVAL AIR STATION: \$3.00 additional per hour.

PLAS0500-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER

| GROUP 1 | \$ 26.34 | 19.77 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 2 | \$ 27.99 | 19.77 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 29.57 | 19.77 |

CEMENT MASONS - work inside the building line, meeting the following criteria:

GROUP 1: Residential wood frame project of any size; work classified as Type III, IV or Type V construction; interior tenant improvement work regardless the size of the project; any wood frame project of four stories or less.

GROUP 2: Work classified as type I and II construction

GROUP 3: All other work

._____

PLUM0016-006 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER, PIPEFITTER,

STEAMFITTER

Camp Pendleton...... \$ 53.78 21.61

Plumber and Pipefitter
All other work except
work on new additions and
remodeling of bars,
restaurant, stores and
commercial buildings not

to exceed 5,000 sq. ft.

of floor space and work

on strip malls, light

commercial, tenant

improvement and remodel

work.....\$ 49.28 21.61

Work ONLY on new additions

and remodeling of

commercial buildings,

bars, restaurants, and

stores not to exceed 5,000

sq. ft. of floor space.....\$ 47.76 20.63

Work ONLY on strip malls, light commercial, tenant

improvement and remodel

work......\$ 36.91 18.96

PLUM0016-011 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER

Residential.....\$ 39.91 17.53

PLUM0078-001 07/01/2016

Rates Fringes

PLUMBER

Landscape/Irrigation Fitter.\$ 44.16 25.19 Sewer & Storm Drain Work....\$ 44.16 25.19

ROOF0045-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

ROOFER.....\$ 30.73 8.43

SFCA0669-001 04/01/2017

Rates Fringes

SPRINKLER FITTER......\$ 39.17 15.84

SHEE0206-001 07/01/2017

Rates Fringes

SHEET METAL WORKER

 Camp Pendleton.......\$ 38.88
 26.52

 Except Camp Pendleton......\$ 36.88
 26.52

 Sheet Metal Technician.....\$ 27.70
 8.43

SHEET METAL TECHNICIAN - SCOPE:

a. Existing residential buildings, both single and multi-family, where each unit is heated and/or cooled by a separate system b. New single family residential buildings including tracts. c. New multi-family residential buildings, not exceeding five stories of living space in height, provided each unit is heated or cooled by a separate system. Hotels and motels are excluded. d. LIGHT COMMERCIAL WORK: Any sheet metal, heating and air conditioning work performed on a project where the total construction cost, excluding land, is under \$1,000,000 e. TENANT IMPROVEMENT WORK: Any work necessary to finish interior spaces to conform to the occupants of commercial buildings, after completion of the building shell

TEAM0166-001 07/03/2017

Rates Fringes

Truck drivers:

| GROUP 1 | \$ 15.90 | 32.69 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 2 | \$ 23.49 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 3 | \$ 23.69 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 4 | \$ 23.89 | 32.69 |

March 14, 2018 ADDENDUM A Page 34 of 39

| GROUP 5 | \$ 24.09 | 32.69 |
|---------|----------|-------|
| GROUP 6 | \$ 24.59 | 32.69 |
| GROUP 7 | \$ 26.09 | 32.69 |

FOOTNOTE: HAZMAT PAY: Work on a hazmat job, where hazmat certification is required, shall be paid, in addition to the classification working in, as follows: Levels A, B and C - +\$1.00 per hour. Workers shall be paid hazmat pay in increments of four (4) and eight (8) hours.

TRUCK DRIVER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Fuel Man, Swamper

GROUP 2: 2-axle Dump Truck, 2-axle Flat Bed, Concrete Pumping Truck, Industrial Lift Truck, Motorized Traffic Control, Pickup Truck on Jobsite

GROUP 3: 2-axle Water Truck, 3-axle Dump Truck, 3-axle Flat Bed, Erosion Control Nozzleman, Dump Crete Truck under 6.5 yd, Forklift 15,000 lbs and over, Prell Truck, Pipeline Work Truck Driver, Road Oil Spreader, Cement Distributor or Slurry Driver, Bootman, Ross Carrier

GROUP 4: Off-road Dump Truck under 35 tons 4-axles but less than 7-axles, Low-Bed Truck & Trailer, Transit Mix Trucks under 8 yd, 3-axle Water Truck, Erosion Control Driver, Grout Mixer Truck, Dump Crete 6.5yd and over, Dumpster Trucks, DW 10, DW 20 and over, Fuel Truck and Dynamite, Truck Greaser, Truck Mounted Mobile Sweeper 2-axle Winch Truck

GROUP 5: Off-road Dump Truck 35 tons and over, 7-axles or more, Transit Mix Trucks 8 yd and over, A-Frame Truck, Swedish Cranes

GROUP 6: Off-Road Special Equipment (including but not limited to Water Pull Tankers, Athey Wagons, DJB, B70 Wuclids or like Equipment)

| • | |
|---|--|
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

GROUP 7: Repairman

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

March 14, 2018 ADDENDUM A Page 35 of 39

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this

March 14, 2018 ADDENDUM A Page 36 of 39

classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION